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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Dl VISION OF MEDIC A ID SER VICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9422 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9422

Fax; 603-271-8431 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dbhs.nh.gov

May 5, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Medlcaid Services, to
amend an existing Sole Source agreement with Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. (Vendor
#271968), Trumbull, CT, to continue managing statewide non-emergency medical transportation for
Medicaid Fee-for-Service members, by extending the completion date from June 30. 2020 to
September 30. 2020 effective upon Governor and Council approval with no change to the price
limitation of $13,556,410. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March
28,2017 (item A), and most recently amended (Amendment #3) with Governor and Council approval
on December 18. 2019 (item #20).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal
years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-47-470010-3099 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF

HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, NHHPP Trust Fund

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2017 101-500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004159
, $1,207,200 $0 $1,207,200

2018 101-500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004159
$6,208,574 $0 $67208,574

2019 101-500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004159
$3,032,370 $0 $3,032,370

2020 101-500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004159
$0 $0 $0

2021 101-500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004159
$0 $0 $0

(■
Subtotals $10,448,144 $0 $10,448,144
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05-95-47-470010-2358 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEFT
OF HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, NH Granite
Advantage Health Care Trust Fund

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class-Title

Job

Number.

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical

Payments to
Providers

47003332 $0 $0 $0

2018 101-500729
Medical

Payments to
Providers

47003332 $0 $0 $0

2019 101-500729
Medical

Payments to
Providers

47003332 $19,297 $0 $19,297

2020 101-500729
Medical

Payments to
Providers

47003332 $56,231 ($12,415) $43,816

2021 101-500729
Medical

Payments to
^ Providers

47003332 $0 $12,4.15 $12,415

Subtotals $75,528 $0 $75,528

05-95-47-470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, Medicaid Care
Management

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical

Payments to
Providers

.47004050
$271,620 $o' $271,620

2018 101-500729
Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004050
$1,510,247 $0 $1,510,247

2019 101-500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004050
$859,784 $0 $859,784

2020 101-500729
Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004050 $384,297 ($106,612) ■ $277,685

2021 101-500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004050 $0 $106,612 $106,612

Subtotals $3,025,948 $0 $3,025,948
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05-95-47-470010-7051 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT
OF HHS; OFC OFC MEDICAID SERVICES: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES, CHILD HEALTH
INSURANCE PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004050
$0 $0 $0

2018 101-500729
Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004050
$0 $0 $0

2019 101-500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004050
$0 $0 $0

2020 101-500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004050 $6,790 ($973) $5,817

2021 101-500729

Medical

Payments to
Providers

47004050 $0 $973 $973

Subtotals $6,790 $0 $6,790

Totals $13,556,410 $0 $13,556,410

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because a previous amendment increased the total contract
value by more than ten percent (10%). The Department requests an extension.of this contract for an
additional three (3) months to give the Department more time to complete the re-procurement
process and to stand up a new non-emergency medical transportation contract. The re-procurement
of a transportation broker is In process'but has been delayed by the COVID-19 public health
emergency. As previously stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on
March 28, 20.17 (item A), as amended (Amendment #1) and approved by Governor and Council on
February 21.2018 (item #6); amended (Amendment #2) and approved by Governor and Council on
December 19. 2018 (item #10); and amended (Amendment #3) and approved by Governor and
Council on December 18, 2019 (item #20).

The purpose of this request is to ensure that up to 2,000 beneficiaries in the State's Medicaid
Fee-for-Service delivery system continue to have access to non-emergency transportation to all
Medicaid-covered services and/or receive mileage reimbursement to help with travel costs to
appointments. State Medicaid programs are required to provide necessary and appropriate
transportation, including the use of non-emergency ambulance and wheelchair van services, for
beneficiaries to travel to and from their home or nursing facility to Medicaid-covered services.

The following groups of individuals receive services under this contract:
•  Individuals in the Medicaid Spenddown Group;
•  Individuals enrolled in the Health Insurance Premium Payment Program;
•  Individuals who are eligible through Presumptive Eligibility: and
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•  Individuals receiving Veterans Administration benefits with Veterans Administration
' income.

Approximately up to 2,000 members will be eligible for transportation services in each of the
three (3) months from July 1. 2020 through September 30. 2020.

The Contractor will continue to coordinate transportation for beneficiaries through their call
center, dispatch appropriate methods of transportation and maintain their statewide transportation
network. The Contractor will also process and pay mileage reimbursement requests.

The Department will monitor contracted sen/ices using the following performance measures:
•  Non-Emergency fvtedical Transportation Scheduled Trip On-Time Provider Rate;
•  Non-Emergency Medical Transportation Scheduled Trip Provider No Show Rate;
•  Provider Site Visit Summaries, Provider Network and Provider Termination Reports;
•  Utilization of Mileage Reimbursement Program; and
•  Call Center Monitoring including the average speed to answer, average hold time,

and number of abandoned calls.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions of the original contract, the
parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to five (5) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor and
Council approval. The agreement was extended for one (1) of the five (5) years thTough Ameridment
#2, approved by the Governor and Council on December 19, 2018 (item #10) and extended an
additional six (6) months through amendment #3, approved by Governor and Council on December
18. 2019 (item #20). The Department is exercising its option to renew services for three (3) months
of the three (3) years, six (6) months available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, New Hampshire Medicaid
recipients in the Fee-for-Service delivery system may not have transportation to and from non-
emergency Medicaid covered appointments and services. If non-emergency transportation services
are not available to Fee-for-Service participants, the Department would tie in violation of federal
statute 42 CFR 431.53, assurance of transportation for Medicaid recipients to Medicaid covered
services.

Area served: Statewide

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

Respecffullyi submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-for-Service Participants

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4 to the Transportation Management for
Medicaid Fee-for-Service Participants Contract

This 4th Amendment .to the Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-for-Service Participants
contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #4") is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at 35 Nutmeg Drive. Suite 120, Trumbuil, CT. 06611.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 28. 2017 (Item A); as amended (Amendment #1), approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #6); as amended (Amendment #2). approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on December 19. 2018 (item #10); and as amended (Amendment #3). approved by
Governor and Council on December 18. 2019 (Item #20). the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain.sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREi^, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement to support continued delivery of these
services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, Block 1.7, Completion Date to read:

September 30. 2020.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. Amendnient #4 Contractor Initials

RFB.2017-OMBP-02-TRANS-01-A04 Page 1 of 3 Date Aprso.aozo



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medicald Fee-for-Service Participants

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Henry D. LIpman
Director

n

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.

AorSO 2020 4?^/^r\|JI sPV, OovitUWhile(Ar.f30.2020)

Date Name; David L. White
Title:President & CEO

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. Amendment #4

RFB-2017-OMBP-02-TRANS-01-A04 Page 2ol 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-for-Service Participants

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

5/5/20
Date Name;

Title: Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting).

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. Amendment ̂4

RFB-2017-OMBP-02-TRAN$-01-A04 Page 3 of 3



1 Amendment #4 - CTS
Final Audit Report 2020-04-30

Created: 2020^30

8y: Peter Myzithras (PMyzithfas^ctstranslt.com)

Status: Signed

Transaction 10: C8JCH8CAAeAAs7ynGT4f7wkglDml)cRG27WH8Wt89UIS

"1 Amendment #4 - CTS" History

Q Document created by Peter Myzithras (PMyzithras@ctstransft.com)
202(M)4-30 • 8:31:19 PM GMT- IP address: 76.19.14.157

^ Document emailed to David L White (dwhite@ctstrdnsit.com) for signature
2020-04-30 - 8:53:18 PM GMT

ub Email viewed by David L White (dwhite@ctstransit.com)
2020-04-30 - 8:59:08 PM GMT- IP address: 73.149.190.57

^ Document e-signed by David L White (dwhite@ctstransit.com)

Signature Dale: 2020-04-30-9:00:17 PM GMT -Time Source: server- IP address: 73.149.190.57

O Signed document emailed to Kathleen Grassmann (kgrassmann@ctstransit.com). Peter Myzithras
(PMyzithras@ctstransil.com) and David L White (dwhite@ctstransit.com)

2020-04-30 - 9:00:17 PM GMT

Adobe Sign



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. Willi&m M. Gardner, Secretary of Siaic of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COORDINATED

TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS. INC. is a Connecticut Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on Augixst 02, 2005.1 further ccnify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTicc hove been

received and is in good standing as far as this olTlcc is concerned.

Business ID: S420S3

Certificate Number: 000420S60I

Ofi
&H

%

O

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be am.<(ed

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 29th day of October A.D. 20) 8.

William M. Gardner

SccrciDO* of Sinic



Commercial Recording Division Page 1 of

Business Inquiry

Business Details

Business Name:
COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION

SOLUTIONS, INC.

Business ID: 0572619

Citlzenship/State Inc: Domestic/CT

Last Report Filed
Year:

Business Address:
35 NUTMEG DRIVE. SUITE 120. TRUM8ULL.
CT, 06611. USA

35 NUTMEG DRIVE. SUITE 120. TRUMBULL,Ma.I.ng Address: ct, 06611, USA

Date Inc/Regisiratlon: $ep 26,1997

Annual Report Due Date: 09/25/2020

NAICS Code: Transportation and Warehousing (48 )

Business Type: Non-Stock

Business Status: Active

K/A - Alt Other Transit and Ground PassengerNAICS Sub Code: T^.^po^utlon (485999 )

Principals Details

Name/Title Business Address Residence Address

DAVID L. WHITE PRESIDENT 9 WHITE BIRCH DR. MILFORD. CT. 06460

RICHARD SCHREINER

SECRETARY

REGINALD KNOWLTON
TREASURER

TRUMBULL. g2 federal ROAD. DANBURY. CT. 06810
CT'i 06611

0807*7^^^'"'^^ place, CINNAMINSON. NJ, HASTINGS PLACE, CINNAMINSON, NJ, 08077

Agent Summary

Agent Name NEUBERT, PEPE & MONTEITH, P.C.

Agent Business Address 195 CHURCH ST., 13TH FL.. ATTN: JUDY K. WEINSTEIN. ESQ., NEW HAVEN. CT. 06510

Agent Residence Address NONE

https:/Av\vvv.concord-sots.ct.gov/CONCORD/Publiclnquiry?eid=9744&businesslD=0572619 5/1/2020



OfTicc of the Secretary of the State of Connecticut

I, the Connecticut Secretary of the State, and keeper of the seal thereof,

DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that the certificate ofincorporaiion of

COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

a domestic NONSTOCK corporation, was filed in this office on September 26,1997, a certificate of
dissolution has not been filed, the corporation has filed all annual reports, and so far as indicated by the
records of this office such corporation is in existence.

Secretary of the State

Date Issued: February 09, 2012

Business ID: 0572619 Express Certificate Number: 2012041818001
Note: To verifv this ceriincale. visit the web site htlp://www.concord.sots.ct.Rov



11/14/2019 CornnerdBJ Reoo/ding DMskxi

Business Inquiry

Bu«(nas8 Ootalls

COORDINATCO rRAMfPORTATt©* »0tUT1CN9.
- wc.

ButfnMStO; W2ei»

U NUTMEa DRIVE. SUtTE IN. TRUIItaULL. CT.
BuinnaAddmi:

0M11

mtL-it-inxxE WHUTKEQ DRIVE. «WT6110. •mUHBVtl.CT.mCBBrQ 0^4^^

Datf lne/R«gliVvtton: tap II. 1M?

Awutl R«poR DM OtU: OMI/2011

CtaiamWp/Sutt mc 0«ffl«etJe/Cr

Uh) Rtpert n*4 tmr leil

Hvtlntu Typa: Mpn4teck •

SmIami Sttlji: Activ*

Principals Details

Nimarnoa

DAVID L. WHITE RRESIDEMT

MICHAEL KRAUSS VICE
PRESOENT

RlCHIkRO SCHREINER
SECRETARY

A0dr«M Rmimam AMrasa

J5NUTME0 DRIVE. SmTE 120. TRUMBULL. CT. ^ ̂  OR. MWORO. CT.OB<U

U NI/rWEO DRIVE. SUITE 130. TRUMBUIL CT.
OBSII

40 CHAPEL STREET, UNIT 214. MILFORO. CT. OWSO

^N^MEOIAHE. SUITE 120. TRUMBUIL. CT.

[ View AH Principals(4) ]

oeeii

IMPORTANT: Thart fa mora ptMpah for thia bufinaM that aia no1 ahown hara.

Agent Summary

AoaraNviw NEUBERT, PEPE A MONTETTN. P.C.

Agart Bwlnaaa AMraa* IM CHUACK ST.. UTH FL, ATTN: AlOY K. WEW9TEIN, EBO. NEW HAVEN, CT. OHIO

Agtnt Ratklanea AOdraa* NONE

htlpiy/«wYw.concore-ioU.ct.gov/CONCORD/onltne7inBPubnclnquby&iids9740 1/1
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Business Inquiry

Filing History
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htlps://www.concord-sols.ct.gov/CONCORD/Publiclnquiry?eid-9748&businesslD=0572... 11/15/2019



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Richard Schreiner , hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. .

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on November 14. 2018 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That David L. White. President & CEO <may list more than one person)
is duly authorized on behalf of Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. to enter Into contracts or agreements with
the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certiiy that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire vmI! rely on this certificate as evidence that the persori(s) listed above currently occupy the
posrtion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

A Scki-emt
Dated: Mav 1. 2020

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Richard Schreiner

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



Certif.ofAuthorityforCorp.orLLC
Final Audit Report 2020-05*01

Created: 2020-05-01

By: Kathleen Grassmann (kgrassmann^ctstranslt.com)

Status; Signed
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ACOKD* CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATGtMuoorrrrY) '

07/24/2019

TW3 CERTIFICATB IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF WFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIDHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATB DOES NOT APRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, E3CTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CBRWFICATE OP INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING IN8URER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT! d Uw carltficste hoMar b sn ADDmONAL INSURED. th« poUcy(lM) must have ADDinONAL INSURED provblons Of be endorMd.
II SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, aubjact (o the tcrrm and condlUons of tha policy, certain poltcba may rtguh* m endortemant A statement on
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Effective date of this Endorsement: 24-Jul«2018
This Endorsement Is attached to and forms a part of Policy Number: W1C280180301
Syndicate 2623/823 at Lloytfs. Referred to in this endorsement as either the "Insurer" or the
"Underwriters"

BLANKET ADPmONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT - GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE ONLY

This endorsemertt modifies Insurance provided under the folkwing;

Miscellaneous Medical Professional LtabHlty, Oeneral Liability, Advertising Liability,.
Products/Completed Operations Liability and Employee Beneflfe Liability Insurance -
Combination Claims Made and Reported/Occurrence Basis

In conslderatior) of the premium charged for the Policy, ft Is hereby understood and agreed that solely In
relation to coverage provided urxier INSURING AGREEMENTS, A. 2. General Liability, Ctause II.
PERSONS INSURED Is amended to Include any entity for which the Insured has assumed such ertity's
(lability In a written contract or agreement (an 'Additional Insured*) solely for services rendered by or on
behalf of the Named Insured end that Is also named in a Claim If all of ttw follcwing conditions are met:

1. The Claim against the Adcflttonal Insured seeks damages for which the Insured has assumed
(lability;

Z  This Irtsurance applies to such liability assumed by the Insured;

3  The obligation to defend the Addlb'onal Insured has also been assumed by the Insured In the
same contract or agreement;

4. The allegatlorrs In the Claim and the inrormatlon known about the Incident are such that no
conflict appears to exist between the Interests of the Insured and the Interests of the Additional
Insured;

5. The Addtiona! Insured and (he Insured ask Underwriters to conduct and control the defense of
that Additional Insured against such Claim and agree that Underwriters can assign the same
counsel to defend the Insured and the Additional Insured;

6. The AddKlonal Insured agrees In writing to:

a. Cooperate with the Underwriters in the Investigation, settlement or defense of the Claim;

b. Immediately send UrKlerwriters copies of any demands, notices, summonses or legal
papers received In connection with the Claim;

c. Notify any other insurer whose coverage Is availatXe to (he Addilional lnsured; and

d. Cooperate with Underwriters with respect to coordinating other applicable insurance
avaltable to the Additional Insured; and

7. The Addtlonal Insured provides Underwriters with written authorization to:

a. Obtain records and other information rtiated to the Claim; arxl

b. Conduct.and control the defense of the Additional Insured in such Claim, All other terms
and conditions of this Policy remain urx^hanged.

M
Authorize Representative

E02293 Page 1 of 1

032015 ed.
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Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.
MISSION It is the mission of CIS to increase the availability of cost-

effective and efficient transportation services to
transportation disadvantaged individuals and communities.

VISION With an empowered team of professionals, CIS adds value
to the services provided to our customers and improves the
lives of the people we serve.

VALUES CUSTOMER FOCUS
INTEGRITY
RESPECT
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GS&B
GARVEY. STEELE BANCROFT ; .

Certified Public Accountcinls & Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To ihe Board ofDircciors ^
Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.
Trumbull; Connecticut

Report on flnanclal statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization) which comprise the statement of fmancial position as of September 30. 2019 and the related
statements of activities and cosh Hows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's responsibility for the financial stnlcincnts
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant lo the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatcmeni, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arc free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain aiidit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. 'The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the utiditor considers Internal control relevant to the cniity'.s preparation, and fair presentation of the fmancial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's Internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial sialemems referred to above present fairly. In all material respects, the financial position
of Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. as of September 30, 2019 and the changes In Its net assets and its cash
flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles gcnerolly accepted in the United States of
America.

PBPMFni IMDATIDM Oenison Avenue.PObox397,Mystic. Connecticut06355- p860.536.9831 • f 860.536.0716ruw\vnr\JU\\Uf-M IL^IN 211 Kennedy Drive.Pulnom. Connecticut 06260- p 860.928.3184 • / 660.928.5201
independently owned member 400 West Cummingi Pork. Ste 3400. Woburn. Moisachuselts 01001 ♦ p 060.536.9631 • f 978.232.9625

WWW.GS0-CPAS.COM



Other mailer

Our audit was conducted for Ihc purposes of forming an opinion on ihe financial statements taken as a whole. The
schedule of functional expenses is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infomiation directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion Ihc information is fairly stated in all maicrial respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
wliole.

Mystic. Connecticut
January 10. 2020



COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30,2019

ASSETS

Curreni assets

Cash

Cash • restricted

Accotints receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts ofS3,655

Other Receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Fronertv and equipment

Office furniture, fixtures and equipment
Computer equipment

Leosehold improvements

Software

Equipment under capital lease

Less accumulated depreciation

Total property and equipment

Other assets

Restricted cash • dcfcircd compensation
Deposits

Total other assets

Total assets

S  M5.952

25.844

5.857.399

120.000

330,204

218.152

927.025

203,728

628,014

46.733

19.578

50,802

S  6.479,399

2.023,652

(1.359.404)

664,248

70.380

$  7.214,027

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS. INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30,2019

LIADILITIKS AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilidts

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Line of credit payable
Other current liabilities

Total currcol liabilities

Long-term liabililies

Long-term debt, less current portion

Total iong-tenn liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unrestricted

Total linbitilies and net assets

S  2.907.528

305.116

$  3.212,644

132.615

132.615

3.345.259

3,868.768

$  7.214.027

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2019

CHANGE IN LNRESTRICTRD NF.T ASSKTS

BSvynis

Transponafion brokerage
Grant income

Miscellaneous income

investment income

Total revenue

F^xpenses

Program
General and administrative

Total expenses

Change in net assets

Unrestricted net assets • October 1. 2018

Unrestricted net assets • September 30, 2019

S  57.080.274

1.934

4.848

57.087.056

56.359.118

1.331.877

57.690.995

(603.939)

4.472.707

3.868.768

See accompanying notes to financial statements
3



COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30.2019

(603.939)

394,625

4,500

33.459

1.071.404

(118.500)
(225,081)

(44.644)

143.848

655.672

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net u.<tsets

Amounis lo reconcile change in net
10 net cash provided hy operating

activities:

Depreciation und amortization
Lt^ss on disposition of assets
Bad debt e.\pensc
Change in cash -restricted
Change in tKx-ounts receivublc. net
Change in other receivables
Change in prepaid expenses
Change in re.stricled cash • deferred compensation
Change in deposits
Change in accounts payable and accrued cvpcn.ses

Net cash provided by operating aciivi(ie.s

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACnvn iES

Borrowings on copitnl lease from prior year equipment purchase
Repayments on capital lca.sc poyablc
Kepayincnts on long-term debt
BorTOwing.s on line ofcredil
Repayments on line of credit

Net cnsh used in Hnnncing activities

Net decrease in cosh

Ca.sli, beginning balance

(*a.sh, ending balance S 145.952

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OFCASH FLOW INFORMATION

(1.37,27.5

(137.275

(409,450

)

)

)

9,500,000

(I I .200.000)

(2,109,450)

(1,591,053)

1,737.005

Amounts paid during the year for:
Interest 88.402

See accompanying notes to fini-mcial statements
4



coordinated TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OK SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Organization

Coordinated transponaiion Soluiions, Inc. C^he Organization") was organized as a Connecticut not-for-
profit corporation in September 1997. The Organization was formed to enhance the mobility of
transportation for disadvantagcd individuals and coinnmniiics by offering a package of services designed to
promote coordination of service and partnerships between Govcmnient, not-for-profit agencies and for-
profit companies. 'I*he majority of the Organization's revenue was generated in New Hampshire and
Massachusetts.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and
accordingly refieci all significant receivables, payublcs and other liabilities.

Basis of presentation

Financial staterhent presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in its Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-205, Not-for'PioJli Eniities. Presentation oj
Financial Statements, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and
aciivifies according to three classes of net assets: iinresiricted net assels. temporarily restricted net assets
and pcmtanenily restricted net assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid instroincnls purchased with a maturity of tliree months or less
to be cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable

Pursuant to an analysis of open receivables at September 30, 2019 the Organization has established an
allowance fordoubtfiil accounts totaling S3.655.

Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and
a.ssuniplions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses. Actual result.s could differ from those estimates,

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on u functional basis in
the Statement of Activities and in the Schedule of Functional Expensc.s. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited,

Ih99mc |nx jitn'us

The Organizjition is exempt from federal iiiconte taxes pursuant to Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction under
Section 170 (bXIKA) and has been classified as an organization other than a private foundation under
Section 509(a)(2). 'Hie State of Connecticut also recognizes the Organization's tax-exempt status, and
therefore, there is no provision for income taxes in these financial statements.



NOTK 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and emiipmeni

Propert)' ond equipment arc recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using Ihc straight-line method over
the estimated-useful lives of the underlying asset. Tliosc lives range from five to seven years,

intangible assets include organization costs, loan origination fce.s and soAwarc development costs. The
costs related to these items have been capitalized and arc being amortized over the estimated useful lives of
tlic underlying intangible assets, which range from three to five years.

Advertising-

The Organization uses advertising to promote its programs among the audience it serves. The cost of
advertising is expensed as incurred. During the year ended September 30. 2019 the Organization incurred
S66,8S I of advertising costs.

Siibseouent events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through January 10. 2020, the date the financial s(atemcnt.s
were available to be issued.

NOTE 2- REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $750,000 revolving line of credit available with a large commercial bank. Bank
advances on the credit line are payable on demand and carry a variable interest rule. S.OOVo at September
30, 2019. There wore no amounts outstanding on the revolving line of credit at September 30,2019.

NOTE 3 - COM MITM ENTS

The Organization entered into an operating lease for office space in Trumbull, Connecticut during August
2015. At April 1.20)7. the Organization increased the square footage being leased by oppro.ximately 3.IU0
square feet. The amended lease colls for monthly base rent payments that increase at certain intervals
duritig the lease term, which term c.xpires in August 2026. In addition to the base rent payments, the
Organization is responsible for their proportionate share of the common allocabic expenses of operating titc
facility. The lease contains two options to extend the lease after the August 2026 expiration date. Each
option is for five additional years.

On April 29, 2016. the Organization entered into an operating lease for office space in Concord. New-
Hampshire commencing May I. 2016. The lease begins with a period of non-occupancy from May I, 20)6
until December 31, 2016, during whiclt the Organization made unifomi monthly payments of 52,000.
During the non-occupancy period, the Organization had the option to elect to begin a three-year lease
cotnmcncing January I, 2017 or 90 days after the election has been made, whichever was later. The
Organization entered into a three-year lease agreement efTcctivc March 1, 2017. with said lease expiring at
the end of February 2020.



NQTF 3 - COMMITMENTS fConeinucd)

Amount charged to rent expense for the year ended September 30> 2019 totaled $213,330.

Future minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2019 are:

175,903

162.510

163,864

178,761
180,115

373.773

Year ending September 30,2019
2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter
Total future minimum lease payments S 1.234,927

NOTE 4 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organi^taiion to concentration of credit risk consist
principally of cash and accounts receivable. I'he Organizaiion's cash balances are insured by the Federal
Depositary (nsuronce Corporation up to S250.000 (except for transaction accounts that are fully insured).
The Organization's concentration of credit risk with respect to the accounts rcccivoble is limited due to the
large number of customers and their dispersion across geographic areas. At September 30. 2019 the
Organization had approximately 174.000 of cash in excess of insurance coverage on deposits.

NOTE S-LONG-TERM DEDT

At September 30,20)9, long-term debt consisted of the following:

$586,497 i^uipnicnt cupital lca.so nolc payable to a brgu

eommercbl bonk, "fhe note b paynbk in nxinthfy

uvstallinenls ufS 17,452. including inieiesi at 4.52^0.

maturing in Febniao'2020. S 86.281

S66.878 Fxiuipment capital tease note payable to a targe

conink:reial bank. The note 'ts payable in ntonihb'

utslallments orSI8.)39, including intcnrM at 4.825o.

maturing in Ivfarch 2021. 314,382

S250.000 Smtll Business F.>press I'rogrum loan

from Connecticut Department ofKconomic nnd

Community Devclopn«nt. The note b payable in

monthly insialttticnts of $1,034. including interest

at 2.0^s, nvituring in October 2022.

Total longdenn debt

Irss nmount reported us shon-lemi

Amnunl rcpoitcdas lung-term

37.068

4.-)7.7.t|

005.116}

$ 132,6(5



NOTE S - LONG-TERM DEBT fContinued)

Future minimum payments under this note are as rollou-s:

Year ended September 30,
2020 S 305.1 16

2021 119,330

2022 12,253

2023 1,032

2024 and thereafter

437,731

The equipment notes are collateralized by the equipment purchased by the notes.

rJQTE ̂  - RE;TIHKMt:r*T PUPJS

The Organization authorized a deferred compensation program pursuant to section 457 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Under the plan, select employees arc able to contribute a portion of their compensation to
the plan. There were no contributions to the plan during the year ended September 30, 2019. Amounts
held in the account are restricted for future benefit payments, but are subject to creditor risk. At September
30,2019 there was approximately S20.000 in the account.

The Organization also established a retirement plan in accordance vviih section 403(b) of the Internal
Revenue Code. All employees arc eligible to participate in elective salary deferrals upon becoming
employed. However, employees must be ofa minimum age of twenty-one and must complete one year of
service to be eligible to receive Company matching contributions. The Organization made 543,468 in
matching contributions during the year ended September 30,2019.

NOTE 7 - CONCENTRATIONS

Approximately 63% of the Organization's luiul revenue was related to three (3) contracts.

NOTE 8 - CASH -RESTRICTED

At September 30. 2019, the Organization had 525,844 in restricted ca-sh. The ca.sh is restricted to fund
future iincinpioymeni claims, as the Organization is self-funding their unemployment liabilities instead of
paying into the State Unemployment 1-und.

NOTE 9 - ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS

The Organization has adopted the provisions of PASD, Accounting Standards Codincation 740 - Im-vmc
Taxes. ASC 740 requires that a tax position be recognized or dcrccognizcd based on a •inore-likely-tlian-
not' threshold. This applies to positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Tlie Organization
does not believe its financial statements include, or reflect, any uncertain tax positions, Tax years from
September 30, 2016 through the current year remain open for examination by the Federal and stale ta.x
authorities.



COORDINATED TRANSPORTATION SOLUTIONS, ENG.
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

General

and Total

Program Administrative Expenses

Purchased transpurtation S 48.669.921 S  - $ 48,669,921

Salaries and wages 4.804.583 847,868 5,652,451
Payroll taxes 362.901 64,041 426,942

Employee benefits 455.590 80.398 535,988

Depreciation and amortization 335,431 59,194 394,625
Professional fees 96,030 16.945 112,965
Occupancy 324,990 57,351 382.341

Telephone and internet 303,153 53.498 356,650
Computer consultants 63.973 11.289 75.262
Temporary help - • -

Office supplies and expense 45.084 7,956 53,040

Advertising and marketing 56.823 10,028 66,8.51
Insurance 105.743 18,660 124.403

Travel and entertainment 72.626 12,816 85.442
Postage 17,568 3,100 20.668

Repairs and maintenance 267,917 47.280 315,197

Dues and subscriptions 26,647 4,702 31,349
Donations and gifts 22,440 3,960 26,400

Equipment rental 37.385 6,597 43,982

Property taxes 15.355 2.710 18,065
Payroll service 15,066 2.659 17.725

Conferences and meetings 15,726 - 15,726
Printing 7,889 1.392 9,281
Interest expense 88.402 - 88,402
Interpreter services 37,768 - 37,768
Training and professional development 87,009 I5,.355 102,364
Dad Debt Expense 3,825 675 4,500
Bank charges 19.284 3.403 22,687

Total $ 56,359.118 S  1.331.877 $ 57,690.995
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Board of Directors

Executive Committee
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President & Chairperson

David L. White

CEO, Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.

Vice Chairperson

Diane Pivirotto

Treasurer

Reginald Knowlton

Secretary

Richard Schreiner

William Hanson

Douglas Holcomb

Board Members William McDonald

Stephen Martin

Maria Pantano



Jeff DiGirolamo
35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120, Trumbull, CT 06611

Phone: (203)736-8810 - Fax: (203)375-0510 - Email: Jdigirolamo@ctstransit.com

Coordinated Transportation Solutions- Trumbull, CT April 2010 to
Present

April 2019 to Present

Chief Financial Officer

Chief of Staff, Finance & Administration, Contracts and Procurement, Transactional Quality and Human Resources.

Prospect Health Management - Manchester, CT July 2018 to April 2019
Operations and Finance Data Analytics

Analyze performance of contracted physicians as compare to industry standards. Extract data from multiple source and run
through self-built, model that identifies outliers. Managed 300-t- provider performance analytics in three regions for the
Prospect Medical Holdings Physician Practices.

Travelers - Hartford, CT January 2014 to July 2018
Director of Finance IT

Responsible for SIB in budgeted expense for several IT organizations. Senior financial leader to five Sr. Executives with
responsibility for eBusiness, Infrastructure, End-User Computing. Business Intelligence and the Digital Workforce.
Accomplished the transformation to Office 365 under budget and negotiated several vendor contracts to contain cost upon
renewal.

Access Health CT - Hartford, err December 2012 to February 2014
Expense Director

Responsibilities
Manage, monitor and develop S153M budget that is in compliance with Federal and State Grant requirements

Accomplishments
Negotiation of cost transfer between state agencies

Negotiated and implemented NetSuite ERP complete with CRM and Bl.

Skills Used

Analytical, Managenient

Prudential - Shelton, CT December 2011 to December 2012

Chief of Staff

Responsibilities
COS toClO

Accomplishments
Built Staff Retention Plan, Lead in Gartner Benchmark Analysis

Skills Used

Financial Management, Product Management

United Healthcare - Hartford, CT 2007 to 2011
InteHm CFO

Responsibilities
Directed 2.1B budget for Operations. Managed a staff of 4 Directors overseeing 15 Financial Analyst. Capacity planning



for 26.000 PTEs

Accomplishments
Reduced forecasting process to IS days.

Restructured financial group into segment support organizations Managed
COBRA unit and resolved assumed financial audit findings
Outsourced COBRA production to IRE.

Skills Used

Outsourcing

Reduction in Force

Anthem - North Haven, CT 2006 to 2007
IT Finance Director

Responsibilities
Directed virtual staff in building and managing lOOM budget for all claim application

Accomplishments
Balanced cCommercc budget

Skills Used

IT Project Management

Aetna, CIGNA, MassMutual, Unlcare • Various 1982 to 2006
Financial Management Director

Responsibilities
Operational Finance, SBU Finance. Regional Finance, Medical Expense Analysis

Accomplishments
Managed financial production staff of 70 PTEs to Financial Professional and Accounting staffs

EDUCATION

Bachelor's in Business

CCSU

SKILLS

• Vendor Management, eCommerce, Leadership, Board Room Experience (10+ years)
• Operation (10+ years)
• Logistics (2 years)
• Tax Preparation
• Financial Reporting (10+ years)
• Management (10+ years)
• Payroll (2 years)
•Strategic Planning(10+ years)
•Word (10+ years)
• Accounting (10+ years)
• Budgeting (10+ years)
• Cash Management (10+ years)
• Financial Modeling(10+years)
• Microsoft Office (10+ yean)
• Quickbooks (2 years)
• Finance (10+ years)
• Financial Analysis (10+ years)
• ADP

AWARDS

Friend of Glastonbury Youth Person of the Year



January 2014
Recipient of the 2014 FOGY (Friends of Glastonbury Youth) of the year for starting the Teen Action Group at St.
Paul Church.



Jana Hunlder, M Ed, CCTM
35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120, Trumbull, CT 06611

Phone: (203)736 -8810 - Fax: (203)375-0510 - Email: jhuDkler@ctstraDsit.com

Coordinated Transportation Solutions (CTS) Jul 2017-Present
Chief Customer Officer

Leads the core Medicaid/Medicare non-emergency transportation Business Development efforts in multiple
states, Public Relations and Maiketing initiatives of CTS. Develop and implement public relations strategy for
organization, as well as manage and maintain company website and social media presence; Collaborate with
President & CEO to identify customers in new areas and implement cohesive marketing plan to reach
potential leads; Drive the business development and growth plans in alignment with our strategic plans for
CTS. Serves as member of the Executive Leadership Team.

Proposal Writer (CTS) Get 2016-JuI 2017
Develop proposals and presentations from conception to production and delivery; including research,
communication with various business areas and levels of management and outside vendors; assist in Business
Development and Marketing initiatives.

Berkshire Community Action Council, Pittsfleld, MA 2015-2016
Director of Transportation & Planning

Management of daily operations of BCAC transportation and the BerkshireRides community and
employment transportation project including: Service Design and Implementation; Community Outreach;
Budget Monitoring; Identifying and Writing for Funding; Creating Data Collection and Analysis Systems;
Preparation and Delivery of Reports to Elected Officials, Fundcrs, BerkshireRides Board of Directors, and
Community; Insuring Compliance with ADA and other Stale and Federal Transportation Standards;
Transportation Related Education and Presentations; Staff Oversight; Participation in Agency Wide
Initiatives and Management Team Meetings

Community Transportation Assoc., Washington, D.C. & North Adams, MA 2004-2015
Project Manager, Berkshire^des, Inc.

Oversight and management of a 501(C)(3) community transportation organization with a $1.4M budget,
located in North Adams, Massachusetts, including: Community Outreach; Budgeting; Marketing;
Contracting; Program Review; Procedure Development and Implementation; ADA Policy; Grant Writing;
Training; Technical Assistance.

National Transit,Institute, Rutgers University, New Brunswick, NJ 2008-2013
Faculty, Managing Community Mobility
Lead national training seminars in mobility management for transportation and human services professionals
and advocates. Keep course material current.

Town of Florida, Florida, MA 2000-2004
Town Administrator

Working under the direction of the Select Board to oversee and support all town departments and boards;
Represent town and Select Board on county and state-wide committees; File reports with state departments;
Liaison to Town Counsel.



Williams College, WilliarastowD, MA 1991-2000
Budget & Finadce Director, Department of P.E., Athletics & Recreation
Develop and reconcile departmental budget; Purchasing; Oversee payment of all invoices; Coordinate post
season tournaments and represent college at both home and away tournament events.

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH 1986-1991
Assistant Business Manager, Department of Athletics & Recreation
Collect, balance and report on all department receivables; Develop cash handling policies; Liaison to internal
and external audit teams; Calculate and submit payroll documents for all part time employees; Schedule
facilities for outside group use; Provide technical computer support for coaching staff; Recruit, train and
supervise student employees.

Education

Massachusetts College of Liberal Arts, Master of Education, Supervision Concentration
University of New Hampshire, Bachelor of Arts, Anthropology

Community Service

Elected & Appointed Offices, Town of Florida, MA
Town Auditor, Gabriel Abbott Memorial School Committee, McCann Technical School
Committee, Assessor, Council on Aging, Yankee Rowe Decommissioning Community
Advisory Board

Other Volunteer and Committee Involvement

Gubernatorial Appointment to the Massachusetts Statewide Council on Coordination and
Community Transportation

MPO-Transportation Advisory Committee and Nominating Committee, Berkshire Regional
Planning Commission
Northern Berkshire United Way Board Vice President for Community and Special Grants
Berkshire Transitional Assistance Advisory Board Member

Federation for Children with Special Needs Parent Educational Advocate
Parent Liaison, Early Intervention of Northern Berkshire
Patient Partner and Marathon Team, Children's Hospital Trust
CARE Campaign, North Adams Regional Hospital
EcuHealth Care Board of Directors

School Governance Council Abbott Memorial School and McCann Technical School

Berkshire Chamber of Commerce Leadership Program Graduate 2007
Member of Berkshire Chamber of Commerce

Member of Williamstown Chamber of Commerce

Founding Member of S.T. A.R [Stand Together Act Responsibly]
Treasurer of Small Town Administrator's Association

MA Congressman John Giver's Northern Tier Economic Development Project and EcoTourism
Subcommittee member

Sweatshop Labor Committee, Williams College
President's Grievance Council, Williams College
Williams College Employee Credit Union Board of Directors
Frog Lotus Yoga Reception Volunteer



Notaiy Public



Robin Lynch
35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120, Trumbull, CT 06611

Phone: (203)736-88l0 - Fox: (203)375-0510 - Email: r1ynch@ctstransit.com

Coordinated Transportation Solutions Inc. 11/18/15-Present

Chief of Service Delivery 12/28/19- Present

Responsible for all strategic and executional provider relations functions including but not limited to
maintaining and expanding the entire GTS transportation provider network and leading all Provider
Relations services, (approximately 400 transportation providers projection for 2019). Serve as a member of
the Executive Leadership Team (ELT).

Essential Duties and RespoDsibilltics include the following:

•  Maintains end ensures execution of all transportation provider contracts including contract
and fee negotiations with providers. Ensures consistency between Medical Transportation
Providers' conirocts and CVS' contracts with corporate customers.

•  Develops and maintains a contract monitoring system to measure provider and overall
network performance.

•  Monitors contract compliance with particular emphasis on requirements for insurance.
DMV, Stale Medicaid program and Board of Education (for all lines of business).

•  Responsible for (and the management oO all routine transportation provider performance
checks and onsitc inspections.

•  interfaces with Leaders of the Contact Centers, Compliance, and other key stakeholders
regarding transportation provider network capacity and performance.

•  Develops strategies to meet key performance targets and implement future enhancements that
align with company goals and mission vision and values

Director of Provider Relations 12/1/17- 12/28/18

Manager of Provider Relations 11/18/15-12/1/17

Personal Health Care Provider/ Careglver 2011 to 2014

Senior Manager, Vendor Management, Provider Network Management 2004 to 2011
HealthNet of the Northeast

Leadership responsibility for the contractual and operational aspects of HcalihNet's delegated medical
vendor networks and IPAs. Oversaw all aspects of pre-contracting, implementation and operational
performance and compliance. Managed service costs while ensuring that vendor arrangements were
administratively sound and successfully operationalizcd.

• Ensured that vendor arrangements were compliant with all state and federal regulatory requirements and
NCQA mandates in conjunction with the delegation oversight department, legal and other key
constituents.

• Developed business cases analyses and specifications to remedy implementation of new and operational
challenges with delegated vendor contracts following Product Development Lifecycle (PDLC) standards.

• Implemented internal audits to capture issues prior to any State or Federal audits.
• Provided sound, proactive, fact-based legal advice.
• Developed business case analyses and specifications to remedy implementation of new and operational

challenges with delegated vendor contracts following Product Development Lifecycle (PDLC) standards.
• Staffing, succession planning, compensation and performance management of management teams.



Key Accomplishments
• De-deiegated Connecticut Medicaid dental, vision and transportation vendors.
• De-delegated New York Medicare IPAs.
• Designed an ongoing educational program to ensure staff was trained on all State and Federal laws, rules

and regulations.
• Worked directly with CMS on the respond to all Corrective Action Plans (CAPs) imposed by CMS.
• Responded to all HIPPA breaches occurring both internally and externally.

Senior Buyer-Outlet Stores 1993 to 2003
Warnaco

Menswear. Intimate Apparel, Fragrance. Calvin Klein Sportswear and Bridge

• Directed overall operation of 130+ stores.
• Prepared fiscal year budget and finance reports.
• Profitably managed $160 million in sales.
• Determined item selection and sales plan.
• Managed Open to Buy and Markdowns.
• Worked with foreign plants and distribution center.s.
• Negotiated contracts with outside vendors including real estate.
• Supervised staff of 20+.
« Analyzed business plans and strategies.
• Marketing.

Education .

Business Administration-Sacred Heart University. Fairfield, CT

Core Competencies

Project Management Contract Negotiations Influencing Others
Committed to Results Regulator Experience Customer Satisfaction
Medical Vendor Management Implementation Proficiency Executive Interface



Jeffrey Mathena CISSP merging proven information/cyber security experience withai c a, uiour ... BUSINESS ACUMEN TO DEUVER SECURE OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Coordinated Transportation Solutions CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER 2017 - Present

Responsible for the management and development of CTS's technology infrastructure. Information Security, Telecommunications.
Vendor Management, and the delivery of Information Technology. Serves as a Liaison with alt Medicaid programs under contract,
caseworkers, corporate customers and plan personnel regarding IT and Technology requirements.

•  Drive root-level resolution to reoccurring and highly impactful services issues and concerns.

•  Manages the development and maintenance of Information Security policies, procedures and compliance.

•  Identify new technology solutions and work closely with internal business partners to forecast future needs and develop cost
effective strategies aligned with business objectives.

•  Hire and supervise a staff consisting of IT professionals.

MassMutual/CyberSN CYBER INTELLIGENCE UNIT & GLOBAL SECURITY MONITORING DEUVERYLEAD 2017 - 2018
Serve as the delivery lead for the Global Security Monitoring projects that reside in a complex hybrid cloud environment.

•  Ensure execution is aligned with best practices and standards as defined by the Center of Excellence and solutions deployed
are secure as per Enterprise Information Risk Management standards.

•  Accountable to drive delivery of quality solutions tied to clearly understood business requirements and goals.

»  Collaborate within and across CtO channels to identify delivery efficiencies, leverage resources, reduce costs, improve
support capabilities and ensure all teams are successful.

•  Gauge the cultural impact of changes and develop mitigating approaches with SOC leadership to overcome challenges.

Tyrion LLC CHIEF INFORMATION SECURITY OFFICER & CTO 2016 - 2017
Established the company's strategic and technical roadmap, ensuring the AWS cloud architecture/environmeni/development efforts
were secure by following strict InfoSec frameworks, drove the deliverables and product development of the team to meet the tight

timelines introduced by a fast-moving entrepreneurial environment.
•  Combined thought-leadership and practicality to balance operational effectiveness and security controls.

•  Designed, implemented, and maintained a secure, fault tolerant, highly scalable, sub-second latency cloud based live
streaming media solution, collaborating closely with the DevOps and iOS engineers to ensure optimal integration and

performance with strict information security controls.

•  Helped build a productive, cohesive, collaborative engineering team by recruiting talented resources, providing guidance,
fostering teamwork, promoting constant communication and leading by example.

TicketNetwork INFORMATION SECURITY OFRCER (ISO) & VP IT 2009 - 2016
Developed highly skilled InfoSec and IT teams that enabled rapid business growth through adoption of continuous improvement, agile
development methodologies, following OWASP secure development guidance, embracing innovation and continual collaboration with

the business. Leveraged and secured hybrid cloud (PaaS, laaS, SaaS) solutions that supported rapid business growth.
•  Designed, implemented and maintained an Information Security framework/program based on COBIT/NIST and a

Governance Risk & Compliance (GRC) program to maintain PCI Level 1 compliancy.

•  Developed, implemented and continually Improved security architectures for the hybrid cloud environment that included the
end-to-end security for the in-house private cloud and public cloud (AWS & Azure).

•  Planned and managed complete data center move between states no business Interruptions or impact to release schedule.
Negotiating over $1M in one-time costs and $200K in annual hosting costs.

•  Scaled the eCommerce environment allowing the Infrastructure to handle a 200% increase In traffic/sales volume.
•  Defined and managed the IT operating and capital budget of $4M and reduced operating costs by 7% over 2 years.

Uncoln Financial Group DIRECTOR, INFORMATION TECHNICAL & APPLICATION SECURITY 2008 - 2009
Combined the Technical and Application Security teams into a single cohesive group that defined the security policies for the entire
company and reviewed all Application Development efforts to ensure there were no security risks or vulnerabilities.

•  Implemented Application Security Reviews for internally developed software ensuring that security requirements (OWASP
Top 10) were met and all application vulnerabilities were eliminated/mitigated prior to release.

•  Defined and updated all policy/standards and the architecture of the security infrastructure including enterprise architecture,
web based (perimeter), remote access, network, server and desktop defenses/monitoring/alerting.

•  Oversaw the capital and expense budget of $3M and presented it to the CFO & CTO during annual planning.

SPX Precision Components DIRECTOR, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 2006 - 2008
Transformed a total outsourced IT structure to an internal self-sufficient team. Spearheaded the standardization and Implementation
of a single ERP system between sites.

Jeffrey Mathena Page 1



•  Built an internal IT Team resulting in improved issue resolution metrics and cost savings of over 1S% annually.

•  Developed a detailed long term and short-term strategic IT roadmap and project plans for multiple locations, integrated
infrastructures, and telecommunications.

•  Led business process reengineering. including gathering/documenting requirements, workflow/s and developing

specifications for current processes and future processes {AS-IS & TO-BE).

Victorinox Swiss Army DIRECTOR, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 2002 - 2006
Managed entire ERP upgrade efforts from JO Edwards to SAP, a two-year effort that included defining RFP's, handling vendor reviews,
presenting to the parent company in Switzerland, and project management of the entire upgrade process.
• Managed annual IT budget (expense and capital) of $3M and reduced costs by an average of 10% year-over-year.
•  Led transformation of application development team from supporting JOE (RPG) to SAP (ABAP).
• Migrated from three separate PBX systems to a single unified, secure VoIP Cisco system.

Goip.com CHIEF TECHNOLOGY OFRCER 2000 - 2002
Gobi, Inc. DIRECTOR. INFORMATION SYSTEMS 1999 - 2000
Uncoln Rnancial Group SENIOR NETWORK ENGINEER 1995 - 1999
MassMutual/lntegrated Systems Resources IT NETWORK & SYSTEMS CONSULTANT 1993 - 1995
Aetna Ufe and Casualty SENIOR SYSTEMS ENGINEER 1990 - 1993
United States Marine Coips Reserve LANCE CORPORAL 1990- 1994

DEDICATED TO CONTINUOUS EDUCATION

MS, Computer Information Systems (Concentration in Security) - Boston University

BS, Information Technology/Business Minor (Magna Cum Laude) - University of Massachusetts
Certified Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) - (ISC)^

Lean Executive certificate - University of Tennessee

Finance for the Technical Executive certificate - MIT Sloan School of Management

Chief Range Safety Officer (CRSO) - NRA

Certified Rifle Instructor - NRA

TECHNOLOGY ANOINFOSEC LEADERSHIP SKILLS THAT BUILD VALUE AND ORIVE GROWTH

Technology Alignment and Strategic Planning

Enterprise Budget Management

Internal Reporting, Metrics, KPI's, Analytics

Project Life Cycle Management

Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery

Vendor Relations and Management

Scalable IT Infrastructure Design and Support

Business Impact Analysis

eCommerce Solutions

Data Center Design and Management

Cross-functional Team Development, Leadership &

Mentoring

ERP Systems (SAP, JDE, Oracle)

SDLC (Software Development Life Cycle) improvement

o Agile

o  Kanban

o Waterfall

Governance, Risk, and Compliance (GRC)

o  PCI

o HIPAA

o  Sarbanes-Oxley

o Gramm-Leach-Bliley

information Security Management Frameworks (COBIT,

NIST, ITIL)

Information Security Policy Development
Information Security Awareness and Training

Jeffrey Mathena Page 2



Edward E. Platt Jr.

35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120, Trumbull, CT 06611
Phone: (203)736-8810-Fax: (203)375-0510 - Email: eplatt@ctstransit.com

Coordinated Transportation Solutions (CTS) Oct 2019-Fresent
Chief Compliance Officer

Oversight and Accountability for the CTS Compliance Program and Department, New Client Implementations,
Information Technology, Project Management, and Client Account Management

We Do Life Together - A Division of ICES, Inc.
Director of Shared Services Sept 2018-Oct 2019

Oversight of Finance, Project Management Office, Digital Media/Marketing, and Operations for ICES, Inc. an
Innovative Human Services Company, where WE DO LIFE TOGETHER...

Coordinated Transportation Solutions (CTS) Sept 2014-Sept 2018
Vice President of Operations

Responsible for directing the corporation's transportation brokerage operation including Medicaid, Special
Education and Worker's Compensation lines of business.
•  Directs the overall operation of the Provider Relations team which includes developing and managing a

relationship with over 250 transportation providers, involved in contract negotiations with the provider, and
ensures the providers comply with policies and procedures and state regulations when transporting any
Medicaid and Medicare members, special education children and workers compensation cases.

• Oversight of the organization's health plan members, transportation providers, and medical providers call
center. Additionally, developed call center and quality assurance programs, company policies and
procedures and corporate employment practices along with directing the staff needed to maintain service
levels as required by contractual obligations.

•  Hire and supervise a staff of management and non-management employees consisting of approximately 80
employees.

Coordiuated Transportation Solutions (CTS) 2013 - Sept 2014
Director of Compliance

Oversight of CTS' Compliance Program and Compliance Team (Reporting, Quality Assurance, and
Training). Ensure CTS remains compliant with ail state, federal and contractual obligations.
•  Chair CTS'Compliance Committee.
•  Assist in the preparation, creation, editing and reviewing of all internal policies and procedures to ensure

they meet customer expectations while meeting regulations.
• Oversight of reporting needs, ensuring compliance with our quality measurements and training of all our

associates.

•  Provide interpretive and technical support for all departments on regulatory matters.



Am WINS Rx 2012 to 2013

Operations General Manager

Oversight of Pharmacy Benefit Management (PBM) Operations Team (15 associates - IT, Enrollment, Plan
Building and Clinical Team)

Health Net Inc. 2006 to 2011

Contact Center Director

Full responsibility for and oversight of the Medicare Contact Centers enterprise wide as well as the local CT
and NJ Medicaid Contact Center (Team of three Managers, 13 Supervisors, and over 350 front-line call
center staff).
•  Accountable for (and achievement oO departments overall budgeting, forecasting, and financial

adherence

•  Experienced in audit preparation - State, Federal, and Commercial employer group driven
• Monitored State and Federal compliance/regulations
•  Ensured all appropriate service standards were developed, enhanced, and maintained
•  Exceeded industry standard customer retention measurements through preparation, attention to details

related to quality and training needs, on-going feedback mechanisms that allowed for long term
improvement initiatives

Health Net Inc. 2003 to 2006

Operations Manager

Direct oversight of the Northeast/Arizona Medicare and Medicaid claims and contact centers. Accountable
for meeting timelines, productivity, statistical analysis, auditing, budget preparation and all other service
goals.

Sr. Financial Analyst 2001 to 2003

Responsible for providing data reporting for the entire Operations department's performance trending,
production and analysis, as well as development of standard and ad hoc reports as needed.

Scheduling and Forecasting Coordinator 2000 to 2001

Accountable for compiling, maintaining and managing the Call Center's Aspect eWorkforce Management
Software Scheduling, Forecasting and trending tools.

Education

US Navy Electronics School 1989
Gateway Community Technical College/Sacred Heart University 1993 to 2003
Villanova University (Six Sigma Green Belt Certification Course) 2010



David L. White, CCTM
35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120« Tnimbull, CT 06611

Phone: (203)736*8810 - Fax: (203)375-0510 - Email: dwhlte(Sctstronsit.com

President and CEO, Coordinated Transportation Solutions Inc. 1997 to Present

Founded GTS in September 1997 as a not-for-profit corporation to enhance coordination of transit services
for transportation disadvantagcd Individuals and communities. Efforts have been focused on Medicaid,
Welfare to Work and Worker's Compensation transportation management services, general transit
consulting projects and transit related software development activities. Clients include some'of the largest
insurance companies in America, as well as small rural transit providers. Manage network of over 100
providers throughout the northeastern United Stales providing Worker's Compensation, Special Education
and Medicaid non-emergency transportation services.

CIS has been chosen by the Community Transportation Association of America as a modal for innovative
approaches to Medicaid non-emergency transportation delivery solutions.

Specific planning efforts undertaken that are relevant to the proposed project include:

1. Welfare to Work Transportation Plan for Eastern Connecticut (under contract to
Windham Regional Community Council) Plan Development 1998 - Implementation
1999-2002

2. Welfare to Work Transportation Plan for Walcrbury Region (under contract to
Waterbury Transit District) 1998-1999.

3. State of Arkansas United We Ride State Action Plan (under contract to the Arkansas
State Highway and Transportation Department) Plan De.sign 2005-2006. Selected for
plan implementation in 2006 subject to available funding.

Executive Director, Human Service Transportation Consortium 1994 to 1997

Directed activities of regional transportation program headquartered in Bridgeport. CT for the elderly and
persons with disabilities. Managed stafTof 75 employees and 50 vehicles. Operation scheduled in excess of
1000 trips per day with an annual operating budget of nearly $3,000,000. Led efforts to diversify service
offerings of company that included special education, employment related and Medicaid non-cmcrgency
transportation services.

Director of Operations, Housatonic Area Regional Transit District 199l!o 1994

Directed the activities of an operations department of 75 employees operating 50 vehicles serving an eight-
town region in northwestern Connecticut with both fixed route and specialized transportation services.
Managed all facets of departmental operations including maintenance, labor relations, facilities
management and new business development.

Director of Special Projects, Housatonic Area Regional Transit District 1990 to 1991

Acted as contract compliance ofTlccr for contracted transit operations in eight-town region. Led the effort to
transition the provision of transit services from a contracted operation to one managed and operated by
Transit District staff. Identified and procured first ever Transit District Operations Facility and led effort to
rehabilitate and expand facility.

Manager, Capital Projects Division, New York City Transit Authority 1989 to 1990

Assisted with the management of the Transit Authorities city, state and federal capital funding programs.



Deputy Administrator^ Nonvalk Transit District 1985 to 1989

Managed Transit district's specialized transportation services for the elderly and disabled. Participated in
Labor negotiations and all other facets of general Transit District Administration.

Executive Director, Milford Transit District 1980 to 1985

Directed the activities of small urban transit system. Began first ever transportation service for persons with
disabilities. Named government official of the year by Milford Independent Disabled Persons Committee in
1983. Doubled the size of the fixed route system serving the city. Led initial efforts to rehabilitate and
expand city's train station and commuter parking areas.

Management Intern, United States Department of Transportation 1977 to 1979

Provided program oversight and administration for a number ofUSDOT Highway Safety and Urban Mass
Transit funding programs.

Memberships

Board of Directors. Community Transportation Association of America 1996 to present
Vice President of the Board 2000 to 2002

President of the Board 2002 to 2004
Executive Committee, Connecticut Association of Community Transportation 1996 to 2004
Member, Northeast Passenger Transportation Association 1998 to present
Member, National Medical Transportation Committee-CTAA 1999 to present
Member, Valley Council for Health and Human Services 2005 to present
Past member, Executive Board Valley Council for Health and Human Services 2006 to 2008
Member, Valley Chamber of Commerce 2005 to present
Member, Milford Historical Society 2004 to present

Education

BA Political Science - Washington and Jefferson College
MP A - Urban Affairs - the American University
CCTM - Community Transportation Association of America

1976

1979

2001



Carol lacopino

35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120, Trumbull, CT 06611
Phone: (203)736-8810-Fax: (203)375-0510 - Email: ciacoplDO@ctstransit.com

Coordinated Transportation Solutions CTS Current
Account Manager

•  Responsible for Account Management of Medicaid Health plans in NH
•  Community outreach, expanding and strengthening relationships with medical providers,

shelters, clinics, treatment facilities and human service agencies
•  Point of contact for problem resolution

Well Sense Health Plan 2015-2019

Director of Operations/Program Performance
• Well Sense Health Plan program performance oversight including contractual and regulatory

compliance

•  Troubleshool ail program concerns to achieve optimal performance, utilizing key performance
indicators, member and provider feedback

•  Initiate continuous improvement of program process and staff development
•  Represent WSHP externally as necessary with and as a backup to the ExcculiveDirector
•  Responsible for Member Advisory Board and Regional meetings
• Operational Lead on all file exchanges and implementations with the NH Department of Health

and Human Services

New Hampshire Department of Health andHuman Services 2014 -2015
Administrator Client Services

• Official representative for the Division of Client Services in communications with the
legislature, provider organizations, hospitals, and other intemal and external stakeholders to
increase collaboration, ensure access to services and resolve complex issues.

•  Direct daily operations of the Client Service Center for all DHHS programs, the
Medicaid transportation unit and the statewide document control unit

• Manage the NH Medicaid enrollment center vendor contract
•  Supervise 75 staff members with overall responsibility for perfomiance management
•  Lead on implementation of Managed Care communications for NH Step 2 Populations and

the New Hampshire Health Protection Program/Premium Assistance Program 2016

Meridian Health Plan New Hampshire 2012-2014
Director of Operations/ Grievance Coordinator

•  Responsible for the daily operations of Meridian Health Plan NH
•  Ensured compliance with alt contractual obligations
• Managed all contract reporting

•  Supervision of staff and liaison between all departments
•  Responsible for the MHP Grievance and Appeals process for NH Medicaid members
•  Implementation of strategic goals and business plan including financial planning
•  Oversight on communications, mailings to members and providers, member materials
•  Responsible for brand awareness and outreach to key constituent groups



ACS / A Xerox Company 2011-2012
Sr. Field Representative

•  Responsible for enrolling and educating medical providers to successfully navigate the
claims process, eligibility determination, and business systems in the Medicaid
environment.

•  Creating and sustaining solid partnerships with health care providers, professional
associations and state agencies. {New Hampshire and Massachusetts provider hospitals).

•  Technical assistance with emphasis on growth and development of the provider
community that serves Medicaid members.

New Hampshire Healthy Kids Corporation 1998-2010
Vice President of Program and Policy 2005 to 2010

• Managed 20 customer service representatives and 5 department supervisors. Responsible for
all aspects of customer service and daily operations for the State of New Hampshire's
Children's Health Insurance Programs, including engaging of external partners, application
assistance, eligibility screening and enrollment, outreach and data tracking.

•  Project management liaison on health insurance design and contract negotiation
• Managed workflow for a variety of processes in a multi-faceted environment utilizing

process mapping to enhance overall operation.

•  Implemented State and HMO provider contract deliverables with fiill reportingrequircments
•  Experience with health insurance benefit design, utilization and analysis.
• Worked collaboratively with the Department of Health and Human Services and the

Center for Medicaid Services (CMS) and multiple business and human service
organizations to secure comprehensive customer service for families and providers.

•  Developed statewide outreach training program and electronic manual for 42 designated
agencies (hospitals and community health centers) providing application assistance for
uninsured families. Created customized in reach and outreach programs for human service,
school and health care agencies.

•  Hosted statewide trainings and presentations several times per year for over 100
participants, primarily representatives from hospitals and health care provider sites.

•  Created tracking system for quality assurance purposes to enhance the training of
community partners.

•  Liaison for National Grant Project under Robert Wood Johnson for pilot sites in New
Hampshire 1999 to 2006,2008.

•  Participated on a National level with other SCHIP (Slate Children's Health Insurance
Programs) in presenting and researching best practices.

•  Responsible for hiring, employee retention and yearly review process for staff

Community Relations Director (NHHK) 1998-2005
•  Developed the organization's strategic plan for education and technical assistance in the field
•  Implemented Presumptive Eligibility with pharmacy providers across the state
•  Supervised five Field Coordinators and all statewide outreach activities and technical assistance.

•  Responsible for developing and nurturing community relationships through community
partners including schools, social service agencies, health care providers, childcarc
providers and others.

• Worked closely with the state SCHIP Director and the Division of Family Assistance to
monitor policy and process issues concerning Medicaid and CHIP coverage.

•  Co-chaired the workgroup responsible for developing a plan for the centralization of the
application process for 42 agencies designated as qualified entities. Developed a resource
manual for eligibility training for community partners.



Education/Career Related Studies

•  Disabilities - P.D.D., ADHD, LD, University Of New Hampshire 1998

•  Strength-Based Practice with Children and Families - Solution Oriented Approach,

University of New Hampshire Department of Social Work 1997

•  Associate of Science, Chemical Dependency, Summa cum laude Kcene State College 1992

•  2018 CHIE Certified Health Insurance Executive- America's Health Insurance Plans

(AHIP) Leadership program



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Jc^) Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

David White President and CEO $200,000 l.O $2,000

Jana Hutdder Chief Customer Officer $105,000 l.O $1,050

Robin Lynch Chief of Service Delivery $110,000 1.0 $1,100
Ed Platt Chief Compliance Officer $132,000 1.0 $1,320

JefT Mathena Chief Information Officer $132,000 1.0 $1,320

Jeff DiGirolamo Chief Financial Officer SMO.OOO 1.0 $1,100

Carol lacopino DHHS Account Manager $80,000 10 $8,000



J«fTr«y A. Meyers

Commissioner

Henry D. Lipman
Director

DEC04'l3fifill:47 DAS

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF,MEDICAID SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271 -9422 I-S00-8S2-3345 Ext 9422

Fax:603-271-»43l TDD Access: 1-500-735.2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

December 2, 2019

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Medicaid Services, to
exercise a renewal option and amend an existing sole source agreement with Coordinated
Transportation Solutions, Inc. (Vendor # 271968), 35 Nutmeg.Drive, Suite 120, trumbull. CT 06611, to
continue managing statewide non-emergency medical transportation for Medicaid Fee-for-Seryice
members, by increasing the price limitation by $318,672 from $13,237,738 to $13,556,410 and by
extending the completion date from December 31. 2019 to June 30. 2020, effective upon Govemor and
Executive. Council approval. 55% Federal Funds, 44% General Funds and 1% Other Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 28,
2017 (Item #A). as amended (Amendment #1) and approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
February 21, 2018 (Item #6); and as amended (Amendment #2) and approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on December 19, 2018, (Item #10).

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2020, with authority to adjust
amounts within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95^7-470010-3099 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY. OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, NHHPP Trust Fund

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $1,207,200 SO $1,207,200

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $6,208,574 $0 $6,208,574

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $3,032,370 so $3,032,370

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $0 $0 $0

Subtotals $10,448,144 $0 $10,448,144
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05'95-47-470010-2358 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC

OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, NH Granite Advantage Health Care Trust
Fund

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729.
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 $0 $0 • $0

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 $0 $0 $0

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 ' $19,297 $0 $19,297

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004369 $19,297 $36,934 $56,231

Subtotals $38,594 $36,934 $75,528

05-9S47-470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, Medicaid Care Management

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729
.•Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $271,620 $0 $271,620

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $1,510,247 $0 $1,510,247

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $859,784 SO $859,784

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 '  $109,349 $274,948 ,  $384,297

Subtotals $2,751,000 $274,948 $3,025,948

05-95-47-470010-7051 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OFC MEDICAID SERVICES: OFC OF MEDICAID SERVICES. CHILD HEALTH INSURANCE PROGRAM

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $0 $0 $0

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $0 $0 $0

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $0 $0 $0

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004058 $0 $6,790 $6,790

Subtotals $0 $6,790 $6,790

TOTALS $13,237,738 $318,672 $13,556,410
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because a previous amendment increased the total contract value
by more than ten percent (10%). The Department is in agreement with renewing services again, for six
(6) months of the remaining (4) years while the Department re-procures the same services through the
competitive bidding process, with the possibility of the Department requesting another limited extension
should the re-procurement of services not be completed by June 30, 2020.

The purpose of this request is to ensure up to 2,400 Medicaid members in the State's Fee-For-
Service delivery system continue to have access to non-emergency transportation to all Medicaid-
covered services and/or receive assistance with paying for travel costs to appointments. State Medicaid
programs are required to provide necessary and appropriate transportation, including the provision of
non-emergency ambulance and wheelchair van services, for l>eneficiaries to travel to and from their home
or nursing facility to Medicaid-covered services

Outside of this contract, individuals in the Medicaid Care Management Program currently receive
non-emergent medical transportation services through one (1) of the three (3) Medicaid Managed Care
Organizations that adrninister benefits to most Medicaid members in New Hampshire. The Department
must provide non-emergency medical transportation services to Medicaid members who remain in the
Medicaid Fee-For-Service delivery system, as required by federal statute 42 CFR 431.53. Coordinated
Transportation Solutions, Inc. manages Medicaid's non-emergency medical transportation program for
all Fee-For-Service members. The transportation benefit offers non-emergency medical transportation to
eligible members to attend Medicaid-covered services to medical, behavioral health and dental
appointments. In addition, the contract covers pharmacy pick-ups, and non-emergency physical transfers
from one facility to another.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. manages the non-emergency medical transportation
program through a variety of statewide transportation vendors, which includes taxi wheelchair vans, non-
emergency ambulances, vans and stretcher vans. The network is spmetimes required to take members
to out-of-state facilities, as well.'

In addition, Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. maintains a Call Center in Concord, New
Hampshire, to schedule transportation for members as well as answer member and provider questions.
The Call Center has a bilingual staff who are fluent in English and Spanish and have access to
interpreters for other languages as needed. Members who have a hearing and speech impairment can
access transportation services through a special phone line.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. also manages the Family and Friends Mileage
Reimbursement program, which is a reimbursement program that allows members to request financial
reimbursement for mileage to covered Medicaid services.

The following groups of individuals receive services under this contract:

Individuals in the Medicaid Spenddown Group;

Newly-eligible Medicaid recipients eligible for retroactive;

Individuals enrolled in the Health Insurance Premium Program;

Individuals who are eligible through Presumptive Eligibility; and

Individuals receiving Veterans Administration benefits with Veterans Administration
income.

The original agreement included language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General Provisions, that
allows the Department to renew the contract for up to five (5) years, subj^t to the continued availability
of funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the
Governor and Executive Council.
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The agreement was extended for one (1) of the five (5) years in Amendment #2. approved by the
Governor and Executive Council on December 19. 2018 (Item #10).

The Contractor's effectiveness in delivering services will be measured through monitoring of the
following performance measures;

•  Non-Emergency Medical Transportation Scheduled Trip On-Time Provider Rate;

•  Non-Emergency Medical Transportation Scheduled Trip Provider No Show Rate;

•  Provider Site Visit Summaries, Provider Network and Provider Termination Reports;

•  Utilization of Mileage Reimbursement Program; and

•  Call Center Monitoring including the average speed to answer, average hold time, abandoned
calls.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, New Hampshire Medicaid
recipients in the Fee-For-Service delivery system may not have transportation to and from non-
emergency Medicaid covered appointments and sen/ices. If non-emergency transportation services are
not available to Fee-For-Servlce participants, the Department would be in violation of federal statute 42
CFR 431.53, assurance of transportation for Medicaid recipients to Medicaid covered services.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 55% Federal Funds from the US Department of Health & Human Services.
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medical Assistance Program, Medicaid; Title XIX, CFDA
#93.779; Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 1905NH5MAP; 44% General Funds and 1% Other
Funds (Medicaid Expansion).

In the event that the Federal and Other Funds become no longer available, General Funds will
not be requested to support this program.

espectfully submitted,

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Dcpartnicnl of lleallh and Human Seruices' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities (or citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Commissioner

December 4,2019

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal notification that the Department of Information Technology (DoIT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source contract amendment with Coordinated
Transportation, Inc. (Vendor# 271968) Trumbull, CT as described below and referenced as DoIT No. 2017-
04IC.

The purpose of this request is a sole source cpntract amendment with Coordinated
Transportation, Inc. to continue to provide Medicaid fee-for-service participants with
access to non-emergency transportation to Medicaid covered services.

The funding amount for this amendment is not to exceed $318.672, increasing the current
contract from $13,237,738 to $13,556,410. This amendment also extends the completion
date from December 31,2019 to June 30,2020, and shall become effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval through June 30,2020.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services' submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

nisGoulet

DG/kaf

DorT2017-041C

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DoIT

"Innovative Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medlcaid Fee-for-Service Participants

State of New Hampshire
^  Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment UZ to the Transportation Management for
Medlcaid Fee-for*Servlce Participants Contract

This 3rd Amendment to the Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-for-Senrice Participants
contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #3") is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Coordinated'Transportation Solutions. Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at 35 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120, Trumbull, CT. 06611.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 28, 2017 (Item A); and as amended (Amendment #1). approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #6); and as amended (Amendment #2), approved by the Governor
and Executive Council on December 19, 2018 (Item #10), the Contractor agreed to perform certain
services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18. the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #3 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Delete P-37 Subject: Transportation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Program
(NHHPP) Premium Assistance Program (PAP) and Fee-For-Services (FFS) Participants (RFB-2017-
OMBP-02-TRANS) and replace with the following:

Subject: Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-For-Service Participants (RFB-2017-OMBP-
02-TRANS)

2. Form P-37, Block 1.7. Completion Date to read:

June 30, 2020.

3. Form P-37. Block 1.8, Price Limitation to read:

$13,556,410.

4. Delete Exhibit B, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment in its entirety and replace with Exhibit
8 - Amendment #3, Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

5. Delete Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Sheet - Amendment #2 in its entirety, and replace with Exhibit
B-1 Transportation Rates - Amendment #3.

6. Delete Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements (v.6/2017) and replace with Exhibit K,
Information Security Requirements (v.5 10/09/18).

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. Amendment «3 Contractor Initials'f^^
RFB.2017.OMBP.02-TRANS.01.A03 Page i of 3 Dale j



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medicaid Fee-for-Service Participants

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Date / 1

n h3}
Date

State of New Ham;

Department of H(
shire

th and Human Sen/ices

Hen

Dr tor

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.

Name: v,, k/KK

CBO

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of County of on l^oJ' 13^ 2^*^ . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

kiafbltrm FVl- Gfn'i>y{v^^
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

KATH1£EN M. GRASSMANN
NOTARY PU8UC OF CONNECTICUT

My Commission Expires: My Cominlnlon Expires M1B022

V, ''V

Vr
\n

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. Amendment #3

RFB-2017-OMBP-02-TRANS-01-A03 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medlcaid Fee-for-Servlce Participants

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

11
Date Name:

Title: ,

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Slate of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting).

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. Amendment «3

RF8-2017-OMBP-02-TRANS-01-A03 Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medicald Fee^for-Services Participants

Exhibit B - Amendment

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, block
1.8, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

2. This Contract is funded with:

2.1. 11% General Funds.

2.2. 6% Other Funds (Medicaid Expansion), and

2.3. 83% Federal Funds from the US Department of Health and Human Services,
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Medicaid Title XIX, Medical

Assistance Program. Federal Funds are contingent upon meeting the
requirements set forth in the Catalogue of Family and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA)# 93.778.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the. services in Exhibit A. Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may
jeopardize the funded Contractor's current and/or future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

4.1. The Contractor will be reimbursed an Administrative Capitation Rate
Per Member/Per Month (PMPM) in accordance with Exhibit B-1 - Amendment
#3, Transportation Rates, for Medicaid Fee-For-Service (FFS) participants.

4.1.1. The Contractor will be reimbursed the PMPM Capitation Rate monthly for
each FFS participant eligible during the previous month in accordance
with Exhibit B-1 - Amendment #3. Transportation Rates. The PMPM
Capitation Rate will be processed on the fifteenth (15th) day of the month
for the previous month and will be paid within thirty (30) days.

4.1.2. The Contractor shall refund the Department capitation payments made
for deceased members upon the Department's request.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit monthly invoices for Actual Transportation Costs by
the fifth (S*^) business day of the month, for the previous month, along with the
an Excel spreadsheet, in an agreed upon format, listing each transportation
service provided by procedure code in accordance with Exhibit 8-1 -
Amendment #3, Transportation Rates, with the cost of service.

4.2.1. Invoices and Excel spreadsheets for Actual Transportation Costs must
be emailed to the Department's Non-Emergency Medical Transportation
(NEMT) electronic mailbox (email address will be provided).

4.3. The Contractor shall submit transportation encounters through the NH Medicaid
Management Information System (MMIS) in the Accredited Standards
Committee (ASC) XI2 837P claim format.

/
CoonJinated Transportation Sorvtcos. inc. Exhlpit B - A/ncndmeni #3 Conlraclor Inillals,
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New Hampshirie Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medlcaid Fee-for-Services Participants

Exhibit B - Amendment #3

4.4. The Contractor shall receive capitation payment information from MMIS using
the ASC X12N 820 Professional transaction or other supplemental payment
reports.

4.5. The State will make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice. The Contractor
will keep detailed records of their activities related to DHHS-funded programs
and services.

4.6. A final payment request shall be submitted to the Department no later than forty
(40) days after the contract Form P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

4.7. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation
as identified in Exhibit A. Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance
with any State or Federal law. rule or regulation applicable to the services provided,
or if the said services have not been cdrnpleted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

6. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the
Goverriorand Executive Council.

Coordinated Transportation Services. Inc. ExWWt B - Amendment #3 Contractor initials ^
RFB-2017.0MBP-TRANS-01-A03 Page 2 Of 2 Date M - j ̂



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for Medicald Fee For Service Participants

Exhibit B-1 - Amendment #3

Transportation Rates

1. The capped Administrative Rate to manage transportation beneHts for Medicald Fee-for-Service

(FFS) participants shall be at a rate of $3.38 Per Member Per Month (PMPM).

2. The Fee-for-Service (FFS) rates for direct transportation costs for Medicaid FFS participants shall be

in accordance with the table below:

Fee-.for-Service Transportation Rates Paid to CIS Providers
AOIOO Taxi/Livery Base (includes first 5 miles) 10.00

S02IS Taxi/Llvery Mileage (after mile S) $1.2S/mile

50215 three T/L transportation providers in the

CTS Network are on a different mileage fee

schedule (from first mile)

$1.60/mile - Adventure Transportation

$1.50/mlle - Abba Transportation

$1.2S/mlle " Nashua Express

A0130 Wheel Chair Accessible Base $27.35

A1030 one WC provider is on a different base

fee schedule

$30.00 " AMR

SG209 Wheel Chair Mileage (from first mile) $2.46/mile

S0209 one WC provider is on a different mileage

fee schedule (from first mile)

$3.00/mile - AMR

A0426 Advanced Life Support Ambulance base $1S4.23-$175.00

AOllO Public Transportation Actual Cost

A0170 Parking Fees, Tolls. Lodging Actual Cost

A0390 Advanced Life Support Ambulance

Mileage (from first mile)

$2.60

A0428 Basic Life Support Ambulance Base $145.00

A0380 Basic Life Support Ambulance Mileage
(from first mile)

$2.60

T2005 Stretcher Van Base (includes first 5 miles) $100.00

T2049 Stretcher Van Mileage (after mile 5) $2.46

T2003 Unloaded miles Mileage rate by mode, above, calculated
based on the number of miles between a

provider's base location over twenty miles and
the covered individual's pickup location

T2007 Walt Time: Paid in 15-minute Increments** Fee Range: $12.00 to $25.00 per hour

A0090 Friends & Family Mileage Reimbursement $0.31/mlle current, subject to adjustment by
NH DHHS

••Walt Time Is paid:

1) When dollar amount is less than paying the mileage for driver to return to base.

2) For ambulance trips when member stays on the stretcher during the appointment.

Exhibll B-1 -Amendmeni #3

RFB-2017.0MBP-02-TRANS-01-A03

Page i of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of MIST Publication 800-61, Corhputer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidentiaT information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End-User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Lest update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Iniiiala
DHHS Information

Security Requirements 19— I <2
Page 1 of 9 Date LLZ-iAT ^



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network.and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can t>e used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information

except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5. USI update 1{V09/18 Exhibil K CQnlraciorlniHalaO^ W
DHHS Information

Security Requirements . ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. In response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has.an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

rVIETHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that- said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site rnust be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ce/lifJed ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Lasi update 10/09/18 ExNbilK Contractof Inltlals^^^ ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sut>-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ail electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with ail applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibil K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certiftcalion for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no. longer in use. electronic media containing Slate of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and Nvill provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.'

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless othenvise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Departrnent
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will hnaintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5, Lesi updale 10/09/18 ExhWl K Contfactorlnftloi
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users.in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Slate of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that Is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

Page 7 of 9 Date.
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data , must be maintained, used and

>  disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. ' Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V5. Last update 10/09/16 Exhibit K Contractof InHlaisV^^
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification Is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable,-in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPfivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

Page 9 of 9 Daia.
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DEC06'18 OftS

JefTrty A. Mey<r»
CecRtnlisioner

Hcory D. UptniA
Dirtcisr

state OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF MEDICAID SER y/CES

129 pleasant street. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9422 l.SOO-852-3345 Ext. 9422

F»x;603-27|.«43l TDD Acccm; 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

November 27. 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Office of Medicaid Services, to
exercise a renew/al option to an existing sole source contract with Coordinated Transportation
Solutions. Inc. (Vendor# 271966). 35 Nutmeg Drive. Suite 120. Trumbull. CT06611. to manage
the statewide non-emergency medical transportation for approximately 2.100 Medicaid
recipients remaining in the NH Medicaid Fee-for-Service (FFS) program, as approximately
56,650 of the 58.750 individuals, per monthly average, originally covered under this contract will
now receive services under Medicaid's Managed Care Organizations (MCO) beginning January
1, 2019, by increasing the price limitation by $257,292 from $12,980,446 to an amount not to
exceed $13,237,738, and extending the contract completion date from December 31. 2018 to
December 31. 2019. effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval. The additional
funding for state fiscal year 2019 an6'2p20 is 56% PederaT Funds. 43% General Funds, and 1%
Other Funds.

The original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 28.
2017 (Item #A), as arhended (Amendment #1) and approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #6).

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Year
2019 and are anticipated to be available in 2020, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further approval from the
Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-47-470010-3099 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY. NHHPP Tfusi Fund (94% Federal I 6%

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

ModiFted

Budget

2017 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $1,207,200 $0 .  $1,207,200

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $6,208,574 $0 $6,208,574

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $3,032,370 $0 $3,032,370

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004159 $0 $0 $0

Subtotal $10,448,144 SO $10,448,144



His Excellency. Govemof Christopher T. Sununu
And the Hortoratie Cound)
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O5-95-47-47001O-2358 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY. OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, NH Granite Advantage Health Care Trust

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2017 101t500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 $0 SO SO

2016 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 $0 $0 SO

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 SO $19,297 $19,297

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47003332 so $19,297 $19,297

Subtotal $0 $30,594 $30,594

05-95-47-470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY. Medicaid Care Management (50% Federal
/ 50% General)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729
-  Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $271,620 $0 $271,620

2018 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providefs
47004050 $1,510,247 $0 $1,510,247

1

2019 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $750,435 $109,349 .  $859,7841

2020 101-500729
Medical Payments to

Providers
47004050 $0 $109,349 $109,349|
Subtotal $2,532,302 $218,698 $2,757,000

Contract ■

Total
$12,980,446 $257,292 $13,237,738

EXPLANATION

This request is to amend and existing sole source contract. The contract is sole source |
because a previous amendment increased the total contract value by more than ten percent j
(10%)! The purpose of this request is to ensure the approximately 2,100 individuals who are in
the Medicaid FFS delivery system continue to have access to non-emergency transportation to
all Medicaid-covered services. State Medicaid programs are required to provide necessary and
appropriate transportation, including the provision of non-emergency ambulance and wheelchair
van services, for beneficiaries to travel to and from their home or nursing facility to Medicaid-
covered services.

Outside this contract, individuals in the Medicaid Care Management Program currently
receive non-emergent medical transportation sen/ice through one of the two Medicaid managed
care organizations that administer benefits to most Medicaid members in New Hampshire.
However, New Hampshire Medicaid FFS is required to offer this service to those Medicaid
members who remain in the FFS delivery system because of their eligibility category.
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As of January 1. 2019. approximately 46,000 Medicaid recipients in the NH Health
Protection Program's Premium Assistance Program Previously covered under Ihe contract will
now be covered under the Granite Advantage Health Care Program through one of the State's
contracted MCOs. The use of same-day enrollment vyill allow for another 10.000 individuals in
the FFS program formerly covered by this contract to be covered by MCOs. leaving
approximately 2,100 individuals covered by this contract.

The non-federal share of costs for the Granite Advantage Health Care Program are
funded from a combination of revenues: Liquor tax revenue transferred from the alcohol abuse
prevention and treatment fund; the insurance premium tax; contributions from the State's
insurance high risk pool assessment and other funds as allowed by RSA 126:AA:3.

This Contractor was originally selected through a competitive bid process. As referenced
in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, the parties have the option to
extend the contract for up to five (5) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of- the Governor and
Executive Council, The Department is exercising the option to renew the contract for one (1)
year, reserving their right to extend the term of the contract up to an additional four (4) years.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request. New Hampshire
Medicaid recipients in the Fee-for-Service program may not have access to transportation to. or
home from, their non-emergent medical appointments covered by the Department of Health and
Human Services under the New Hampshire Medicaid program. In addition, the Department
would be in violation of federal requirements to assure transportation for Medicaid recipients to
Medicaid covered services.

Geographic area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: Funding for the entire contract is 84% Federal Funds (CFOA #93.778,
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services; Centers for Medicare and fi^e'dicaid Services.
Medical Assistance Program. Medicaid; Title XIX). 10% General Funds, and 6% Other Funds.

In the event that Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Approved by:

eniV u. Liornan

irect

'HA
leTTrey /y- Meyt
immissioner

Th9 Ocptirimcnt of Health end Human Sendees' Mission is to join communities end fomilics
in fjroviding opportunities forcitisons to achiavo health end independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARtME^^■ OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Haun Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 603-27M516 TDD Acceis: 1-800-735-2964

www.nh.gov/doit

Denis Coulel
Commiisiontr

December 5,2018

Jeffrey A. Meyers, Commissioner
Depsrtment of Health and Human Services
Slate of New Hampshire
129 pleasant Street
Concord, NH.03301

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This letter represents formal noiiRcation that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source contract amendment with Coordinated
Transportation, Inc. (Vendor# 27t968) Trumbull, CT as described below and referenced as DolT No. 2017-
04IB.

The purpose of this request is to enter into contract renewal option for a sole scarce
conlractamendment with Coordinated Transportation, Inc. to continue to provide Mcdicaid
fee-for-scrvicc participants with access to non-emergency transportation to Medicaid
covered services.

(

The funding amount for this amendment is not to exceed J257,292.00, increasing the
current contract from $12,980,446.00 to $13,237,738.00. This amendment shall become
cfTecilvc January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019. upon Covemor and Executive
Council approval.

A copy of this letter should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services* submission
to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

.Sincerely,

^trr Denismis Goiilct

DG/kaf/ck
DolT2017-04lB
cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager, DolT

'Innovotivf Technologies Today for New Hampshire's Tomorrow"



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment U2 to the Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

This 2"^ Amendment to the Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants contract
(hereinafter referred to as 'Amendment #2') dated this 6th day of November. 2018. Is by and between
the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"Stale" or "Department") and Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc.. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 35 Nutmeg Drive. Suite 120, Trumbuil.
CT. 06611.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 28. 2017 (ITEM #A). and as amended (Amendment #1) approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on February 21, 2018 (Item #6). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specifted in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the Slate and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-l, Revisions to
General Provisions Paragraph 4. the State may modify the scope of work and the payment schedule of
the contract and extend the contract completion date upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to modify the scope of work, extend the term of the agreement, and
increase the price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE. In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37. Block 1.7. Completion Date to read:

(^cember 31. 2019

2. Form P-37, Block 1.8, Price Limitation to read:

$13,237,738

3. Form P-37, Block 1.9. Contracting Officer or State Agency, to read:

Nathan 0. While, Director.

4. Form P-37, Block 1.10, Stale Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Section 1.5.1. in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in its entirety.

6. Delete Section 2.8. Contractor Call Center in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in its entirely, and
replace with:

2.8. Contractor Call Center. The Contractor shall operate a NH specific call center located in NH.
and in operation Monday through Friday, except for state approved holidays. The call center
shall be accessible through a statewide toll-free number. The call center shall be staffed with
courteous personnel who are knowledgeable about Medicaid FFS to answer member Inquiries.

7. Delete Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Sheet - Amendment flf1 in its entirety, and replace with
Exhibit 8-1 Capitation Rate Sheet - Amendment 02.

Coordinated Trenaponeilon S^utlora. Inc. Amendment 02
RFe-2017-OM8P-02-TRANS PigelOl3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date Name: I'W'rt
Title: J;>K'<=«-Vor

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.

"■yaq! rs
Date ■ Name:

Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

Slate ofCo>>Tty>f.'tL;^ County of ^ on r ■ y j . before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose, name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above. " -

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Jf\- Grassmayi^
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:
'••i.

•  ■ ,"s

Coordln«lM TtsmportaUon Soluilons. Inc.' A/nendmem 92
RFB-2017-OM8P-02-TRANS P«g«2o(3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form substance and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; • (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Coordinated Transponatloo Solutions, inc.
RFB-2017-OMBP-02-TaAN$

A/nendme/n 02
Poflo 3 oI 3



New Hampshire Department of. Health and Human Services,
Transportation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Plan
(NHHPP) Premium Assistance Program (PAP) Participants
Fee For Service (FFS) Participants

Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Sheet - Amendment U2

1. Capitation Rates, "per member / per month' amounts, for calendar year 2017,
calendar year 2018, and calendar year 2019 are as specified in Table 1.1 below;

1.1. Table 1.1 - Capitation Rate Table

Year 1

4/1/17-12/31/17

Year 2

1/1/18-12/31/18

Year 3

1/1/19-12/31/19

Eligible
Members

PAP members 48.414
FFS members 11,392

PAP members 49,500
FFS members 12,250

PAP members 0

FFS members 2,100

Per member

per month
rates

$10.06 $10.21 . $10.21

Annuaiize 9 12 12

Operations
Grand total

$5,414,836 $7,565,610 $257,292

Coordinated Trsnsportelion Solutions. Inc.
Exhibit S-t Amendment 02

RFB-2017^M8P-02-Trans

Page 1 oll

Contractor Initial
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STATE OF NEW HAJVIPSHIRE

DEPAJITMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OFMEDICAID SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STRCET. CONCORD. NH 0330)

603-221-9422 ).000-fiS2-3345 EiL 9422

Fm;603-22|^| TOD Acctu; 1400-735-2964

www.dhhi.nb.gov

January 30. 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
amendment with Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. (Vendor # 271966), 35 Nutmeg Drive,
Suite 120. Trumbull. CT 06611, for the management of the non-emergency medical transportation
benefit offered to members of the New Hampshire Health Protection Premium Assistance Program and
Medicaid fee-for-service on a statewide level by increasing the price limitation by $2,540,506 from
$10,439,940 to an amount not to exceed $12,980,446. with no change to the completion date of
December 31, 2018. effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval. The original
contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 23, 2017 (Item #A). The
additional funding is 83% Federal Funds, 12% General Funds, and 5% Other Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Years 2018
and 2019, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with
the ability to adjust encumbrances Ijetween Slate Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without
further approval from the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.

05-95-47470010-3099 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPTOF HHS: OFC
OF MEOICAJD & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, NHHPP Trust Fund (94% Federal / 6%

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004159 $1,207,200 SO $1,207,200

2018 101-500729. Medical Payments to Providers 47004159 $4,864,800 $1,343,774 $6,208,574

2019 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers. 47004159 $2,450,400 $581,970 $3,032,370

Subtotal $8,522,400 $1,925,744 $10,448,144

05-9547470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF HHS: OFC
OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID & BUS. POLICY, Medicaid Care Management (50%
Federal / 50% General)

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget

Increase/

(Decrease)

Modified

Budget

2017 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004050 $271,620 ■  $0 $271,620

2018 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004050 $1,094,580 $415,667 $1,510,247

2019 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004050*^ $551,340 $199,095 $750,435

Subtotai $1,917,540 $614,762 %Z,532.102

Contract Total $10,439,940 $2,640,606 $12,980,446
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EXPLANATION .

This request Is sole source because the increase is greater than ten percent (10%) of the total
contract value. More than ten thousand (10,000) participants are eligible for the service than previously
forecasted. The purpose of this request is to ensure individuals who are members of the New
Hampshire Health Protection Program's Premium Assistance Program and members in Medicaid's
Fee-For-Service delivery .system continue to have access to non-emergent transportation to all
Medicaid-covered services. State Medlcaid programs are required to provide necessary and
appropriate transportation. includir>g medically-necessary, non-emergency ambulance and wheelchair
van services, for t>enericidries to travel to and from their home or'nursing facility to Medlcaid covered
services.

The New Hampshire Health Protection Program is the State authorized program to provide
health insurance coverage to low-income adults who are eligible for medical assistance under Section
1902 (a)(10)(A)(t)(Vlli) of the Social Security Act. Through the second component of the New
Hampshire Health Protection Program, known as the Premium Assistance Program, New Hampshire
uses Medicaid funds to purchase individual health insurance coverage for eligible adults In the form of
Qualified Health Plans. Qualified Health Plans are commercial individual health insurance products
certified for sale on the New Hampshire Marketplace.

The Qualified Health Plans provide ten (10) essential health benefits that are required to be
provided to these Medicaid enrollees. However, the Qualified Health Plans do not provide several
other-services that Medicaid is required to provide to these Medicaid members, in addition to the
essential health benefits. Non-emergent medical transportation is one of those additional required
benefits not covered by the QHPs.

The majority of Medicaid members currently receive non-emergent medical transportation
service through one of the two Medicaid managed care organizationsHhat administer benefits to most
Medicaid members in New Hampshire. However. New Hampshire Medicaid Fee-for-Service is required
to offer this service -to those Medicaid members who are newly enrolled and not yet in an MCO or who
remain in the fee-for-service delivery system because of their eligibility category.

This contractor was selected through a compebtive t>id process. As referenced in the Request for
Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this Agreement has the option to extend for up to five (5)
additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Council.

Since New Hampshire law prohibits the use of general funds to support the New Hampshire
Health Protection Program, no general funds will be used to support the component of this program that
serves NHHPP members. However, ten percent (10%) of this contract cost will be funded with general
funds to support transportation services for Medicaid recipients in the traditional Medicaid fee-for-
service delivery system. Subsequently, the funding source for this entire contract will be 10% General /
84% Federal lp% Other funds. The 'Other Funds' con^t of voluntary contributions deposited into the
New Harhpshire Health Protection Trust fund from the Foundation for Healthy Communities and any
other contributing charitable foundation as outlined in RSA 126-A;&-c and assessments collected by the
New Hampshire Health Plan, as outlined in RSA404-G:2 and RSA 404-G:5-a, IV(b) and (c).

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, thousands of New
Hampshire citizens may not have access to transportation to, or home from, their non-emergent
medical appointments covered by the Deparirnent of Health and Human Services under the New
Hampshire Medicaid program. In addition, the Department would be In violation of federal
requirements to assure transportation for Medicaid recipients to Medicaid covered services.

Geographic area sen/ed; Statewide

Source of Funds: Funding for the entire contract Is 84% Federal Funds (CFOA #93.778, U.S.
Department of Health & Human Services: Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, M^ical
Assistance Program. Medicaid: Title XIX), 6% Other.Funds, and 10% General Funds.
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In the event that Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Approved by;

Hehnm. Jiipman
Direct

(etfrey A hfleyers
commissioner

Thi Dnptrtment ofHttlth *nd Humtn Seniny Mission is 0join communities snd familios
in providing oppoftunidos for eiu'sont to achieve health and independence.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMEf^rrOF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

27 Haren Dr., Concord, NH 03301
Fax: 6Q3-27M516 TDD Access; V800-735-2%4

www.nh.gov/doil

Dents Goulet

Commissioner

February 5. 2018

JefTrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Dcpanmcnt of Health and Human Services
Slate of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Strcti

Concord. NH 0330I0857

Dear Commissioner Meyers:

This lener represents formal notincaiion that the Department of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into a sole source contract amendment with Coordinated
Transportation Solutions. Inc. of Trumbud, CT as described below and ttfercnccd as DolT No 2017-
04IA.

The purpose of this contract amendment is for Coordinated Transportation Solutions.- '
Inc. to continue to provide individuals who arc members of the New Hampshire
Health Protection Plan Premium Assistance Program access to non-emergent
transportation services. Access to non-emergent transportaiiori services will help
ensure individuals are able to attend medical, mental health and olhcr medically
necessary, but not emergent, appointments, including transportation to the pharmacy
to pick up necessary prescriptions. This contract will also provide transportation
services for the remaining Medicaid fec-for-servicc population.

The funding amount for this amendment is $2,540,506, increasing the current contraci
from $10,439,940 to an amount not to exceed $12,980,446 effective upon Governor
and Executive Council approval though December 31, 2018.

A copy of this lener should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Executive Council for approval.

A
cere

Denis Gou

DG/kaf

20I7-04IA

cc: Bruce Smith, IT Manager

'Innovative Technologies Today for Hew Hampshire's Tomorrow'



New Hampshire Department off Health and Human Services
TmnspoftetJon Managemont for NHHPP PAP and FFS PortJciporrts

State of New Hampshire
Department of Keatth and. Human Servfcee

Amendment 01 to the

Transportation IManagement for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants

This l" Amendment to the Transportation.ManagemonI for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participants contracl
(hereinafter referred to as *Amer>dment 01*) doted (his 23rd day of January, 2018. (s by and between (he S(oto of
New Hampshire. Oepartment of Health and Human Services (herei^fter referred (o os (he 'State* or
'Department') and Coordinated Transportation Sotulions. Inc., (hereinafter referred to as the Contractor*), a
rKmprofit corporation with a place of business at 3.5 Nutmeg Drive, Suite 120. Trumbull. CT'. 06611.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the 'ContracT) approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March
26. 2017, ITEM 0A. (he Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon (he terms arvj conditions
specified in the Contracl as amendod.and in consideration of certain sums specified; oryj

WHEREAS, the Stale and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of worlt. payment schedules
and terms and cortditions of (he cortiract; end

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions. Paragraph 16. ihe Slate,may modify the scope of wortt and (he
payment schedule of the contract by wriiten agreement of the parties:

WHEREAS, the parlies agree to Increase ihe price limitation, and

NOW THEREFORE. In consWeraUon of Ihe foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions containod in the
Contract and set forth herein, (he parties hereto agree as follows;

1. Amend Form P-37. Block 1.8,10 increase Price Limitation by $2,540,506 from $10,436,940 to read:
$12,980,446

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read E. Maria Relnemann, Esq.. Direclor of Contracis and Procuremenl.

3. Amend Form P-37. Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9330.

4. Delete Exhibit B-1 Capiiation Rale Sheet and replace with Exhibit B-l Capilolion Rate Sheet -
Ameryfment 01.

5. Add Exhibit K. OHMS Information Security Requirements.

Coonlnciad TrwnpofUtloo SoMioRs. inc. Amtnonent i i
Rf6-20ir-OwaP-O2-TnANS Pago I (^3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Trvntportatlon Man«9emont (or NHHPP PAP ond FFS ParticlpBntB

Thi» emendment sholl bo effectivo upon tbe date of Governor and Executive Council epproval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF. Iho partiee have set their harrde as of Iho date written below.

<1

Slate of New Hannpshire
Department of Health end Human Service

0^

Date / Name: pCrt/* p. L-i oho.*;
Title; VV-crlctJ

Coordirtated Trertsportailon Solutlor^s. Inc.

Oate Name: t--
Title:

AcKnowledoemeni of Contractor's signeture:

State of County of FfliP'fieici on t>®^ore the underwgned officer.
personaDy appeared the person identified directty above, or saUsfacl'orily proven to be the person whose name is
igned above. arKt acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Pubfic u^Oustite uf ttie Peace

Name and Title of Notary o» Justioo uf the Poooe

My Commission Expires: KATHl££H M. ORAS^
HOTAW W0UC OF CON»> •
k:. ;„».un!Ml»Elp(ru 'C-.:!K7?.-

Coofdinated Trxmportstton Sctuiions. inc. '/vnendmeniai
RFD-20l7-OM8P-O2-TftAKS Pop* 7 el 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transpoctatlon Managemont for NHHPP PAP and FFS Participanta

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this ofTtce. is approved as to form, subslance. and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Name

Title:

I hereby ceniV that the foregoing Amendmont was epprch^ad by the Govimor end Executive Courtdl of the State
of New Hampshire at the Meeting on;- (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Dale Name:

TJtle:

CoonfinitBd TransporUtlon Sdutians. Inc.
RFe-20ir-0M8P42-TRANS

Afflvnornom ai

Page 3or3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Plan
(NHHPP) Premium Assistance Program (PAP) Participants
Fee For Service (FFS) Participants

Exhibit B>1 Capitation Rate Sheet • Amendment #1

1. Capitation Rates, 'per member / per month* amounts, for calendar year 2017 and
calendar year 2018 are as specined in Table 1.1 below:

1.1. Table 1.1 - Capitation Rate Table

Year 1

4/1/17-12/31/17

Year 2

1/1/18-12/31/18

Eligible
Members

PAP members 48.414
FFS mertibers 11,392

PAP members 49,500
FFS members 12.250

Per member

per month
rates

$10.06 $10.21

Annualize 9 12

Operations
Grand total

$5,414,836 $7,565,610

Coooiinatee TrsnsportsOon Solutions. Inc.
ExhlbH6-l

RFB-2017-OMBP-02-Trans

Page l ol i

Conireaof ^

Daw: ̂ /tJfi j /9



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human'Services

Exhibit K

DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

V Confidential inlornialion: In addition to Peraflraph W of the General Provisions (P-37)'for tho purpose of this
SOW. the Department's Confidential informaUon includes any end ell information owned or managed by the
Stale of NH • created, received from or on behalf of the Oepartmoni of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed In the course of porformlng contracted services • of which collecUon. disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed by state or federal law or fegulaUon. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Personal Health Information (PHI). Personallyldentiflable information (Pd). Federal Tax information (PTl).
Social Security Numbers (SSN). Payment Card Industry (PCi). end or other Mrisitive and confidenilel
InformaUon.

2. The vendor will meintein proper security conlrots to protect Department confidential information coUected.
processed, managed, and/or stored In the delivery ol conPected services. Minimum expectations include;

2.1. Contrectpr Shall not store Or transfer data collected in connection with the services rendered
under this Agreement outside of the' United Slates. This irKiudes backup data and Disaster
Recovery locations.

2:2. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Oepartment confidential mtormatlon throughout the
Information lifecycla. where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use. storage end secure
destnicUon) regardless of the media used to store the data (i.e., tape. disk, paper, etc.).

2.3. Maintain appropriate authenticalion and access consols to contractor systems that collect, transmit.or
store Department confidential information v^ereapplicable.

2.4. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Oepartment confidential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops. USB
drives, as wen as when transmitted over public networks like the internet using current Industry
standards and best practices for 6Por>g encryption. .

2.5. Ensure proper security monllorfng capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can
impact Stale of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.6. Provide security awareness and education for its emptoyees. contractors end sub-contractors'in
support of protecting Oepartment conftdentialinformation

2.7. Maintain a documented breach nollficailon and incident response process. The vendor will contact the

Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional email

addresses provided in this section, of a confldeinllol infonnation breach, compulor security Incident, or
suspected breach which effects or Includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the

State-of New Hampshire network.

2.7.1 .'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45. Codeof
Federal Regulatlor>s. 'Computer Security Incident* shaD have the same meaning 'Computer
Security Incident* in section two (2) of NIST Putslicatlon 600-61, Computer Security Incid^l
Handling Guide. Nallorul Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department of Commerce.

Broach nolificatlons will be sar^ to the ftilowing emai) addresses:

2.7.1.1. DHHSChleflnformallonQniceftadhhs.nh.OQv

2.7.1.2. DHHSInformatlQnSecuritvQfrtce@dhhs.nh.Qov
1

2.6. If the vendor will maintain any Confidential information on Its systems (or Its sub-contractor systems),
the vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or

contract termination; end wiD obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed

e/2017 emeti k Covrsctsr iniOsii'
OHHS Wormallon

Sectxfiy Requiffnens
OotQ4^1/'%



New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services

Exhibit K

by the vendor or any subcor^ctors as a part o( ongdinQ. emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use. eleclronic media containing Slate of New Hampshire data shall be
rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for

secure deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor
will document end certify in writing at lime of the data destruction, and will provide written certificaDon
to the Oopartmeni upon request. The written certificatton will include all details necessary to

demortstraie data has been properly destroyed end validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
profossionol standards for retention requirements will be Jointly evaluated by the State a/Kl the vendor
prior to destruction..

2.9. II the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an iniemal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, end monitoring compliance to security requirements thai at a
minimum match those for the vendor, ir^cluding breach notification requiremonts.

3. The vendor wit) woik with the Department to sign end comply with all applicabte State of ftew HampshlrearKf
Department system access and authorization ppficies and procedures, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the vendor end any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being

authorized.

4. if the Departrnent determines the vendor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103. the vendor will

work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the

Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance vrith theagreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Depanment at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey Is to

enable the Department and vendor to monitor tor any changes In risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an aliemale time

frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Departmer^ may request the

Survey be completed when the scope o1 the engagement between the Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will r»ot store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Stales unless prior express vtritten consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member wilhin the Department.

6. Data Security Breech liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make efforts to investigate

the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent future broach and minimize any damage or
'  loss resulting from the breach. The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and
recovery from the breach. includir>g but r>oi limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and costs

associated with website and telephone can center services necessary due to the breach.

a/20ir exNtflK congaaof Iniiiato ^
DHHS Morrrwion

Security RoQvirtnwnts
2 d 2 Oaie.7-^'^/A
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STATtOFNtW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMA>?^SERV1CES

OFFICE OF MEDICAID SERVICES

PCtASANT STREer. CONCORD. NM OiMI

M>ri-942] l400-65}Ji45Cu.M32

r«i:60]-27l-»4JI TOO Arcm; i400-7yv}9bl MKn.iJtibtAh^nv

February 21, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Deparlment of Health and Human Services to enter into an agreement with
Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. (Vendor # 271968), 35 Nutmeg Drive. Suite 120, Trumbul),
CT 06611, for the management of the non-emergency medical transponation benefit offered to
members of the New Hampshire Health Protection Premium Assistance Program and Medicaid feo-for-
service on a statewide level in an amount net to exceed $10,439,940 effective April 1. 2017 or upon the
date of Governor and Executive Council approval through December 31. 2016.

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in State Fiscal Years 2017
and are anticipated (o be available in SFY 2018 and SFY 2019, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the .future operating budget, with the ability to adjust encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further approval from the Governor arxi Executive
Council, if needed and Justified. Funds are 9% General 186% Federal 15% Other funds.

05-95-47-470010-3099 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES; HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF
HHS: OFC OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY, OFF. OF MEDICAID 4 BUS. POLICY. NHHPP Trust Fund
(94% Federal / 6% Other)

SFY Class/Account Class Title Activity Code Total

2017 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004159 $1,207,200

2018 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004159 $4,864,800

2019 101-500729 Medical foments to Providers 47004159-, .  $2,450,400

1 Subtotal •■'"$8,522,400

05-95-47-470010-7948 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES: HEALTH AND.HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF.
HHS. OFC OF MEDICAID & BUS PLCY. OFF. OF MEDICAID &.BUS. POLICY. Medicaid Care
Manaaemenl(50% Federal / 50% General)

SPY Class/Account Class Title Activity Code Total

2017 101-500729 Medical Payments to Providers 47004050 ■ $271,620
2018. 101-500729 Medical Paymenis (o Providers 47004050 $1,094,580
2019 101-500729 Medical Paymenis to Providers 47004050 ■ $551,340

Subtotal $1,917,540
Conlract Total $10,439,940
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EXPLANATION

Since New Hampshire law prohibits the use of general funds to support the New Hampshire
Health Protection Program (NHHPP), no general funds will be used to support the component of this
program that serves NHHPP members. However, nine percent (9%) ofi^s contract cost will be funded
with general funds to support transportation services' for non-NHHPP members in the traditional
Medicaid fee-for-service deliveiv system. Subsequently, the funding source for this entire contract will
be 9% General / 86% Federal / 5% Other funds.

V

The 'Other Funds* consist of voluntary contributions deposited into the New Hampshire Health
Protection Trust fund from the Foundation for Healthy Communities and any other contrfbuling
charitable foundation as outlined in RSA 126-A;5-C and assessments collected by the New Hampshire
Health Plan, as outlined in RSA 404-G:2 and RSA 4M-G:5-a. IVfb) and (c).

The purpose of this request is to ensure individuals who are members of the NHHPP population
who are enrolled in the Premium Assistance Program and the standard Medicaid members in the Fee-
For-Service delivery system continue having access to non-emergent medical transportation services.
State Medicaid programs are required to provide necessary transportation for beneficiaries to and from
Medicaid covered medical providers for Medi^ld covered services.

The New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP) is the stale authorized program to
provide health insurance coverage to low-Income adults who are eligible for medical assistance under
Section 1902 (a)(10)(A)(i)(VIII) of the Social Security Act. Through the second component of NHHPP
known as the Premium Assistance Program, New Hampshire uses Medicaid funds to purchase
individual health insurance coverage for eligible adults in the form of Qualified Health Plans (QHPs).
Qudliried Health Plans are commercial Individual health insurance products certified for sale on (he
New Hampshire Marketplace.

The Qualified Health Plans provide 10 essential health benefits (EHBs) that are required to be
provided to these Medicaid enroilees. However, the Qualified Health Plaris do not provide several
other services that Medicaid is required to provide to these Medicaid members in addition to the EHBs.
Non-emergent medical transportation (NEMT) is one of those additional required benefits not covered
by the QHPs.

The majority of Medicaid members currently receive NEMT service through one of the two
Medicaid managed care organizations that administers benefits to most Medicaid members in New
Hampshire. However, New Hampshire Medicaid is required to offer this service to those Medicaid
memtjers who remain in the fee-for-service delivery system and are not served by the two Managed
Care Organizations as well as Ihose in the Premium Assistance Program.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this corlract, this Agreement
has the option to extend for up to five (5) additional year(s). contingent upon satisfactory del'rvery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parlies and approval of the Governor and Coundl.

As a result of the foregoing. New Hampshire competitively bid the provision of non-emergency
transportation. The Department released a Request for Bid on July 25. 2016. Four (4) bids were
received and evaluated by a team of seasoned Department administrators. The bid.sheet is attached.
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Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. obtained the highest score and was selected as the
ver>dor for these services. The vendor is familiar with the population being served and is best suited to
provide services to the NH population eligible for these services.

Notwithstanding any other provision of Ihe Contract to the contrary, no services shall 'continue
after June 30. 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments for services provided after
June 30,2017. unless and until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, thousands of NH citizens
will be impacted by not having access to transportation as a wraparound service covered by the
Department of Health and Human Services under the NH Medicaid program. Without these
transportation services, individuals enrolled in the NH Health Protection Plan Premium Assistance
Program and Medicaid fee-for-service may not be able to get to. or home from, their non-emergent
medical and appointments. ^

Geographic area served; Statewide

Source of Funds: 86%*Federal Funds (CFDA #93.778, U.S. Department gf Health & Human
Services; Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. Medical Assistance Program, Medicaid; Title
XIX), 5% Other Funds, and 9% General Funds.

In the event that Federal or Other Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respe.ci(j#r^ubmilted

Approved by:

Dorah H. Fournier. Esq

dicaid Director

J^ey A Meyers
Commissioner

The n! Hcti/lh HuniMti i.' tn/m) •wj/rt/H/j/V/iV iiiij fi-iniifh-.
Ill t/mi'iHInf Ihi-oiiKii.- /" hri/ifi niitf iiufrfA'ii/ii'iii'f.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Z7 Hfizen Dr., Concord. NH 03301

Fm; 603-27M516 TDDA««J:1-«00.nS-29M

www.nh.gov/doit

Deois Coulct
Commitsiontr

February 23. 2017

Jeffrey A. Meyer*
Commissioner

Department of Health and Human Services
State of New Hampshire
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

Dear Commissioner Meyer*:

This letter represents formal notiAcaiion that the Oepartmem of Information Technology (DolT)
has approved your agency's request to enter into an agreement with Coordinated Transportation
Solutions, Inc. as described below and referenced as DolT No. 20t7'04l.

The purpose of this contract is for Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc. to
provide individuals who ore members of the New Hampshire Health Protection Plan
Premium Assistance Program access to non-emergent transportation services. Access
to non^emergent transportation services will help ensure individuals ere able to attend
medical, mental health and other medically necessary, but not emergent,

appointments, including transportation to the pharmacy to pick up necessa/y
prescriptions. This ̂ ntract will also provide transportation services for the remaining
Medicaid fec-for-service population.

The contract amount is not to exceed SI0,439,940 efTeciive April 1,2017 or upon
Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through December 31,
2018.

A copy of this lener should accompany the Department of Health and Human Services'
submission to the Governor and Exectitive Council for approval.

Sincerely,

Denis Coiilet

DG/ik

2017-041

cc; Bruce Smith, IT Manager

'Innovoiive rechnologirs TodO)f for New Hompshlre's romorroiv*



Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations.

Contracts & Procurement Unit

^  Summary Scoiinfl Sheet

Transportation Management for New
Hampshire Hoafth Protection Plan

(NHHPP) Premium Asdstance
Program (PAP) Particlpaits And Fee-

Fof-Service (FFS) Participants

RFP Name

RFB-2017-OMBP-02-Tran8

RFP Number Reviewer Names

Bidder Name Maximu

m Points

Actual

Points

1.

Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc. 1400 1282

2.

First Traitsit, inc. 1400 997

3.

LeFleur Trartsportation 1400 11S7

4.

Medical Transportation Management, inc. 1400 810

1. Mary Fields. Business Systems Analyst I

2.
Apama Bhattarai. Program Planning &
Spedatist

3. Heather Barto, Administrator III

4. Paul Casey, Business Administrator IV



-  ̂ FORM NUMBER p.J?(yerttooW/lS)
yqmnyithn Mwpta^ment for New H>m«hire He>M» PretetHoo Program WHHPP^ Prfrntntn
PfPtr^fp ffAP) ifld ret-FofStrvkfi fFFS> PTtlclMnti rRFB.ini74aMBP-02-TRANS^

ACRCEMENT
• The SnigpfNcw Htmpshirt ifld theConirtctof hereby mutiolly ejree u follows:

tifiliss' igreenieni tnd ill of iti mtchmenu sha)l become public upon submission (o Oovcmor end
E*«utiv« Council for tpprovaJ. Any infofmation ihit is privue. confidcmial or propoetaiy must
be cictrty identified (o the ticncy and afreod to in writing prior to signing the coninct.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name
Depanmeni of Health and Human Services

1.2 Stale Agency Aditress
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 0)3010157

IJ Contractor Name

Coordinated Transportation Solutions, Inc.
1.4 Conirxior Address

35 Nutmeg Drive Suite 120
Trumbull, CT 0661 1

1.5 Confracior Phone

Number

(303)736-88IOExi. 102

1.6 Account Number
Oj-qjuiUTOOlO-JOM
03-45A7A 700I0.7049 .

1.7 Completion Date

December 31. 2QI8

1.8 Price Limitation

$10,439,940

i.v Lomracttnguihccrlof.SlateAgency
Jortathan V. Gillo. Esq.. Interim Director

I.IO State Agency Telephone Number
<6031 271-9246

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Ccnnictcr Si^tatory

i.. ijh.^ Pw, vy^Df-
I.IJ Acknowledgement: state of coi(»y«cnt**T:Couiity of '' ««■ r ■ _ „

Cht ffB . beforciheundefsignedofricef. pcrionallyappearedlhepersonidentified inblock I.l2.0f utisfactorily
provat to be the pcraon whose name is signed in block l.ll.and acknowledged that t/he eaccuted this document in the caoacitv
indicaiedinblcck 1.12. '

I/. ̂  ey.aufSealj ^ »«)5«)a^ao

/^Ra6«G/tfT£ V. TJflSS Aifin-A/vT TO 7>a£l
1.14 State Agency^ 1.13 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Date: fl- Oeboroh H. Foumior. £aq. Modicbid Oifoctor
__

1.16 ApjffovaJ by the fTH. Department of AdmmUtration. Dilisiw ofPenonnel (i/cpplicable)

Director. On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form. Substance and Execution) (IfappHccbtt)

By:

1.18 Approval by the Covemor\ind^aecutivc

By: O:

Page I ofd



FORM NUMBER P07 VI/IS)
Suhjcet: rr»»mPf1>ttefl Mifnitemtm far htw Um.u^htrf Hcdtlh PnHmlon Pfwrnm iNllMi'PI frcmkni A.ilrtiinct

rrwf m IPAFl Uf6 r*>.Fiir.S«fv<reHFFS> VrtltlDMtt (RFB.»>?.OMUf.M.TRAWS>

ACRE6MEKT

Tht Siite of New Hanpihire and ihc Coftrwtor her^y fflvrtutlly ipn a feltowi:

Nake: TK* tcrecment and all of ki «R»chmcnu ihall bc(e«nt upon (ubmiuxn lo Covunet and
Eutuiive Gxtnci} for tppiovtl. Any infonnation thai i« private. conOdenliil or propriefvy miut

clearly Idenilfted lo ike ascrwy and icrced to in wrkini prior lo tifrn'oi ihc ceiuraet.

CCNCAAL PROVISIONS

1. IDCNTIFICATION.

1.1 Sum Atcney Kama
OcpMimeniofHeahhand Kumai) Scrvkea

1.2 Suit Agency Addrtaa
129 Pieiavii Street

Concord, NH 0330!-St)?

1.3 Cotunctar Kama

CoerdJiuied Tnn^onuitn Solulioni, trtc.
1.4 Contractor Addrtai

35 Nutmeg Drive Suite 120
Trumbull.CT 06611

1.5 Contnctor Phooe

Nunbo

(]0))m4Sl0Bii. 102

1.6 Acoouni Nontber 1)\.L^
05-M-47.4700ll>-i099
O5-9JU7U70OIO.H49 79^

1.7 Complciloa Date

December 31,30IS

1.1 Price Lintiiion

110.4)9,940

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stats Aftncy
Joaithin V. OallOt Esq., Isloim Olrectar

I.IO Stats Agency Telephone Number
(603)371-9346

l.ll ControctorSlgnctur* 1.1} Narte and TKls ofContnctor Sipxaiory

1.13 XdtnowlcdtecTicni: SuffefcaMNtfrQ^TrCouHyof fAifiPilLb '

On ̂ (9 .^orvOwtmderagncdorficsr.pcraonaJlyapocarcdihspaaonidaiiifled inbiock l.l2.oraaiiafKtonly
proMntaboihc peion ohoaD name U ligned inWock I.I 1. end ackn^odged that alie executed ihia docvmerd in the capadiy
indieaied inbtock 1.12.

evNatl

rsctii ' iij^ajavjc

yMfta6«EA.(T€ iZoiS ft̂ iWi/TAAT'uG
1.14 Stale Agency Sifnaiva

Date;

1.15 NtmeandTIUeofStateAgciKySignaiOTy

Oeborari H. Foumler. E»q. MtdlceW OPedor

1.16 Approval by the Nif. D^arimcni of Adminiatraiion, DIviiko of Pcnonnet (l/appUccbk)

By: Director, On:

1.13 Approval by Ihe Aoomey Ocneral (Ponn, Subitance and Eaccuiion) (l/eppllnhlt)

By: On:

■ .IB Approval by the Oovemor and tUeculivc CoufKil flfeppli'csb'r,)

Of: On;
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1. CMPLOYMCNTOFCONTRACTOR/SERVlCeSTO

. BE PERFORMED. The Suie of.New Hampshire, icting
through {he agertcy idcndfied irt block I. I (*^uic''), engages
cofllroelor tdentined in block 1.3 ("Connclor") to perform,
and (he Contriecor shall perform, (he work or nic of goods, or
bo(h. idcniincd and more panicularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorpomed herein by reference
("Services").

y EFFECTIVE DATC/COMPLXTION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of (his Agseemem to the
conlrary, and subject (o (he approval of-ihc Cevcmor and
Eaccuiive CourKil of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become efTective on (he dale the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, tinleas no such approval is required, in which case
(he Agreement shall become efTeciivc on the date (he
Agreernem it signed by (he Stale Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("EfTeciivc Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences (he Services prior lo (he
EfTective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
(o the Effective Date shall be performed at (he sole risk of (he
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not .
become efTective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation lo pay
the Contraaof for arty cors incurred or Services performed.
Cor^tractor must cotnpleie all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDipONAL NATURE OF agreement.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder. are
contingent upon the availability artd continued appropriation
of finds, and in no event shall the Slate be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated

. fiihds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such hmds become available, if ever, and shall .
have the right to terminate this Agrwht^i immediately uport
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required (o tnnsfer funds from any other account
to the Account idenlified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or uruvailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRJCE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contraci price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are Identified artd n>ore.panici;lar|y described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorpont^ herein by reference.
3.2 The payment by (he Stale of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimburKmeta to the Conuictor for all
cxpensei of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for (he Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page

3.3 The Stale rcservts the right to offset from any amounu
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permiried by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of liw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to (he
contrary, and rtotwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the lota) of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder. exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block

1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

OPPORTUNITY.

6. \ lit connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all sutuies, laws, regulations^
and ordas of federal, stale, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty uport the (^ntraeior,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include thcrcqwrement to utilize auxiliary
■ids and services to ensure thti persons with comntunicaiion
disabilities, including vision, hearing and Rtecch. can
ctimmunicalc with, receive informaiion fhom, and convey
informaiton to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discrimirtite against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex.
handicap, sexual orientation, or naiionaJ origin and will take
ifnmuiive action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If (his Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of (he
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all (he
provtsionsof Executive Order No. 1 1246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United Slates DcpanmeniofLabor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rulc^ regulaiions and guidelines
as the Stale of New Hampshire or the United Stales issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor funher agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Coruractor'i books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all riilcs, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of (his Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Conbactor shall at its own expense provide all
pcriofVKl necessary to perform the Slices. The Contractor
wirranis thai all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, artd diall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do to unda all applicable
laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Complciion Date in block 1.7, ihe Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontrsctor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is mtterially involved in the.
procurement. adminisTrition or performance of (his

2of4
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Agretmem. This previiion shtll survive leminnion of ihis
Agretmcnj..
7.3 The ConirKting OfTker tpcciftei) in block 1.9, or his or
ha successor, sh«il be ihe Sine's represenutive. In the event
of my dispute concerning the interpiruiion of this Agreement,
the Contracting OiVica'i deeition {hail be final for the Suie.

t. EVEhfTOPDEFAULT/REMEDItS.

8.1 Any one or more of (he following acts or omissions of the
' Contractor shsll constitute tn cvoii of default hercunder

(■•Event of Defauli"): '
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services saiUfactarily or on
schedule:
8.1 J failure to tubmJi any report required hertunda: and/or
8.1J failioe to perform any otha covenant, term or condition
of this Ayecment.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of my Event of l>fauli, (he State
may take my one. or more, or ail, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractors wrinen ttotice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of u'mc. thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice: md if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, lenninate this Agreement, efTccii>« two
(2) days aha giving (he Contntctor notice of termination;
8.2 J give (he Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
,of Oefiuit and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agrcemcm md ordering thai the portion of the contract price
whidt uoukJ otherwise accrue to Ihe Contractor during the
period from Ihe date of such notice until such time u the State
determines thai the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Comractor;
8-2.3 set off against my otha obligations the Stale may owe to
the Contractor my damages the State sufTers by reason of any
Event of Dcfauh; and/or
8 J.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue my of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESVCONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATIOK.
9.1 As used in (his Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
infornetion and things developed or obtained during the
perfornance of. or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, aurveyt, mips, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproduaions. drawings, malytes,
graphic reproentations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letiaa, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whctha finished or unfinished.
$.2 All dsta and any propeny which has becn rcccivcd from.
the State or purchased with fimds provided for that purpoK
under this Agreement, shall be the propeny of the State, and
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of dau shall be governed by N.H. RSa
chapta91>A or oihcrcAising law. Disclosure of data
requlro prior written approval of the Slate.

Page 3

10. TERM IN ATION. In (he event of an early termination of
this Agreement for my reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall ddiva to the Contracting
Offica, not laia than fifleen (13) days afla the date of
termination, t report (Terminaiion Report") describing in
deuil ail Services performed, md Ute contract price earned, to
and including Ihe date of termination. The form, subject
mancT. content, and numbo of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to (hose of any Final Rcpon
described in the aniched EXHIBIT A.

11.CONTRACTOR'S RELATIONTOTHESTATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects m independent contractor, md is neitha an agent nor
m employee of the State. Neitha the Conirador nor my of its
ofTicers, employees, agents or mcmbcri shall have authority to
bind the State or receive my bcrKfits. workers' compensation
or otha emoluments provickd by the Stale to its employees.

12. ASSlCNMeNT/DCLECATlON/SUBCONTIUCrs.
The Coniractx shsll not assign, or otherwise trmsfa my
imaesi in this Agreement withoia the prior written notice md
consent of the State. None of the Soviccs shsll be
subcontracted by (he Contractor without the prior written
notice md consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIPICATION. The Contractor thill defend,
indemnify and hold harmlen the State, iu ofRcers md
employees, from md agiinn any and all losses suffaed by the
State, its officers and employees, md any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties acsened against the Stale, its ofDccn
md employees, by or on behalf of my person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or whkh may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or otTDSSions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiva ofthc
sovereign Immunity of the State, which immunity is henby
resoved to the Stite. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of (his Agreement.

(4. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and •
miiraain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee lo obtain md maintain in force, the following
insurance:
14.1.1 comprehensive genaal liability insurance tgiinsi
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in arrtounis
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOpa occunence md $2.(XI0.000
aggregate: md
14.1J special cause of loss covaage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in m amouni not
less Ihm 60% ofthc whole replacement value of (he property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms irtd endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Deptrtmcm of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New
Harrtpshire.

Contractor InitiaU



14.3 The ContTKtor ihalt f\jmish lo the ContnctintOfTtccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, s cen>ficaie(s)
orinsurtnce for til insurtnce required under this Agreement.
Corttrtcior shall tin furnish to ihcComrtciing OfTica .
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificatefs) of

insurtnce for all rcnewa](s) of Insurance required under this
Acrcemem no liter than thirty (30) days prior to (he eipiralion
date of each of (he insuranee polieies. The certincatefs) of
insunncc and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each ceniricaie(i) of
insurtnce shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer idcniified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no Jess than ihiny (30) days prior' written
notice ofcanceiiaiion or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warranis that (he Conoacior is in compliance with
or cseinpi from, the requiremenii of N.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂A
("Wetktrs' ComptiUQilon
15.} To the exieni the Contractor is aubjcct to the
r^iremenis of N.H. RSA chapter 281 ̂ A. Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee (o secure
and maintain, paymerii of Workers' Compensation in
cocLi>cciion wtth activities which the peion proposes to
undertake pursuant'to (his Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting QfTicer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner despibed in N.H. RSA chapter 281 'A and any
applicable rcnewaJ(f) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State dtall not be
(tspordibic for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefii for Contractor, or
any lubcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise undc applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compcnsiiion laws In connection with the pcrfoimince of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. waiver of breach. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any £««nt of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default ahall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each artd all of the
provisions hereof upon any ftinher or other Event of Default
on Ow part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to hav< been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by ccrtifted mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Stales Post Office addressed to the panics at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AM ENOM ENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrumeni in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such ipproval is required under the cireunsstanees pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT ANDTERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of (he Sutc of New Hampshire, and is bir^lr^ upon and
inures 10 (he benefii of (he parties and (heir respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by (he panics to npress their mutual
imeiti, and no rule ofconsnruction shall be applied against or
in favor ofanypany.

20. THIRD^ PARTI ES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any 'third panics and (his Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Ayrcment
arc for reference purposes only, and the words comaincd
therein shall in rto way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the inierprctaiion. construction or meaning ofthe
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in (he attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated heroin by
TcfeTtftce.

2J. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthe provisions of
this Agreement are hdd by a coun of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any sutc or federal law, the remaining
provisions of (his Agreement will remain in full force and
efTcct.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agricmcni. which may

be executed in a number ofcounterpans, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Affxcmcnt and
urtdersunding between the panics, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undcniandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of4
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/SiNew H&mpthlr« Oopartmenl of HQaRh and Human Sorvlcei
TranaportaUon Manooomonl for N«w Hampthiro HoaHh Protocllon Program (NHHPP)
Pramium AaalaUnco Program (PAP) and Foa For Sarvlco Particlpanta

EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Provisions Applleablo to All Servicos

1.1. For the purposes of this coniract. ail references to days shall be calendar
days, unless otherwise noted.

1.2. The Contractor shall submit detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited Ertglish proHciency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

1.3. The Contractor shall confirm client eligibility for non-emergent transportation
services through the Department's Medicald Management Information System
(MMIS).

1.4. The Contractor shall adhere to all information technology security
requirements, as specified 'in Exhibit A-1. Information Technology Security
Requirements.

1.5. The Contractor shall;

1.5.1. Ensure Premium AssistarKe Program (PAP) participants'have access
to transportation -in order to attend non-emergent, Medicald covered
medical arxl dental appointmenls.-as well as to pick up prescriptions.

1.5.2. Ensure Medicaid Fee-for-Servlce (FFS) participants eligible for
standard Medicaid or the Medicaid Alternative Benefit Plan (ABP)
have access to transportation in order to attend non-emergent,
Medicald covered medical and dental appointments,, as well as to pick
up prescriptions.

1.5.3. Ensure various modes of transportation, including adull medical day.
are available for all members, including those members who ne^
special assistance and those members who use durable medical
equipment.

1.5.4. Process requests for mileage reimbursements properly submitted by
partidpants, Friends/Family of participants, and Volunteer drivers, In a
timely manner.

1.6. Contractor shall maintain a NH-spedfic call center located In NH with access
to interpreter services, and accornmodations for speech and hearing-impaired
dients at no additional cost to individuals.

1.7. For the purposes of this contract, the term 'Vendor Providers' indudes
suboontractors or any volunteer drivers who provide direct transportation
services to eligible clients pursuant to this Contract, but shall not include

SjMH a. Scdm ft 8«n4c« Cfint/ador
RFS.»l7.OMSP<0}.T/vu



Now H«mp«hiro Otpcctmonl of Heatth and Human Sorvicoa
Transpcrtsilon Manegomonl for Now Hampshiro Hoatth Protection Program (NHHPP)
Promium Aealatanee Prosram (PAP) and Paa For Sarvice Participants

Medicaid. participants or their friertds or family members who provide
transportation for the participant to and from Medicald covered appointments.
The Contractor shall;

1.7.1. Coordir^ate ail transportation services by maintaining a network of
transportation vendor providers. (The Contractor itself is rx>t the
provider of transportation.)

1.7.2. Ensure that the transportation shad be to the nearest, available
Medicald- or Qualified Health Plan- enrolled medical or dental
provider of the necessary services via the shortest most ecortomical
route;

1.7.3. Ensure that transportation outside of N.H.. M.A.. M.E., V.T. require
prior authorization by the Department; and

1.7.4. Ensure that the transportation being provided is not otherwise
available to the member free of charge.

1.7.5. Ensure the transportation provided is the least costly and appropriate
mode for each member.

1.8. The Contactor shad ensure transportation services are available to and from
non-emergent medically necessary Medicald covered appointments, statewide
and, at times, to adjacent states. The Contractor shall use a priority of
u^lization of transportation which shall be in the following order: recipient's
own vehicle; Friends/family transit; bus or other public transportation; volunteer
transit end taxi transit. The Contractor shall ask each member Aether he/she
can drive and if not, Aether a friend or family member can provide
transportation. If the member cannot drive and does not have a friend/family
member to provide transit, the Contractor shall ask the member if the member
can access public transportation. -If the member cannot access public
transportation, the Contractor shall offer to provide transportation via a
volunteer driver or taxi service, the Contractor shall reimburse members who
drive themselves on a per mile basis and shall also reimburse them for parking
fees and toits. .

1.9. The Contractor shall have the capability to accommodate special needs for
those who are physically or otherwise disabled such as but not limited to
providing speoal assistance for those members who use durable medical
equipment.

1.10. The Contractor may require 48 hour notice for non-urgent transportation
requests except for transportation requests to methadone. clinic services,
reimbursement for a member driving him/herself, trips involving bus or rail
service or requests that involve friends^amily.
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1.11. The Contractor shall ensure transportation services are available on short
notice (less than 24 hours notification) for urgent medically necessary medical
appointments or hospital discharges, and the Contractor shall provide all
members with written information on how to access transportation on a short
notice.

1.12. The Contractor shall ensure that vendor providers are paid for transportation
for mileage traveled from the pick-up location to the drop-off location. In cases

. virhere there are no available Vendor Providers within 20 miles, the Contractor
shall payVendOf Provider the mileage from and back to the starting point.

1.13. The Contractor shall ensure that Friends and Family Mileage Reimbursement
Program claims are limited to the payment of one claim per trip regardless of

^  the number of passer>gers. The Contractor shall not pay separately for each
passenger.

2. Contactor Obli^tlons
2.1. Relationship with Vendor Pmviders. Conlractof Shall maintain wrilten'VcndOf

/  Provider subcontracts with each of Its Vendor Providers requiring the Vendor
Providers to comply with the terms and conditions of this contract. The form of
Contractor's standard Vendor Provider subcontract and any material
amendments thereto must comply with applicable law and. upon the
Department's request, must be approved in advance by the Department. Upon
request, Contractor shall make available to the Department and to any
applicable regulatory authority a copy of each of its Vendor Provider
aul)conlracts with Vendor Providers.

2.2. List of Vendor Providers. Contractor shall maintain and provide a list of
Vendor Providers to the. Department upon request and on a monthly basis.
The Department expressly reserves the right to reject, susperxj or terminate
.the participation of any Vendor Provider In the provision of non-emergent
transportation services a,s contemplated under this Agreement.

2.3. Provision of Covered Services^ Contractor, through Vendor Provider
subcontracts with Vendor Providers, shall provide, or arrange for the provision
of. those non-emergent transportation senrices described in this Agreement.
Each Vendor Provider shall provide all Covered Services in accordance with
all legal requirements and recognized industry standards. In providing such
services. Vendor Providers shall ensure that Covered Services are provided
within the time frames specified in this Agreement. .

2.4. Operational Standards Criteria. Contractor represents and warrants that
Contractor and Vendor Providers shall at ail times during this Agreernenl meet'
and maintain the Department's operational standards'ciiteria as described-in
this Agreement, as may be revised from time to time by the Department.
Vendor Providers shall not provide Covered Services to Covered Persons

OliJ.
r^Jf>hbln
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unless and until Vendor Providers have met all requirements and operational
standards as described in this Agreement, in addition to meeting all
requirements artd operational standards of the Contractor. Or, if operational
standards are delegated to Vendor pursuant to the Delegated Contractor shall
supply Its written Vendor Provider requirements, policies and procedures to
the Department as the Department reasoriably requests in order to verify initial
and continued compliance with this Agreement. Contractor agrees to provide
the Department notice of any additions or deletions to its pdides and
procedures on a monthly basis.

2.5. Determination of Covered Person EliQibilitv. Contractor shall determine
whether a person seeking Covered Services is a Covered Person and shall
determine whether the requested service is to a Medicaid" covered
appointment. If the Department determines that such person was rK)t eligible
for coverage at the time the services were rendered or,the medical/dental visit'
was not Medicaid coverable. such services shall not be eligible for payment
under this Agreement. In no event shall the Contractor or the Vendor Provider
bill the member for Transporlailon services.. Service Protocols. Contractor
shall provide policies and procedures detailing service requirements applicable
to this Agreement 30 calendar days prksr to service start or with the applicable
modifications to service provisions.

2.6. Comoliance with Policies. Contractor shall, and shall cause Vendor Ppoviders
through its provider agreements to, comply and cooperate with all applicable
Department policies, procedures, rules, and regulations. Additionally.
Contractor shall require Vendor Providers to certify and attest to their
compliance with all applicable policies, procedures, rules,- and .regulations.
Such policies and procedures are subject to modification by the Department at
Its disaetion. provided that the Department provides Contractor with thirty (30)
days prior written notice of material rnodifications to these pdides and
procedures.

2.7. Performance Standards. Contractor shall, and shall cause Vendor Providers
to participate In and cooperate with any performance standards outlined In this
Agreement. The Contractor shall submit a plan to the Department within
ninety (M) days of the contract effective date that Includes, but Is not limited
to;

2.7.1. A plan to increase and build the local provider network in Coos and
Grahon Counties, including proposed targets for increased network
capacity.

2.7.2. A plan to increase all members' access to transportation
reimbursement and transportation services'.
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2.8. Cofttractof Call Center. The Contractor shall operate a NH specifrc call center,
located In NH. and in operation Monday through Friday, except for state
approved holidays. The call center shall be accessible through a statewide toil-
free number. The call center shall be staffed with courteous personnel wbo are
knowledgeable about the NHHPP PAP and Medicaid FFS to answer member
Inquiries.

2.8.1. Contractor shall ensure that after regular business hours the member
call center is answered by an automated system with the capability to

.provide callers with information regarding operating hours and
instructions on how to obtain emergency medical transportation.

2.8.2. Contractor shall ensure that after-hours calls are reviewed within an

hour of the member's call and if the request is urgent, that the call is
returned within that hour and transportation is scheduled within two
hours of the member's request. Non-urgent requests shall be retumed
on the next business day.

2.8.3. At a minimum, excluding weather emergency declarations by the
State of New Hampshire, the call center shall be operational;

2.8.3.1. Monday thru Friday : 8:00 am EST to 6:00 pm EST; and

2.8.3.2. During major program transitions, or peak events, as
determined by OHHS. additional hours and capacity shall be
accommodated by the Contractor subject to mutual
agreement in accordance with Paragraph 16 of Form P-37 of
this Contract.

2.6.4. The Contractor shall develop a means of coordinating its call center
with the DHHS Custon^er Service Center.

2.8.5. The Contractor shall develop a warm transfer protocol for members
who may call the incorrect call center to- speak to the dorrect
representative. Should the Contractor establish capacity to provide
monthly reports to OHHS on the number of warm transfers made and
the program to which the member was transfen'ed. those reporls shall
be provided at the end of the first month of established functionality.

2.8.6. The Contractor shall establish a member hotline that shall be an
automated system thai operates outside of the call center standard
hours, Monday through Friday and at all hours on weekends and
holidays, which shall be capable of accepting, recording and providing
instructions to incoming callers.

2.8.7. The Contractor sf^all have a comprehensive plan to handle call
volume that exceeds staff capacity. The plan shall include the

EtfifW A. Scope ol Sefvic** Ccrwictor tnWibi
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capacity to roll calls over by shifting resources to accommodate within
one hour of the increase in call volume.

2.6.6. The Contractor shall ensure call center staff verity each caller's
identity using at least two points of verification through the MMIS
system.

2.6.9. The Contractor shall develop telephone scripts, as approved by the
Department, which shall be used by cali center staff.

2.8.10. The Contractor shall ensure the telephone system used to provide
services meets or exceeds the following requirements;

2.6.10.1. Capability of transferring calls to the Department's Voice
Over Iniernel Protocol (VOIP) system.

2.6.10.2. Capability of accepting inbound and placing outbound calls.

2.8.10.3. Ability to transfer calls received that have unique
circumstances or situations that will need to be transferred to

the beparlment.

2.6.10.4. Ability to route calls to specific queues, such as an automatic
call distribution system. The system used duhng regular
business hours shall:

2.8.10.4.1. Provide information about the Department's
website.

2.6.10.4.2. Ability to track call statistics necessary to provide
reports specific to this contract.

2.6.11. The Contractor shall permit the Department to monitor live calls while
on-site at the call center. The Contractor shall make available the

same business day digital files of calls received, when requested by
(he Department.

2.9. Grievaftte and Apoeal Procedures. Contractor shall, and shall cause Vendor
Providers to:

2.9.1. Cooperate with the Departments Covered Person grievance and
appeal procedures.

2.9.2. . Report to the Department all. communications from and with Covered
Persons relating to Covered Person benefit determinations,
complaints, grievances, appeals.

2.9.3. Resolve all, member grievances, within thirty (30) calendar days from
(he date the grievance was received. For grievances involving
Vendor Providers, the Contractor shall provide a written report to the
Department that indicales how (he grievance was resolved, including
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Whether the Vendor Provider was cited or issued a corrective action
plan.

2.9.4. Inform Covered Persons regarding the State Fair hearing process for
adverse determinations or denials of requested services, including but
not limited to, members right to a Stale fair heiaring and how to obtain
a State fair hearing in accordance with this Agreement and N.M.
Administrative Rule He-C 200. If a member does not agree with the
Contractor's denial, the member may file a request for a State fair
hearing within thirty (30) days of the date on the Contractor's notice of
resolution of the appeal or final adverse detennlnation letter.

2.9.5. Provide to the Department all supporting documentation and records
relating to the denial artd the request for a slate fair hearing appeal
within three (3) calendar days from the date the appeal was received
by the Department.

2.9.6. The Contractor or its designed shall defend its decision for adverse
determination or denial of requested services on a member's appeal
at Ihe State Fair Hearing, at no additional cost. OHHS staff member
will accompany Contractor to Fair Hearing.

2.10. Non-Solidtatfon, During the term of this Agreement, or any renewal thereof,
and (or a period of six (6) months from the date of termination, Contractor shall
not, and shall ensure that Veryjor Providers do not;

2.10.1. Advise, counsel or solicit any Covered Persons to end enrollment with
a Plan, and will not solicit any Covered Persons to become enrolled
with any other Plan, or other hospitalization or medical payment plan
or insurance policy, for any reason.

2.10.2. Interfere in any manner with Department's contractual relationships
including but not limited to those with other transportation or health
care providers.

2.11. Network Adeeuacv. Contractor shall ensure a sufficient number of vehicles in-
network, in accordance with the needs of Covered Persons and the standards

identified within this Agreement, as may be amended from lime to time. The
composition of the types of vehicles in-network must be reflective of the needs
of Covered Persons.

2.11.1. Contractor must demonstrate network adequacy to the Department
sixty (60) days prior to Service Stan, and every six (6) months or upon
request thereafter.in accordance with this Agreement. If at any time
the Department identifies inadequacy in the network through any
performance related deficiencies as outlined In this Agreement or
otherwise identifies that there is a need for additional network

.QkUEiTM A. Seep* of Swvlns Conirocla InKiitsy
IVd-»t7-OW8P-«-Trwtt



Ntw HomptKIrA Dopartmcnt of H«aUh and Human Sarvicaa
Trenapoftstlon Managemant for Naw HarnpiMre HaaRh Protaction Program (NHHPP)
Pramlum Aaatttance Program (PAP) and Poa por Sarvica Parttcipanta

capacity, tt^e Oepartrr^ent shall have the right to require Contractor to
increase network capacity.

2.11.2. Contractor, shall provide a plan for Increasing network capacity within
fifteen (15) calendar days of the Department identifying netvrark
Inadequacy for Department approval. Once approved, Ck}ntractor
shall execute said network capacity plan as expeditiously as possible.

2.12. RESERVED.

2.13. Contractor Provider Listings. Contractor agrees that the Department may use
Contractor's and any Vendor Provider's name in marketing, advertisement,
and Covered Person information materials, including provider and related
directories. Vendor Providers may list the Department as among the
organizations for which they provide Covered Services, but shall not otherwise
use the Department's name without Department's written consent
Contractor may permit Vendor Providers to display signs Identifying the
Department within Vendor Providers' vehicles, provided such signage has
been approved or provided by the Department.

2.14. Compliance with Laws. (Dontractor shall, and shall contractually require
Vendor Providers to, carry out all obligations under this Agreement and to
provide Covered Services in a manner prescribed under applicable federal and
State laws, regulations, administrative rutesi and codes, as well as the
Department's applicable policies and procedures. This Agreement shall be
subject to the applicable rnaterial terms of the Agreement.

2.15. Covered Person Communication. Contractor shall not, and shall ensure that
Vendor Providers do r>ot. direct marketing efforts at any Covered Person.
Contractor shall, and shall require Vendor Providers to conduct all
communications with Covered Persons In a respectful manner.

2.16. Contractor Provider Outreach. Contractor shall have at least annual town hall
meetings with Vendor Providers to discuss and resolve outstanding issues,
conduct training, or any other reasonable purpose. In addition, maintain a
dedicated toll free line for transportation providers to call with any inquiries,
complaints, training needs, etc.

2.17. Informabon Svstems. Contractor shall maintain such information data systems
necessary to provide data as required by this Agreement. Contractor shall be
responsible for the costs and expenses it incurs in relation to the
establishment and maintenance of such systems.

2.18. Department Exclusive Vervtor Providers. Contractor shall accommodate
Department requests to maintain exclusive Vendor Provider relationships (not
in the Vendor network) for the exclusive use of Covered Person.
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2.^9. Qverpavments: Contractor shall promptly, but no later than within fifteen (15)
business days after receiving notice from the State, or on setf-discovery by the
Vendor, return to the State the full amount of any overpayment or erroneous
payment made by the State.

2.20. File Reviews. The Contractor shall give the Department access, upon request.
' to Its files to support any federal or state audit inquin'es handled by the
Department's Program Integrity Unit. Upon request. Vendor shall provide
copies of requested files. The Department has the right to request records
directlyfrom Vendor Providers for oversight monitoring.

3. Contractor/Departmont Engagement

3.1- Dedicated Resources. Contractor shall allocate certain customer service
representatives, provider retalions representatives, quality assurance
technicians, accounting technicians and others necessary to facilitate the
transportation process. Contractor shall also allocate a dedicated resource to
act as a project manager for the Department.

3.2. Communication. Contractor's dedicated resource to the' Department shall
have, at a minimum, one touch point call per week. As appropriate. Contractor
shall engage additional resources within their organization to participate in the
weekly call. The Department, in Its sole discretion, may elect to change the
frequency and duration of said meetings with reasonable notice to Contractor.
Contractor shall produce a detailed communications plan (Local Operations
Communications Plan) to supplernent the local presence as required by this
Agreement. The communications plan is due within (14) fourteen caterxJar
days of the executed agreement, and shaIi_requiro Department approval prior
to implementation.

3.3. Geographic Tralnino. Contractor shall ensure that alt staff that will be assigned
to or have an opportunity to provide services to the Department shall have e
comprehensive understanding of New Hampshire's geography.

3.4. Local Operations Support, Contractor shall support Department ■ local
operations as follows;

3.4.1. The Contractor shall assign a staff member to support the'
Department's office locally. The Department arxJ Contractor shall

. mutually agree on the skillset and experience required of the local
preserxre staff member. The D^artmenl shall have the right to
approve the desigr^ated staff member prior to placement. The
Department, in Its sole dlsaetion, resenres the right to reduce the
required presence of the assigned Contractor staff member during the
course of this agreement.
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.  3.4.2. Contractor shall be required to implement a communications plan, as
approved by the Department, to support the effective communications
to Vendor Providers and local operations.

3.4.3. Contractor shall prepare a training program ' for Department
designated staff persons, to occur prior to the service start date,
containing Information as mutually agreed upon by both parties.

3.5. Staffing Ratio. (Contractor shall maintain staffing ratios sufficient to meet or
exceed the service expectations arxl obligations of this Agreement. Contractor
shall provide the Department with an initial staffing ratio within thirty (30) days
of execution of this Agreement for Department approval. Contractor staffing
ratios shall be provided by Contractor to the Department on a quarterly basis.
In the event of an antiopated change in service, such as an additional Product
Attachment, the Department shall provide Contractor with advanced notice in
accordance with this Agreement. Contractor shall provide tf^-Oe^r^ent with
revised staffing ratios to account for any anticipated change in'Wrvice within
thirty (30) calendar days of notificdtion. The Department and Contractor agree
to confer In good faith regarding dedicated Vendor staffing with respect to the
services outlined in this Agreement.

3.6. Agreement Closeout.

3.6.V During the closeout period, the Contractor shall work cooperatively
with and supply program information lo, any subsequent contractor
ar*d DHHS.

3.6.2. The Contractor shall continue to submil the information and records

required urider this Agreement within the time frames required.

3.6.3. Effective fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the last day of the
doseout period, the Contractor shall work cooperatively with the new
Contractor to process service authorization requests received.
Disputes between the Contractor and the new contractor regarding
service authorizations shall be resolved by DHHS.

3.6.4. The Contractor shall be financially responsible for all other approved
services when the service Is provided on or before the last day of the
doseout period.

3.7. Compliance with rules to ensure Federal financial oartidoatlon. Contrador
shall ensure compliance with 42 CFR 440.170(aK4)(ii) paragraphs (A) through
(E). Federal finandal participation is available at the medical assistance rate
for the cost of a written brokerage contract that;

3.7.1. 42 CFR 440 1 70(a)(4)(iiUA) Except as provided In paragraph
(aX4K<i)(B) of this section, prohibits the broker (Including contractors,
owners, investors, Boards of Diredors. corporate officers, arxl
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employees) from providing non-emergency medical transportalion
services or making a referral or subconlracting to a transportation

'  service provider if;

CFR <40.i70(aU4\f(i)^A)(i] The broker has a financial
relalicnshlp vrilh the transportation provider as defined at §
411.354(a) of this chapter with ■Iransportalion broker"
substituted for 'physician' and 'non-emergency
transportation" substituted for "OHS": or

3-7.1.2. 42 CFR 440.17Q{B)t4)(ii)(A)t2) The broker has an immediate
family member, as defined at § 411.351 of this chapter, that
has a direct or indirect financial relationship with the
iranspoilation provider, with the term 'transponation broker"
substituted for 'physidan.'

3-7.2. 42 CFR 440.17Q(a)(4)(f'l}{pi in referring or subcontracting, for non-
emergency medical transportation with transportation providers, a
broker may not withhold necessary non-emergency medical
transportation from a Medicald bcnefidary or provide non-emergency
medjcal transportation that is not the most appropriate and a cost-
effective means of transportation for that bcnefidary for the purpose
of financial gain, or for any other purpose.

3-7.3. 42 CFR 440.170(aif4l(ii)/Bi The non-Federal share of all Medlcaid
.  payments under the transportation brokerage program must be in

compliance with applicable Federal requirements In sections
1902(a)(2) and 1903(w) of the Act. and applicable Federal regulations
set forth at § 433.50 through § 433.74 of this chapter.

4. Technology Requirementa
Mappino Systems. Mapping/dlsiance software used to calculate trip mileage
for relmbursernent and related purposes must be updated on a monthly basis
to ensure accurate geographic code distribution.

4-2. Reoortifw Svstema. Contractor shall maintain the technology necessary to
support the production of reports including, but not limited to; assigned trips;
compleled trips; member no-shows; provider no-shows; rejiacted trips; and •
cancelled trips, and costs fortrips.

^•3- Online Functionality. Vendor shall implement online system for subrnitling
claims and mileage Contractor Information.
Flactronic Data Interchange fEDh transaction processing and interfacing with
the NH MMiS lor member eligibility verification: Vendors shall verify member
NHHPP eligibility for the date of service either by submitting an ASC XI2N 270
eligibility inquiry transaction and receiving the 271 eiiglbiiity inquiry response.

Ul^}n
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submitlirtg an online eligibility verification request, or calling the automated
voice response system. Failure to confirm eligibility for the date of service wfll
result in claims r>ot being paid if the member Is determined during claims

' processing not to be eligible.

4.5. Electronic Data Interchanoe Member Enrollment Processino - Contractor shall

receive and process member benefit plan enrollment data from the MMIS in
the form of an ASC 834 Benefit Enrollment transaction if (he vendor chooses
to receive member enrollment data.

4.6. Electronic Data Interchange Claims Processino - will receive capitation
payment information from MMIS using the ASC X12N 620 Professional
trarisaclion or other supplemental payment reports.

4.7. Electronic Data interchanoe Encounter Data- Contractor ̂ 11 submit encounter
data at least weekly to the MMIS using the ASC X12 637 Professional
transaction 8tar>dard.

5. Vendor Provider Requiremonts

5.V The Contractor shall ensure all Vendor Providers are compliant with the
following requirements, which shall be included as minimum requirements in
all Vendor Providers subcontracts. Requirements include, but are not limited
to;

5.1.1. Confidentialitv. Vendor Providers shall treat every aspect of Covered
Services as oonridential, indudirtg the fact of Department eligibility
and/or enrollment and any or iail Information pertaining to a Covered
Person's physical or mental health status or condition. Each Vendor
Providers shall execute a valid HIPAA subcontractor agreement with
Vendor pursuant to (he terms of Vendor's Business Associate
Agreement with the Department.

5.1.2. Hold Harmless. Vendor Providers shall accept the amounts paid by
Vendor for Covered Services furnished to Covered Persons as

payment in full and in no event, including but not limited to
nonpaymeni by Payer or Vendor, Payer's or Vendor's insolvency, or
breach of Vendor's agreement with the Vendor Provider, shafi the
Vendor Provider bill, charge, collect a deposit from, seek
compensation, remuneration or reimbursement from or have any
recourse against a Covered Person, the Department, the Payor (if the
Payor has made payments ip accordance v^th this Agreement) or
parties other than Vendor for Covered Services provided to Covered
Persons in accordance with this Agreement.

5.1.3. Leoal Compliance.
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5.1.3.1.ComDliance. Llcensure and Certifications. Vendor Providers
and, as applicable, any drivers employed or contracted by
Vendor Providers, shall comply with all applicable local, state,
and federal laws and regulations, artd shall hold in good
standing any and all licenses and ceniricatlons required under
such laws and regulations for the provtslon of Covered
Services. .

5.1.3.2.Safetv and Comfort Standards.' Vendor Providers shall
comply with all appllcabte local, < state, and federal
transportation safety standards, Department policies and
procedures and applicable industry and accreditation

.  standards relating to passenger safety and comfort. Including
but not limited to;

5.1.3.2.1. Requirements relating to the maintenance of
vehicles and equipment.

5.1.3.2.2. Passenger and wheelchatr dccessibilily.

5.1.3.2.3. Availat>ility and functioning of seat belts.

5.1.4. Insuraixe. 'Section 5.1.4. through 5.1.4.4. apply to commercial
vendor providers and not to volunteer providers. Insurance
requirements, for volunteer providers are set forth in Section 5.1.4.5.
Throughout the term of the subcontract with Vendor, and for so long
as Vendor Provider is providing Covered Services in accordance with
this Agreement, Vendor Provider shall obtain and maintain insurance,
including but not limited to automobile liablKty insurance and general
commerdal liability insurance, as Is necessary to provide coverage for
losses and liablliUes arising out of the acts arvJ/or omissions of Vendor
Providers (or their respective employees and/or agents) In the
performance of. or injuries sustained during the provision of. Covered
Services to Covered Persons as contemplated In this Agreement.
5.1.4.1.For commerdal vendor providers ('Vendor Providers'), such

Insurance coverage shall be in amounts that are in keeping
with Industry standards end that are acceptable to the
Contractor and the 'Department, the minimum amounts of
which shall be not less than $500,000 for automobile liability to
Indude bodily injury and property damage to one person for
any one accident, and $7^,000, for bodily Injury and property
damage to two or more person for any one accident. Including
coverage for all owrwd. hired, or nop'Owned vehicles, as
applicable.
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5.1.4.2.Such insurance coverage shall list the Contractor and the
Department'as additional insureds, and shall be evidenced by
certificates of insurance issued by one or more insurance
companies licensed to do business in New Hampshire,
containing a . thirty (30) day notice of cancellation
endorsement.

5.1.4.3.Vendor Providers shall forward copies of such certificates of
insurance to the Vendor prior to commencement of Covered
Services, and shall Issue to - the Contractor and the
Department, at any time upon request, copies of any
applicable certificates of insurance, renewal, surcharge,
cancellation notice, and/or verification of coverage.

5.1.4.4.Vendor Providers shall provide the Contractor with at least
fifteen (15) days advance written notice in the event of
cancellation, restriction or non-rental of any insurance
coverage required herein.

5.1.4.5.Volunteer drivers shall obtain and maintain insurance,
including but not limited to automobile liability Insurance as is
necessary to provide coverage for losses and liabilities arising
out of the acts and/or omissions of the Volunteer driver.

5.1.5. Performance Commitments.

5.1.5.1.Contractor No-Show Umlts. No-shov^ are defined. as

instances where a Covered Person has requested
transportation but where the transportation request is not
fulfilled by the Contractor through no fault of the Covered
Person. The Contractor shall have a zero tolerance policy for
no-show9. Upon a report of no-show. Contractor shall:

5.1.5.1.1. Arrange for altemative transportation. If
practicable.

5.1.5.1.2. Complete an Investigalion into the root cause of
the no-show, with findings reported to the
pepariment wHhIn ten (10) business days.

5.1.5.1.3. Develop a plan to ensure sustainable
performance of Iransportation for affected
Covered Persons.

5.1.5.2.Vendor Corrective Action Rans.

5.1.5.2.1. If there are greater than two (2) Vendor Provider
no shows wilhin a thirly (30) calendar day time

E;0dMA.Scep«cirs<rvic«« Conincior
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period for a unique, individual Covered Person,
the Contractor shall immediately lake steps to
resolve identified risks with Vertdor Provider,
including but not limited to, invesligation of no-
show drcumstances.

5.1.5.2.2. If there are four (4) Vendor Provider no-shows
within a thirty (30) calendar day time period
affecting one or more Covered Person(s).
Contractor shall implement a Vertdor Corrective
Action Plan (CAP) for Vendor Provider. The CAP
must be sent to the Department, followed by a
summary report when CAP is completed.

5.1.5.3 Vendor Provider No-Shov Responsibility. The Contractor

shall be responsible for facilitating the subsequent
rescheduling of transportation following a Vendor Provider rx)-
show, Vendor Provider cancellation less than twenty-four (24)
hours in advance or. Vendor failure to identify a Vendor
Provider for a trip. The Contractor shall be responsible for any
fees or costs incurred by the Department or Covered Person
as a result of the no-show or late cancellation, .^y such fees
shall be deducted from Contractor's compensation as outlined
Section 7. Performance Measures and Penalties..

S.1.5.4.Vendor refudino. Vervdor providers shall not be permitted to
refuel vehicles while the vendor provider is transporting' a
rnember.

S.1.5.5.0utbcund-Calls and Member Confirmation. The Contractor
shall confirm transportation with Covered Person,, upon a
Covered Person's request. The Contractor shall call the
member at least twenty-four (24) hours or within a time period
as speciried by the Covered Person, in advance of the
scheduled transportation time. All outbound calls to members
shall be In accordance with applicable Federal regulations and

;  State laws, induding but not limited to Telephone
■ ^ Communication Protection Act (TCPA) 47 use 227,

S.I.S.e.Trip Assignment. The Contractor shall ,ensure trips are
scheduled within or before the required advance notice period,
as mutually defined by the parties, are assigned to a Vendor

• Provider. If no Vendor Provider Is found, the VerxJor shall:

5.1.5.6.1. Communicate such to the Covered Person at
least twenty-four (24) hours before the scheduled
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trip lime. Fadlitate subsequent transportation
affanoemenls.

.  5.1.5.7.'Availabilitv of Durable Medical Eouipment fOME). Wherever
possible. Contractor shall arrange for Vendor Providers with
capabilities to provide OME to Covered Persons during
transportation when such request Is made In scheduling
transportation. DME shall include, but not be limited to.
wheelchairs and oxygen.

5.1.5.8.Claims Processino. The Contractor must process ninety-five -
percent (95%) of all Vendor Provider clean c/aims and.
member or friends^amily mileage reimbursement requests
within thirty (30) calendar days from dale of clean claim
receipt, and one hundred percent (100%) of the claims within

'  sixty (60) days. Contractor shall not process non clean daims.

5.1.5.9.Call Recordinos. The Contractor shall produce cafl recordings
requested by the Department within one (1) business day of

.  request.

5.1.5.10. Vendor Provider Monitorino. The Contractor shall submit to

the Department for approval a plan for a Vendor Performance
report card Induding standards and quantitative metrics.

5.1.5.10.1. Verxfor Providers receiving a score of less than
ninety five . percent (95%) for successive
monitoring periods shall be put on a Corrective
Action Plans.

5.1.5.10.2. The terms of the CAP shall be made available to

the Department. In Its sole discretion, the
Department may request termination of a Vendor

,  Provider for failure to successfully perform under
a CAP.

5.1.6. Vehide Standards and Safety Inspections. The Contractor shall

monitor VerxJor Providers to ensure compliance with the vehide and
safety standards outlined in this section.

5.1.6.1.Condition of Vshide and Safety Eouipment. Vehicles used In
the provision of Covered Services (*Vehicles'). shall be
properly maintained for the Covered Persons* comfort and
safety Such maintenance indudes. but is not limited to.
ensuring the following:

5.1.6.1.1. Interior of Vehicles must be dean and well-
maintained.
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5.1.6.1.2. Availability of an appropriate and adequate
seating for secure and safe trartsport for each
Covered Person and escort, child or personal
care attendant. ar>d persons with disabilities.

5.1.6.1.3. Suicl.adherence.to prohibition of smoUng in all
vehicles i^rhiie transporting recipients. All vehicles
shall post 'no smoking' signs In all vehicia
interiors, easily visible to the passengers.

5.1.6.1.4. Availability of appropriate safety equipment shall
be present and operable in the Vehicle, including
but not limited to the fodowing:

5.1.6.1.4.1. First Aid Kit.

5.1.6.1.4.2. Accident Report Forms.

5.1.6;1.4.3. Roadside reflective or warning
devices.

5.1.6.1.4.4. Flashlight.

5.1.6.1.4.5. Chains or other traction devices
(when appropriate).

5.1.6.1.4.6. Disposable gloves.

5.1.6.1.4.7. One (1) full charged dry carton
dioxide fire extinguisher, to be
maintained in eMcient operating
condition, with at least a 1A:6C

rating and bearing the label of
Underwriter's, Laboralofy. Inc. The
fire extinguisher shall be securely
mounted on the vehicle in a clearly
marked compartment and readily
accessible(5.1.6.1.4.7 is optional for
Volunteer drivers);

5.1.6.1.5. Vehicles shall be maintained in good operating
condition, and must Include, among others, the
following items in functioning condition;

5.1.6.1.5.1. Side and rear view mirrors.

5.1.6.1.5.2. Horn.

5.1.6.1.5.3. Functioning speedometer and
odometer.
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5.1.6.1.5.4. Funclloning two-way communication
system to link all vehicles to the
transpohalion providers' place of
business.

5.1.6.1.5.5. Wohdng turn signals, headlights,
talllights, and windshield wipers.

5.1.6.1.5.6. Adequaite arKj functioning heating
and air conditioning systems.

5.1.6.1.5.7. Seatbelts shall be equipped with an
adjustable driver's restraining Mt
with the requirements of . FMVSS
209, 'Seat Belt Assemblies' <See 49
C.F.R. 571.209) and FMVSS 210,
'Seat Belt Assembly Anchorages.*'
(See 49 C.F.R. 571.210).

5.1.6.2.Veh}de Maintenance.

5.1.6.2.1. Vendor Provider shall maintain vehicle

maintenance in accordance with;

5.1.6.2.1.1. Manufacturer's safety and
mechanical operating and preventive
maintenance standards inclusive of

■  tire Inflation and tread groove
pattern; and

5.1.6.2.1.2. State and Federal laws, specifically
Federal Motor Vehide Safety
Standards (FMVSS). 49 C.F.R. Part
571. Sections 102, 103, 104, 105,
100, 207, 209. 210, 217. 220. 221.
225, 302. 403 and 404. October 1,
2004, are hereby Incorporated by
reference.

5.1.6.2.2. Commercial Vendor Provider shall maintain and

provide written documentaUon of preventive
maintenance, regular maintenance, inspections,
lubrication arxl repairs performed for ea^ vehide
under their control. Such records shall be

maintained for et least seven (7) years and
indude, ai a minimum, the following information:
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5.1.6.2.2.1. Identification of the vehicle, including'
make, model and license number or
other means of positive Identification
ard ownership.

5.1.6.2.2.2. Date, mileage, type of inspection,
maintenance, lubdcation or repair
performed, and a description of
each.

5.1.6.2.2.3. If not owned by Vendor Provider, the
name of any person or lessor
furnishing any.vehicle.

5.1.6.2.2.4. The name and address of any entity
or contractor - performing an
inspection, maintenance, lubrication
or repair.

All vehicles of Commercial vendors5.1.6.3.Information DIsolaved

shall have:

5.1.6.3.1. The Vendor Provider's name, vehide number (if
applicable), and the Contractor's' phone number
prominently displayed within the interior of each
vehicle.

5.1.6.3.2. instructions for normal and emergency operabon
of the lift or ramp shall be carried or displayed in
every vehide.

5.1.6.3.3. Information noted in Section 2.1.6.1.3., above.

5.1.6.4.AOA. Vehicles of Commercial vendors shall comply with the
American's with Oisabtlllles Act (ADA) regulations. Any
vehicles used for the purpose of transportir^ Individuals vrith
disabilities (paralransit) shai) meet (he requirements set forth
In 49 CFR Part 38. hereby incorporated by reference, and the
following:

5.1.6.4.1.

5.1.6.4.2.

Installation of a wheelchair lift or ramp shall not
cause the manufacturer's GVWR, gross aide
weight rating or tire rabng (o be exceeded.

Except in locations within three and one half (BVt)
Inches of the vehide floor, all readily accessible
exposed edges or other hazardous protrusions of
pats of wheelchair lift assemblies or ramps that
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are located in the passenger compartment shall
be padded with energy absorbing material to
mitigate Injury in normal use ar^ in case of a
collision. This requirement shall also apply (o
parts of the vehide associated with the operation
of the lift or ramp.

5.1.6.4.3. The controls for operating the lift shall be at a
location where the driver or lift attendant has a full
view, unobstructed by passengers; of the lift
platform, its entrance and exit, and the wheelchair
passenger, either directly or with partial
assistance of mirrors. Lifts located entirely to the
rear of the driver's seal shall not be operable from
the driver's seat, but shall have an override
control at the driver's position that can t>e
activated to prevent the lift from being operated
by the other controls (except for emergerKy
manual operation upon power failure).

5.1.6.4.4. The InstaHaticn of the wheelchair lift or'ramp and
its controls and the method of attachment in the
vehide body or chassis shall not diminish the
structural integrity of the vehide nor cause a
hazardous imbalance of the vehide. No pan of
the assembly, when installed and stowed, shall
exterrd laterally beyond the normal side contour of
the vehicle or vertically t>eyond the lowest part of
the rim of the wheel doses to the lift.

5.1.6.4.5. Each wheelchair lift or ramp assembly shall be
legibly and permanently marked by the •
manufacturer or installer with the following
minimum information:

5.1.6.4.5.1. The manufadurer's name and
address.

5.1.6.4.5.2. The month and year of manufacture.

5.1.6.4.5.3. A certificate that the wheelchair lift or
ramp securement devices, and their

installation, conform to Slate

requirements applicable to
accessible vehicles.

5.1.6.5.Vehide State Inspection Reouirement. '
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5.1.6.5.1. Vendor Provider shall ensure all vehicles ere

inspected and meet stale inspection standards.
Vendor Providers Identified (n this section,
exclude public transportation/mass transit, which
are required to comply with federal and state
requirements and inspections. All vehicles used

to transport Covered Persons shall be state
inspected and registered in accordance with state
law prior to the provision of services. Records and
documentation of annual state as well as

documentation of any required corrective actions
shall be retained, for compliance review, a
minimum of seven (7) years by the Ver>dor
Provider.

5.1.6.5.2. Vendor Provider shall obtains and provide to the
Vendor the 'relevant documentation that the
vehicle meets the standards prescribed by law
and is safe for transportation services'.
Documentation of the state inspection shall
include;

5.1.6.5.2.1. Identification of the individual(s)
performing the Inspection.

5.1.6.5.2.2. The date Of inspection.

5.1.6.5.2.3. IdentlficaUon of the vehicle

inspected.

5.1.6.5.2.4. Identification of the equipment and
devices inspects including the
identification of equipment and.
devices found deficient or defective

(specifically Identify corrections
required in order for the Vendor
Provider vehicle to meet the

requirements of the state
Inspection.).

5.1.6.5.2.5. IdentiHcatlon of deficient or defective

items and notice of the actions taken
(0 cornplete -the corrective the
deficiencies.

5.1.6.5.3. For taxis and any other commercial. vehicles.
Vendor Provider shall ensure all vehicles are
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maintained and operated in accordance vyith town
or city munidpal ordinances or code in addition to
any applicable state or federal law requirements.

5.1.6.6.Vendor Provider Pre»Servlce Inspections.

5.1.6.6.1. Contractor shall require Vendor' Providers to
complete an inspection of all vehicles prior to (he

I  provision of services each day. The inspection
shall ensure the vehide Is safe, dean and in good
working order. The Vendor Provider shall not
permit the provision of services and shall report to
the Vendor, all defects and defidendes that are

likely to affect safe operation or cause mechanical
malfunctions that result in the discontinuatiori of
vehide use in their fleet. The Ver)dor Provider

shall make available upon request of the Vendor,
documentation of a vehide's corrective action

when safe op>erdtion was in question in
accordance yvith the above.

5.1.6.6.2. Commercial Vervjor Provider's Inspection log,
shall contain, and be available for audit by
Vendor upon request, at a minimum the foVowlng
inspected items;

5.1.6.6.2.1. Service and Parking Brakes;

5.1.6.6.2.2. Tires and Wheels (rujilng the tires
and wheels are visibly free from
cracks and distortion do not have
missing, cracked or broken mounting
lugs);

5.1.6.6.2.3. Steering;

5.1.6.6.2.4. Horn;

5.1.6.6.2.5. Lighting, induding but not limited to
devices, directional, and hazards;

5.1.6.6.2.6. Windshield wipers;

5.1.6.6.2.7. Mirrors:

5.1.6.6.2.8. Passenger doors and seats;

5.1.6.6.2.9. Exhaust systems;

Ej^ a. Seopt d Uttkmi CoRirscia WUii;
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5.1.6.6.2.10.Equipment for transporting
wheelchairs; and

5.1.6.6.2.11. Safety and security arwl emergency
equipment.

5.1.6.6.3. The results of safety Inspedions shall be
randomly audited by the Contractor during site
visits with the. accompanying written report
provided to the Department on an ongoing basis
but In any event not less than annually and as
needed based on complaint data.

5.1.6.6.4. Records of Commercial Vendor Provider daily
pre-operational inspections shall be maintained
for compliance review for a period no less than
seven (7) years.

5.1.7. Driver Standards.

5.1.7.1.Driver Responsibility and Trainino.

5.1.7.1.1. Contractor and Vendor Providers shall Inform and
formally train drivers of their job duties and
responsibilities, and shall provide training for all
equipment related to their Vehicles, including but
not limited to the following training programs:

5.1.7,1.1.1. Briefing about the transportaiion
program, reporting forms. Vehicte
operation and pre-service Inspection
requirements, and the geographic
area in which they will be providing
service (to indude information
associated with the Provider
Invoicing Policy and Procedures);

5.1.7:1.1.2. Road tes1tr>g with the type of Vehide
the driver will be operating; and

5.1.7.1.1.3. Completion of defensive driving
course, or an equivalent, within six

(6) months of date of hire for drivers
with moving violations within the past
one (1) calendar year.

5.1.7.1.2. Contractor and Vendor Provider shall require the
completion of training v^th explicit inst^ctional
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and procedural (raining and testing in the
following:

5;1.7.1.2.1. Safety policies and responsibilities;

5.1.7.1.2.2. Operational vehicle and equipment.
Inspections;

5.1.7.1.2.3. Basic operations, maneuvering and
defensive driving techniques;'

5.1.7.1.2.4. Boarding, alighting, assisting and
securing passengers;

5.1.7.1.2.5. Operation of wheelchair lift and ouier
special equipment and drivlrtg
conditions; .

5.1.7.1.2.6. Handling emergencies, security
threats, and threat awarertess.
including communication of urtsafe
conditions.

5.1.7.2,Driver Selection. Reportina and Maintenance of Records.

5.1.7.2.1. Vendor Provider's shall ensure driver selection.
includes at a minimum the requirements identiHed
as follows:

5.1.7.2.1.1. Driver's appropriate and valid State
driver's license, including a valid
state chauffeur or taxi

llcense/designaiion, if applicable;

5.1.7.2.1.2. Review of driver applicant's criminal
background and Division of Motor
Vehicles record, including review of
both persorial and conimercla) or
business driving record five (5) years
in arrears, which shall verify that the
driver applicant has not:

5.1.772.1.2.1.. Had more than three
(3) moving violations
and/or accidents

within the last three (3)
years and that the-
applicant or employee
has had no more than
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two (2) moving
violations, two (2)
accidents. or a
combination of more

tban two (2) moving
violations and/or

accidents within the

last twelve (12)
months.

5.1.7.2.1.2.2. Been convicted of any
crimes, against people
or any drug or alcohol
related offenses.

5.1.7.2.1.3. Any exceptions to Section
2.1.7.2.1.2., above shall be made
only with the prior approval of
(department to assure the Covered
Persons will be in no jeopardy from
the driver.

5.1.7.2.2. Vendor Provider and drivers are required to report
fraudulent use of transportation services to the
Contractor, who is responsible for reporting
fraudulent activity to the Department;

5.1.7.2.3. Vendor Provider and drivers shall be required to
report or provide notice in accordance with the
provisions of this agreement;

5.1.7.2.4. Commercial Vendor Provider shall maintain
records:

5.1.7.2.4.1. Associated with the appropriate
vetting and selection of its drivers,
including background checks and
records of the driver's completed

^  training.

5.1.7.2.4.2. For tracking of prevenWe and
routine vehicle service ' for a
minimum period of seven (7) years,
(nduding daily inspection reports.

5.1.7.2.4.3. Any documents required as a part of
this agreement.
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5.i.7.3.Dfiver Safety Obltaations. Vendor Provider shall ensure that

all drivers satisfy the following requirements; .

5.1.7.3.1. . Drivers shall maintain a valid driver's license and
shall comply with state and federal regulations for
vehicle transport on roadways.

5.1.7.3.2. No driver shall use alcohol, narcotics. Illegal
drugs or drugs that impair ability to perform while
on duty.

5.1.7.3.3. No driver shall operate a vehicle when Impaired
as described above and if impaired by illness or
fatigue.

5.1.7.3.4. Drivers may not assist wheelchair passengers up
or down more than one (1) step, unless It is
determined by the Covered Person, or guardian
and driver that is can be performed safely.

5.1.7.3.5. The driver shall ensure the safe transport of
children in accordance with state law. including

the proper installation and use of a. car seat
based on the age and height of the child.

5.1.7.3.6. Vehicle transfer points shall provide shelter,
security and safety of Covered Persons:

5.1.7.3.7. Drivers shall not:

5.1.7.3.7.1. Operate a vehicle with inoperable
passenger doors or with the doors in
the open position.

5.1.7.3.7.2. Leave the vehicle unattended In an

unsafe condition with pdssenger^s)
aboard at any time.

5.1.7.3.7.3. Permit use of the vehicle in a
manner not permitted by the
construction or design of the vehlde.

5.1.7.3.7.4. Operate any vehicle with recapped,
regrooved or retreaded tires on the

■  steering axle.

5.1.7.3.7.5. Operate unclean vehicles or vehicles
containing strong odors.

5.1.7.3.6. The Vendor Provider shall not:

'Qlo.ExMbil A. Scopt d Swvte** C«ntr»ctor INUH:
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5.1.7.3.8.1. Permit or require a driver to drive
more than twelve (12) hours in any
one twenty-four (24) hour period.
The driver Is not permitted to drive
until the driver fulfills the requirement
of eight (8) consecutive hours off
duty.

5.1.7.3.8.2. Refuel vehicles in a dosed building.
5.1.7.3.9. The Vendor shall establish procedures for drivers

to deal with situations in which emergency care is
needed for Covered Persons that they have been
assigned to transport.

5.1.7.3.10. For safety and protection of the public due to
conditions such as adverse weather, disaster,
security threat, a road or traffic condition, medical
emergency, or an accident.

5.1.7.4.Driver Service Obligations. Vendor Provider shall ensure that
all drivers satisfy the following requirements:

5.1.7.4.1. All drivers shall wear or have, visible, easily
readable proper Identification;

51.7.4.2. Drivers shall offer boarding assistance if
necessary or requested to the seating portion of
the vehicle. Boarding assistance shall indude but
not be limited to:

5.1.7.4.2.1. Opening and dosing the vehide
door.

5.1:7.4.2.2. Fastening the seal belt.

5.1.7.4.2.3. Storage of mobility assistlve devices.

5.1.7.4.3. Drivers shall not refuel when passengers are in
the vehlda.

5.1.7.4.4. Drivers shall only pick up and deliver Covered
Persons to locations assigned by Vendor.

5.1.7.4.5. Vendor Drivers shall speak English.

5.1.7.4.6. Vendor Drivers shall be courteous at all times
with their passengers.

5.1.7.4.7. Covered Persons property that can be carried by
the passenger and/or driver may be stored safely

Dku/A. Soopa or Swictf Contrtcto MUl-
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on ifie vehldes at no additional charge. The
driver shall provide safe ar>d secure
transportation of the following items, as
applicable, within the capabilities of the vehicle;

5.1.7.4.7.1. Wheelchairs.

5.1.7.4.7.2. Child seats.

5.1.7.4.7.3. Stretchers.

5.1.7.4.7.4. Secured oxygen.

5.1.7.4.7.5. Personal assistlve devices.

5.1.7.4.7.6. Intravenous devices.

5.1.7.4.8. Driver's shall identify themselves by name and
company in a manner that is conducive to

communications w'th a specific passenger, upon
pick up of each Covered Person, group of
Covered Persons, or representative guardian or

^ associate of Covered Person except In situation
where the driyer transports the Covered Person,
on a recurring basis.

5.1.7.4.9. Driver's shall not:

5.1.7.4.9.1. Leave the vehide unattended with

passenger(s) aboard for longer than .
five (5) minutes.

5.1.7.4.9.2. Wear strong fragrances, eat, drink,
smoke, or text in the yehide unless
medical necessity, exdusrve to fluid
consumption, Is required for
sustenance during transport.

5.1.7.4.10. The paratranslt driver shall provide the Covered
Person with boarding assistance, if necessary or
requested, to the seating portion of the vehide.
The boarding assistance shall indude, but not be
limited to. opening the vehide door, fastening the
seat belt or utilization of wheel chair securemenl
devices, storage of mobility assistlve devices and
dosing the vehicle door. In the doo.r-througfvdoor
paratranslt service category, the driver shall open
and dose doors to buildings, except In situations
In which assistance in openlrtg and/or dosing

Emw A. Seop* SwvicM CoitiKtv imitb
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building doors would rtot be safe for passengers
remaining in the vehide. The driver shall provide
assisted access in a dignified manner.

5.t .6. Reoreaentalion and Warraniies. The Vendor Provider shall represent
and warrant any information furnished to the Contractor in connection
with the background check of the Vendor Provider and drivers Is true
and correct and the Vendor Provider Is not now and never has been

exduded from the partidpation in any stale of federal health care
program.

CjODbHA.SooetcrS«rv4c«« Centmoer MfiiU:
Rf S-2017 <)MBP-02Ti«cq
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6. Reporting Requirements

6.1. The Contractor shall provide aO perfomiance reports to the Department as specified in TaWe S.l-A;
6.2. The Department shall provide spedfications for all performartce reports in Table 6.1 -A;
6.3. The Contractor shall meet the performance standards indicated in Table 6.1-A; and
6.4. Faiture to meet performance standards may result In liquidated damage as indicated in Table 6.1 -A.

TABLE 6.1-A PefformBfTca Reports and Utpitdstod Damegee

Repofflng Rafettmca
ID

Name Type Meaaure

Data Peftod
Standard Due
Date

RretOata
Reoutrad

Standard Uquldfltad
Darnaflaa

CLAIM.01
Timely Clean Claims
Processing Whhin 30
Calendar Days ..

Measure

Numerator

and

denominator

calcuiated

daily / ,
summary

measure

reported
monthly

45 calendar days
after end of

reporting period
05%

51.000 for each
tenth of a

percentage point

below the

standard.

CLAIM.02
Claims Quality
Assurance: Claims

Processing Accuracy
Measure Quarlerty,

45 calertdar days
after end of

reporting period

$1,000 for each
tenth of a

percentage point
below tlw

specified
accuracy rate,
assessed on a

monthly basts.

EM&a A. Scop* «f S«fvtec«
Rrd-201 r-OOSBP-Ot-Tmo
Pace 90 ef 39
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TABLE 6.1-A Performance RepoftA and Uquhtated DeinegM

Roporttng Rafaience
(D

Name Typo. Ueosiim

Data Pertod
Standard Due
Data

First Data

Reottlrod
StaRdard UquWatad

Damaoea

COMMUNICATION.bl Communicatiorts Plan Plan Annuafty August 31st

Within 14

calendar

days of (he
eiecutbn

of the

agreemertt

EMERGENCY.01

Emergency and
Disaster Recovery
PJan

Plan Annually August 31st

Within 60

days of the
execution

of the

aqreement.

FINANCIAL.01

Standard Audited

Annual Financial

Statements

Narrative

Report
Annuafty

2 months after

the ertd of the

calendar year

FINANCIAL.02
Vendor Provider

Reimbursement Rates
Table AnnuaOy December 31st

Within 30

days of the
execution

of the

agreement

FWA.01
Fraud Waste and

Abuse Report
Narrative

Report .
Quarterly

2 months after

end of reporting
period

GRIEVANCe.01
Merriber Grievance

Log
Table Monthly

20 calendar days
after ertd of

reportinq period

EieteS A Soep* of Service*
Rr»^l7O»ffiP-02-Tr«o
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TABLE 6.1-A PeffDrmfince Ropofis afid UqtihistDd Damastt

Repoilfng Reference
(D

Name Type Measure
DataPeHod

Standard Ous

Data
First Data

Required
Standard Liguldatsd

Damsoss'

GRIEVANCE.02

Member Grievance

Dispositions Resoived
WHbin 14 Calendar

Davs

Measure Ouarlefty
2 month after end

of repoding
period

100%

$0.01 PMPM

each quarter
acceptance rate
is rrot met.

GRIEVANCE.03
Member Grievance

Rate
Measure Quarterty

2 month after end

of reporting
penod

<1%

$0.01 PMPM
each quarter
acceptar>ce,rate
is not met.

MEMCOMM.01

Member

Communications:
Avera^ Speed to
Arttwer Within 90

Seconds

Measure Monthly
20 calendar days
after end of

reporting period
i95%

MEMCOMM.02

Member

Commurucations:

Average Wait Time
and Hold Status of

Less than 4 Minutes

Measure Monthly
20 calendar days
after end of

repofltr^ peri^
>95%

MEMCOMM.03

Member

CommunicaliofTs:

Average Catis
Abarrdoned

Measure Monthly
20 calendar days
after end of

reportirrg period
<5%

$1,000 per
percentage point
above the

standard.

MEMC0MM.Q4

Member

Comnrtunications:

Average Call
Blodtage

Measure Monthly
20 calerrdar days
after end of

reporting period
0%

$1,000 per
percentage point
above the

standard.

Ejtttl A. Scope of Senfcn
Pfe-}0l7«MaPO3T«n
PttaeTM

CoRPacloi IniSitk:Ou wO
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TABLE 6.1-A PttffDfmance RepoftB and Llqutdatad Damagos

Reporting Referanco
D

Name Type Meetlire

Osta Period

Standard Due

Date

Rret Date

Requtred ■

LlQtfWated
Damagee

MEM(X>MM.05

Member

Comn^ications:

Voica Mails Returned
by Next Business Day

Measure Monthly
20 calendar days
after end of

reporting period
>95%

M1LEAGE.01

Utilization of Mileage
Reimbursement

Program
Table Monthly

2 rTX)nths after

the ecTd of the

repoftinq period.

NEMT.01

NEMT Requests
Detivered by Mode of
TrBrtsportation

Measure Quarterty
2 month after ertd

of reportmg
perM

NEMT.02

NEMT Request
Authorization

Approval Rate by
Modeof

Transportation

Measure Quarterty
2 months after

end of reportmg
period

NEMT.63
NEMT Srf»edute Trip
Results by Outcome

Measure Quarterty
2 months after

end of reporting
period

NEWr.04

NEMT Services
Oefivered by Type of
Medica) Service

Measure Quarterty
2 months after

ertd of reporting
period

NEMT.05
NEMT Service Use tjy
Population Measure Quarterty

2 nwnths after

end of reporting
period

EtfAa A. Scop* ol Sovlon
Rr&^17-OMaP-02-Twa
Pagt 3) el U -
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TABt^ 8.1^ Performance Repoite artd UquWated Dsmages

Reporting Reference
ro

Name Type Measure

Data Poftod

Standard Due '

Data "
FlretDate

Reautred
Standafd Uqutdatad

Damagaa

NEMT.06

NEMT Scheduled Trip
Member CanceHaiions

by Reason for
Member Cancellation

for Contracted
Providers

Measure Quarterly
2 months after

end of reporting
period

NEMT.07
NEMT Scheduled Trip
Orvtime Provider Rate

Measure Quarterty
2 months after .

end of reporting
period

NEMT.OB

NEMT Scheduled

Trips Assigned Within
the Advartced Notice

Period

Measure Quarterty
2 months after

end of reporting
period

>96%

NEMT.09
NEMT Vendor No

Show Rate
Measure Quarterty

2 n)on1hs after

ertd of reporting
period

>1%

SO.Ot PMPM

each quarter the
larqet is not met.

NETVVORK.01

Comprehensive
Provider Network and

Memt>er Access Plan

Plan Annually September 30th

60

calendar

days prior
to the start

of services.

NETVVORK.02

Comprehensive
Provider Netwodc and
Member Access

Report

Narrative

Report
Quarterty

2 months after

end of reporting
period

NE7WORK.03
Comprehensive
Networli Filino

Table AnnuaDy September 30th

A. Sew* of Sentee*
af»-»t7OM8P-03-rrtft»
Paga M erf 35
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Premhim Assistant Program (PAP) artd Fee For Service Participants

TABLE 6.1<A Pefformertce Reports arxf Uquktetsd Osmsges

Reporting Refeiewce
to

Name Type Measure

Data Perfod
Stattdsrd Due

Date
FtistDats

Raoutred
Standard Liquidated

Damapea

PMP.01
Performance
Management and
Compliance Plan

Plan Annually August 31st

Within SO

days of the
execution

of the

agreement.

PROVTERM.01
Provider Terminafior)

Log Table As needed

Wrthin 15

calendar days of
the notice of

termination or

effective date,
wtiichever is

sooner

VEHtCLESAFETY.Ol
Vehicle Oaify Safety
Inspections

hteasure Quarterly
2 montfrs after

end of reporting
period

\

VEH(CLeSAFETY.b2
Vehicle Oaily Safety
Inspection Passed Measure Quarterly

2 months after

end of reporting
period

>95%

52.500 per
percentage point
below the target.

VEWCLeSAFETY.oa

Vehidcs Adherir^g to
Regular Preventive
Mairdenance

Schedule

Measure Quarterty
2 monttis after

er)d of reporting
period

>95%

55.000 per
percenl^e poini
belcwthe target.

WEATHER.01
Indemerd Weather

Operalionis Report
Narrative
Report

As Needed Dally as Needed

CtfM A Seaps or Scrvkn
rtFo^ei 7-ow8P-0Mm

r»vssor35
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New Hafflpthire Department of Health and Human Sorvicee
Tranapoftation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Program (NHHPP)
Premium Aaslstance Program (PAP) arrd Foe For Service Participants

EXHIBIT A.1

ADOITipNAL SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Inforrnatioruil Technology Security Requirements

1.1. The vendor will sign and comply with any and all system access policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any DHHS system. This will be completed
prior to system access being authorized, and on a regular basis as requested
by DHHS.

1.2. The vendor will maintain proper security and privacy controls on its systems
according to appiicabte federal, state, and local regulations and align^ with'
Industry standards and best practices including but not limited to CMS Federal
regulations. HIPAA/HITECH. RSA 359c. Er>sure the safe and secure
management of vulnerabilities through recurring - practice of identifying,
ctassifying. remediating, and mitigating threats.

1.3. Develop, maintain, and follow procedures to ensure that data is protected
throughout its entire Information llfecycle (from creation, transformation, use;
storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to store the data
(i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

1.4. The vendor will provide to DHHS on an annual basis a written attestation of
HIPAA compliance, which will demonstrate proper operational security and
privacy controls, policies, and procedures are in place and maintained within
their organization and any applicable sub-contractors.

1.5. The contractor will provide a documented process for securely disposing of
data, data storage hardware, and or media; and will obtain written certirication
for any State data destroyed by the vendor or any subcontractors as a part of
ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations. When no longer In
use, electronic media containing DHHS data is rendered unrecoverable via a
secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for
secure deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing).

1.6. When using third party service providers to create, collect, access, transmit, or
store State of NH data, additional documentation may be required by the
vendor.

1.7. DHHS may from time to time audit the security mechanisms the vendor
maintains to safeguard access to the State of NH Information, systems and
electronic communications. Audits may include examination of systems
security, associated administrative practices, and requests for additiorial
documentation in support of this contract.

tlM.A-1 AddSorul Scoc% oi S«fV<c«9 Cennctor tnUsti
nra-TOU-OMSP-fQ'TrsfO . .



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Transportation Management for New Hampshire Health Protection Plan
(NHHPP) Premium Assistance Program (PAP) Participants
Fee-For<Servlce8 (FFS) Participants

"  ! Exhibit B
Method and Ccnditlons Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount r\ot to exceed the Price LimiiaUon.
block 1.6, for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of
Services.

2. This Contract Is funded with genera) and federal furids. Department access to
federal funding is dependent upon meeting the reguirements set forth in the
Catalogue of Family and Domestic Assistance (CFDA).I^ 93.776 US Department of
Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services, Medlcaid

'  Title XIX. Medical Assistance Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1. DHHS win make a monthly retrospective payment to the Contractor for each
fee-for-service (FFS) or Premium Assistance Program (PAP) member
eligible during the month. Capitation will be processed no later than the 15^
day of (he month for the previous month's capitation arid will be paid no later
than the 30^ day of that month.

3.2. The Department shal) recover capitation payments made for deceased
members at six'(6) month intervals. Capitation rates are as indicated in
Exhibit 6>1 Capitation Rate Sheet.

'  3.3. The Contractor shall submit encounters for transportation services provided
through the NH Medicald Management Information System (MMIS) In the
Accredited Standards Committee (ASC)X12 837P claim format.

3.4. The Contractor shall receive capitation payment information from MMIS
using the ASC X12N 820 Professlonal transaction or other supplemental
payment reports.

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the
Form P37, General Provisions. Contract Completion Date. Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this Contract may be withheld. In whole or in part, in the event of
honcompliance with any State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the
services provided, or if the said services have not been completed in accordance
with ̂tho terms and conditions of this Agreement.

8- Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price'limitation, arxf to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

CoonSnitfd TrmaponxOon S«ivic«s. inc B C«ntrMor InUa



Hampshiro Ocpartr^t of Health and Human Servtcea
Tranaportatton Monagemont for New Hampahtre Health Protection Plan
{NHHPP) Promlum Aaalstance Program (PAP) Participants
Foe For ̂ rvtco (FFS) Participants

Exhibit B-1 Capitation Rate Shoe!

1. Capitation Rates are "per member / per month* amounts, based on the SFY 2016
eligible Premium Asstetarwe and Fee For Service members not eligible for managed
care or Premium Assistance. Capitallon Rates for calendar year 2017 and calendar
year 2016 are as specined in Table 1.1 below;

1.1. Table 1.1 - Capitation Rate Table

Year 1

4/1/17-12/31/17

Year 2

1/1/18-12/31/18
■  Eligible
Members

SFV2016

PAP members 40.000
FFS members 9.000

PAP members 40.000
FFS members 9,000

Per member
per month

rates

$10.06 $10.21

Annualize 9 12
Operations
Grand total $4,436,460 $6,003,480

Cconjlnsisd Transportation SoivUons. Inc.
EfNtrftS-1

RFB-20l?.OM3P-CnTfWtt
Papa 1 of I

Contractor iniiiais;

,  o^3i)j6)n



N«w Htmpshlre Oepartmnt of HotKh And Human Sarvlces
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractora ObflgsUoni: Tho Contractor covenants and agrees that all hjnds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, (he Comractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows;

1. Cornpllanee with Federal and State Lawa: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eliglbllity determination shall be made In aceo/dartce with eppfieaUe federal artd
State laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies ar>d procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Oetarmlnailon: Qigibirity determinations shaD be made on forms provided by
the Oepertmerd for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Oocumentatlon; in addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file thai) include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
reganjirtg eligibillty determinations that the Department may request or require.

{

4. Fair Heartr>gs: The Contractor understands that aD applieents for servlcet hereunder, as well as
Indtvlduafs declared ineligible hove a right to a fair hearing regarding thai determhation. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for servlcet shall be permitted to fill out
en applicalioo form and that each appHcant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her r^t to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulatiorvs.

5. Gratuities or Ktekfaacks: The Contractor agrees that It Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Coruractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the Stale In order to Infiuenee the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may tsrmnate this Contract artd any sub<ontract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any Ur>d were offered or received by
any officials, otncers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

S. Retroacthro Paymenta: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, rt is expressly understood and agreed by the paites
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individuai prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no paymertts shall be made fbr expenses ifKurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on wAilch the individual applies for servlcea or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notvrfthslanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contair^ thall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the CorMractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate w4uch exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
(unders for such service. If at any time durlr>g the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Fir\al
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Depaitment shall determine that the Contractofhas used
payments hereurxder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of luch costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible Indrviduafs
or other third party funders. tho Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. (n which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any Mure payment to tf>e Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

C - Sp*Ci»l Pros«|ioftS Coousdw Ifl

Psgslois oew^ J J 7*^



N*w Hampshire Oep8rtm«nt of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Oemartd repayment of the excess paymertt by the Contractor In which event falure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor la
permitted to determine die eiisibilily of indtvidudls for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided (0 any individual who is found by the Department to be lr>eligit>le for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDiT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIOENTIAIITY:

e. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eiigibilliy records ipocifled above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the rollov^ng recoil during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fbcal Records; books, records, documenb and otherdata evidexing and refiectlr>g aB costs

and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Pehod. said records to be
maintained In accordance with 8ccountir)g procedures and Notices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs arxf expenses, and which are acceptable to the Departrrtenl. and
to Include, wfthout limitation, all ledgers, twoks, records, and original evidertce of costs such as
purchase requtsriions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
lr>-hlr)d contributions, tabor time cards, payroDs, and other records reiqueited or required by the

' Ocpariment.
8.2. Statistlcat Records: Statistical, enroinment. atlerKlance or visit records for each rec^ient of

lervlces duhng the Conuaa Periodi vhich records shall IrKiude all records of appicaiion and
eligibirrty (irtcluding at) forms required to determine etIglbBity for each such recipient), records
regarding the provlson of services and all invoices submitted to the Oepariment to obtain
payment for such services.

6.3. Medical Records; Where appropriate atvj as prescribed by the Deparlrheni reguiaiiorts, the
Contractor ahatl retain medial records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency (iscat year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. 'Audits of States. Local Govemmenta. and Non
Profit Organizations* and the.provtsions of Standards for Audit of Govermmental Orgardzations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to fmaxia! oompliarKe audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United Slates Departmerrt of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated repreaentatlyes shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligalions of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shad be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department ao payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

to. Confidentiality of Recorda: AD information, reports, and records mainiained hereunder or collected
in connection with the perfORnsnce of the services and the Contract shall be confidenltal and shall r>ot
be disdooed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws artd the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such infofmation.idisclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such mformation In connection with their offidal duties and for purposes
diredJy connected to the administration of the services and the Contract: and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concsmlng a redplen! for any purpose not
direcdy connected with the admlnlstraiion of the Department or the Contmctor'a retpontbUities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on wsftten consent of the reo'pienl his
attorney or guardian.

ErmsD C - SpscUi Pr9<i4»loro ContrsOor Nla(»
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Notwitfistsnding anything lo (he contrary contained herein (he covenants and conditions coniained in
the Paragraph thaO survive the (erminaiion ol the Contract (or any reason whatsoever.

11. Reporte: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the foBowing
times if requested by the Oepanment.-
11.1. Interim FinandaJ Reports: Written Interim finBf>da) reports eonta(nir>g a detailed descrlpUonof

all costs orid norvallmvable expenses tnciirred by the Contractor to the data of the report and
containing such other information as shaO be deemed satisfactory by the Oepartmerrt to
Juslitjr the reie of poymeni hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall bo submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Fir>a) Report: A hnal report shaO be submitted within thirty <30} days after the end of Ihe term
of this Contract The Final Report thaO be in a form sathloctory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the Proposal
end other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Servlcee: Disallowance of Costs: tjpon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon poymeni of the price (imitation
hereunder. (he Contract and all (he obtigabons of ihe parties hereunder (except such otriigetiona as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the temi of this Contract and/or
survive \Ue termlrvatlon of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shsfi disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
cosb hereunder the Department shaO retain the right, at its dtsaelion, to deduct the amourp of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums.from the Contractor.

13. Credits; All documents, rtolcet, press raieasei. research reports and other malerlab prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of this Contract shall mclude th« following
statement

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was Tnanced under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health end Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New HampsNre and/or such other fundirtg sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Heatth and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownerahip: All materials (wrttten. video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHHS More prlnt^, producUon,
distribution or use. The OHHS win retain cbpydghl ownership for any and en original materials
produced. IrtcKiding. but not dmrted to. brochures, resource rectories, protocols or guidelines,
potters, or reports. Contractor shall noi reproduce any matertais produced under Ihe contract without
prior wTftlen approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of FacUltlee: Compliance wHh Laws and Regulations: In ttte operation of any faciSties
'  for providing services, the Contractor shall compty with all laws, orders and regulations of federal.

stale, county and murticipal euthorilies and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which ituill impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If arty goverrvnental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of (he said facility or the performartce of the said services,
the Contractor viA) procure said license or permit, artd wS at an times compty with the terms and
conrfiiions of each such Bcense or perrnil. In connection with Ihe foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants end a(^s that, during the term of this Contract the (acSiUes ahatl
comply with an rules, orders, regulations, end requirements of the State Offtce of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance whh local building and toning codes, by*
taws and regulaUons.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contraaor will provide an Equal Employment
Dpportunl^ Plan (EEOP7 to the (3fAc« for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Progmms (OCR), tf ft has
received a single award of 1600,000 or more. If the recipient receives S2S,000 or more and has SO or
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more employtes. It wtll mdintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than 125.000. or public grantees
wHh fewer than SO employees, regardless of the amount of the awardr the recipient wfll provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Trfbes. and medical and educational Institutions are exempt fr^ the
EEOP requirement, but ere required to submh a cerbfication form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forma ere available et; hRp;//www.ojp.usdO)/ebout/ocr/pdfa/eert.pdr.

17. Limited Englleh ProAeleney (LEP): As clarified by EiecutJve Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons wtth Limited English Proficiency, and resulting egerKy guidance, national orfgln
discrfmtrutlon includes diKrfmlnetior^ on the basis of limited English proficrer>cv (LEP). To ensure

compliance with the Omrtlbus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1986 artd Tide VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Conbactors.must lake reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

16. Pilot Program for Entiencement of Contractor Employee Whistteblower Protaclions; The
foDowing shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simi^ified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currenUy. $150,000)

Contractor EwRioreE ̂ sriEaiovvcR Ricnts and Requ>rew£nt To Intorm Employees of
Wmstleblower Rigkts (SEP 2013)

{a) This contract and employees wor1ilr>g on this contract will be subject to Che wtiistlebiow«r rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee wfitsbeblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform Ks employees in writing, in the predominant language of the Mqrkfoite.
of employee whisUeblower righb and protections under 41 u.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal AcquliKion Regutation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including (his paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the timpbfied acquisition thresliold.

19. Subcontractors; OHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or fur\ct)ons for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the fur>ction(s). Prior to
Subcontractng. the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement (hat specifies activities end reporting
responsibilities of (he subcontractor and pravWes for revoklrtg the delegedon or imposing sanctlora if
the sutjcontractof's performance >s not adequate. Subcontractors are subject (o the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and ths Contracta is responsrbie to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those oondittons.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the foDowi^;
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responslbHItles and how sar>ct»ns/revocation udll be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's perfomience on an ongoing basis

Ejtfubii C - $p«dai ProvitJont Corti'iaot
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identirying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
respor^slbilities, and when the subcontractor's performance vi4ll be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracb.

If the Contractor idenirfies deHciendes or areas lor improvement are identified, the CcntrBCtor shati
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used In the Contract, the foiiowtng terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS; Shall mean those direct and Indirect Items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowabie and reimbursable In occcrdance with cost and accounting principles established in.eccordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

;

DEPARTMENT; NH Department of HeaRh ar>d Human Services.

FINANCIAL management GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitied 'Financial Management Guidelines' and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agertcles which have contracted with the State of NH to-receive furxls.

PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the t>partment and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
Individuals by. the Contractor in accordance with lf>e terms and cor>ditions of tiie Contract arvl setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract..

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified actrvi^ determined by the Deparlmeni and specified in Exhibit 6 of the
Contract

FEDERALTSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, end policies, etc. are
referred to inihe Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such taws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

contractor MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Admmistrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 54t-A, for the purpose of impleme'nting State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

supplanting other federal FUNDS; The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract wtD not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

r)Lh/CmlM C - S(Wd«l Prov<*loni Contractor InSliliJ* ̂  ̂
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~ REVISIONS TO GENERAL PRQVISIOWS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the Genetal Provisions ol this cor^tract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, la
replaced aa follov^:

4. CONOITIONAI. NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Nohwithstanding any provision of thia Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
herounder, includlrrg without llmlietion, the continuance of paymenta, in «^oie or in part,
under this AgtMrnent are contingent upon continued eoproprlatlon or availability ol funds.
Including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds effected by
any state or federel legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise

modifies the appropriabon or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part, tn no event shaO the
State be Gable tor arty payments hereunder In excess of approprialod or available funds. In
the event ol a reduction, termination or modiTtcation of appropriated or avaiiabfo funds, the
State ahail have the rfghl to withhold payment until such funds become availat)le, If ever. The
State ahatl have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon gMng the Contracia notice of such reduction. (ermir\ation or modificaticn.
The Stale shall r>ot t)e required to transfer funds from eny other source or account into the
AccounC(8) IdenUfted in block 1.6 of (he Gerteral Provtsk>^. Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable;

2. Subparagraph 10 of the Gerteral Provisions of (his contract, Terminaiion, Is amervjed by adding (he
following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at eny time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 da^ after gtylr^ the Contractor vwlnen notice that the State Is exercising Its
option to terminato (he Agreement.

10.2 lr» the event of early te^inalion, the Conlraclor shaG. within 15 days of notice of early
terminatioo. develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, mctudlng but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement end establlaftes a process to mdel those npeds.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully oooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to au^wrt the Transitioo Plan Including, but r»t limited to, any information or
data requested by (he State related to the termination of the Agreement and Trartsilion Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan lo the Stale as
requested.

10.4 In the event (hat services under the Agreement, including bul not limited to dtonls receiving
senrlces under the Agreement ere t/ansKioned to having services deltvored by another entity
lncJudtr>g conlrscied providers or the Slate, the Contractor shall provide e process for
uninterrvptod delivery of aorvlcas in (he Transition Plan.

10.5 Tfte Contractor shall eslabBah a nrtethod of notjfyir>g clients end other affected Individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communlcetiorts in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described at>ove'.

3. The Otvlaion reserves the right to fer>ew the Contract for up to five (5) edditional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by (ha
Governor and Executive Cour\cll. ,
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CERTlFfCATiOH REQARDING ORUO-fREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contrsctor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sectioni S1S1-S160 of the Orug^Free Workplace Act of 1966 (PiA>. L. 100490, Title V. Subtitle 0: 41
U.S.C. 701 et teq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Seclbns
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foUovning Cettrficabon;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR QRAHTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS
I  ̂

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AQRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

Tltis certificatjon Is required by (he regulations Implementirtg Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-free
Workplace Act of 1966 (Pub. L. 100-690. TKle V. Subtitle 0: 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1969 regulations wac amended and put)lished as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21661-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees arxl sub-
corrtractors), prior to award, thai they wfll maintain a drug-freeworkptace. S^on 3017.630(c) of the
regulstion provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and subcontractors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one cerbfication to the Department In each federal bscal year in Eeu of cerbbcates for
each grant dun'ng the federal fiscal year covered by the certibcailon. The certificate set out betpw is a
material repreMntation of fact upon which retiance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grour>ds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government w4de suspension or debarmenL Contractors using this form shouid
send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Conccvd. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certitfes that It will or will continue to provide a dmg-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a etatemem notifying empioyeei that Che unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensirig, possession or use of a corrtroDed substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and spedfylrtg the actions that will be taken ogairut employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an or>going drug-free awareness program to inform employees atrout
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintairting a dr\;g-free v^rkplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalbei thai may be imposed upon employees for dnrg abuse violations

oocuning in the workplace;
1.3. Making K a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grar^ be

given a copy of (he statement required by paragraph (a);
' 1.4. Notifying (he employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

empMymern under the grant, the employee win
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the ataiemenl; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no taier than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in vwlting, wllhin ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subpWagreph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receivirrg actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide rtotice, IfKkidirrg position title, to every grant
ofncer on wmose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless (he Federal agency

EiMbiiD-CirtMctnctrAssrtingOrvsFrM ComrMSor InMiUp\w
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has designated a central poira for the receipl of such notices. Notice thafl include the
idenlificetlon number(l) of each affected gront;

1.6. TaUng one of the follovMng actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
tubparagraph ̂ .4.2, with respect to 8r^y cm;^yee who Is so convicted
t.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent v^lh the requirements of the Rehablltation Act of 1973. as
emended: or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to pahidpate utiifactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitetion program approved tor such purposes by a Eederal. Slate, or local heaRh.
law enforcement, or other oppropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug^fraa workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2, 1.3.1.4, 1.S, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may msert in the space provided below the tite(s) for the performance of work done in
oonnecUon wtth the specifie grant

Place of Perfonnance (street address, dty, county, slate, zip code) (\\%\ each location)

Check Q if there are workplaces on file thot are not identltted here.

Contractor Name: Coordinated Transportadon Sofutions. inc.

:i ;/6}>-)
Date Name: David L. White

,  Title: President

EdVOk 0 - C«niiu(«n rtOMiSns Drug FfM ConUMor MUib ,
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CERTIFtCATlOH REGARDING L088YING

The Contractor identifled In Section 1.) of the General Provisions agrees to comply w4lh the provisions of
Section 319 cfPulilie Law 101*121, Govenvnent wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of Che General Prolusions execute the following Certltlcation;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES * CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE * CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Tide tV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV*0
'Social Servicea Block Grant Program under Title XX >
'Medicatd Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under TlOe IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and befief. that:

1. No Federal appropriated hjnds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for inftuer>dng or sttempbng to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
ofCortgress, an cffleer or employee of Congress, or an employeeof a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract continuation. rer>ewal. amendment, or
modiflcatjon of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub<ontracior).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wlll be paid to any person for
influencing or onempdng to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Cortgress. or an employee of a Member of Congress (n connection with this
Federal cont/aci grant loan, or cooperative sgreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete aruf submit Standard Form ILL. (Oisdosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with its instructlofta. attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E*(.)

3. The unders}gr>ed shall require thai the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sub-awards at an tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and corttracts under grants,
loans. srMj cooperative agreements) and that aD sub-redpierds shall certify and disclose accordingly.

TNs cerbfication is a malerial representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification (s e prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352. Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
cerdflcatton shaD t» subject to a civil penafly of not less than SlO.OOb ar>d not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Coordinated Transportation Solutions, inc.

Q I Ih ))'?
Oate Name: David L. White

T/Ue: President'

Eihibk E-C«ntSc«Uon RegvdlngLoObytng Contractff INSsb
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CERTIFlCATtOH REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPCNaiOM

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contfadof identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provislone tqrets to comply iMth (he provlsiona of
Executive Olftce of the Preaidenl. Executive Order 12549 srtd 45 CFR Pad 76 regarding Oeberment.
Suepeneion. erxf Other Reapontitxity Matter*, and further agree* to have the Contractor'*
repreeentetlve. as identified In Sections l.t 1 and 1.12 of the General Provtsion* execute the foOowtng
Certification; n

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIPICATION /

1.. By eigning and lubmltllng thi* proposal (contract), the prospective prtmery pertlcipaht is providing (he
certificalion aet out belovr.

2. The tnabSity of a peraon to provide the certfication reqiiired below wmII r^t necessadly result in denial
of participation in this covered transedion. If necessary, the prospec(iv<e participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide (he cef1i9cation. The certification or explanation win be
considered in connection wtth the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination v^elher to enter into this transaction. Hov«ever. failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certiftcatior) or an explanation shall disqualify such person from partidpalionin
this traniadion.

3. The certificalion In this daute is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction, (f H is (ater determined that the prospective
prirhary participant knowingly rendered an enoneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS egeney to -
whom this proposal (contract) Is submined If el any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become error^eous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,* 'debarred.' 'suspended,* 'ineligible.* 'lower tier covered
transaction,' 'partidpaAt.' 'person,' 'primary covered transaction.* 'principcl,"proposal.* and
*voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions end
Coverage sectiorw of the rule* implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agree* by *ubmltting thI* proposal (contract) thot, should the
propoted covered transaction be entered into, h shall not knowingly enter Into any kwrer tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared jneligibte, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

' 7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submit^ this proposal that It xwtl include the
clause titled 'CertificaUw Reg^ing Oebarment. Suspension. IneCgUity and Voluntsry Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* provided by OHHS, without modification, In ell lower tier covered
transactions and in all soUcitation* for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participanl In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective partJdpanl in a
lower tier covered transaction thai K it not debaned, suspended, ineligible, or invohjntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is enoneous. A participanl may
dedde the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
partldp&nt may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocu'tment List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shaQ be construed to require eslablithmenl of a system of records
In order to render in good faith the certification required by this dause. The knowledge and
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informstion of e partrcipanl ia r^ot ret^ulred to exceed that v^ich to normeUy possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for Pansactlons euthortaed under paragraph 6 of these inttructions. if a parddpanl in a
covered Irenaaetion knovirfr\gly enters into a lower tier covered trantadion with a person who is'
suspended, deberred, ineligible, or voiuntarily excluded from pertidpation in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. OHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective prtmery partidpant cert'rfiei to (he best of its knowledge and belief, that It end Its

principals;
11.1. arc not preaently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmeni. dedared Ineliglbie. or

volunianly excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agertcy;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) twen convicted of or had

a cfvO Judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a cdmlnal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State entltnjst
statutes or commission of embezdement. theft, forgery, bribery. faJsifkatlon or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not pnesentiy Indicted for otherwise crimtoatly or dvIOy charged by a goverrmentaf entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (^b)
of this certifcation; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appUcation/proposai had one or more public
iransactiona (Federal. State or kx;al) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participani Is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospectrve participant shall attach an ex^anation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and su^itling this lovi^ tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as -
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knm^dge and belief thai it end its prindpals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluniadty excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective padcipanl shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by 8ut>mlRlng this proposal (contract) that It wOl
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarmeni, ̂spension, Ineiigiblltty. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lovmr Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification in aD lower tier covered
transactions and in all sdicllatlons for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name; Coordlneted Trenspofta.bon SoKitiont, Irx.

D cr

Title;

) n
Date Name; David L. White

President

EiMM F • CerUAcMfon Rogtnltng Onterrnvnt, Stoptntlon CanUtKx WtUb ̂
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CERTIPICATION OP COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAl. NONDISCRIMINATTQW. EQUAL TREATMENT OP FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Wentilted In Section 1.3 of the General Provlskmi agrees by lign'aiure of the Contractor's
represerttstlve as tdonUf»ed In Sections 1.1! and 1.I2 of the General Provblons. to execute the folldwtng
certihcatlon:

Contractor wtll comply, end wdl require eny 8ut>grantees or subcontractors to eomply. svfth any eppiicabfe
federal nondiscrlminatlort requirements, w^lch may include:

• the Omnibus Crtme Conuol ond Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 37e9d) which prohibits
recipients of fed^l funding under this statute from dbcrim'mating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or bertefes, on the ttasisof race, color, reliyon, national origin, attd sex. The Ad
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the JuvenDe Justice Delinquency Preverrtion Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal furling under this
statute ore prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or In the delivery of senrfces or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, reTigion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

■ the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U;S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits lecipienlt of federal finarKial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or rtaUonal origin in any program or activity):

• the Rehablinaiion Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from tfsertmir\ating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or acOvity:

• the Americans with ObablUtfes Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34). which prohibits
discrimination and er^ures eRual opportunity lor persons with disabilities in employment. State end local
government services, public accommodations, commerctai facilities, and transportation:

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections t68l. 1683.1685-86). which prohibits
dserlminalion on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs:

• the Age OiscrlminaUon Act of 1975 <42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimfnation on the
basis of-age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
emptoym^ discrimiAalbn:
•28C.F.R, pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justico Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs): 28C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regutations - Nondiscrlminallon: Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and procedures): Executive Order No. 13276 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
orgv^'uEBtions): &ecutive Order No. 13559. which.provide fur^darhenial principles and policy-maying
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment toe Faith-Based
Oiganixallons): and Wh'isUebfower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The Nalionat Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. I.. 112-239. enacted Jamrery 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancameni of Contract Employee Whisdeblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activtties In connection wtth federal grants and contracts.

The ceitihcate set out below Is a material representslion of fact upon which reiiance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violailon of the certification shaD be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termli^ation of gronts. or government wide suspemion or
debarmenL

Contrscttr tfVIMx
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discnmir\ation after a due process hearing on the grour>ds of race, color, religion, nationai (^gln, or sex .
agabis) a recipient of funds, the recipient wtU forward a copy of the finding to the Office tot Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agertcy or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of HeaHh and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provbions agrees by signature of the Contrador's
representative as idenOAed in Sections t.i 1 end t.l2 of |t>c General Provbions, to execute the totlewmg
certlflcatJon;'

I. By signing ai>d submitting thb propoial (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name; Coordinated Transportabon Solutions, inc.

Date Name: OavM L. White

PresidentTide:

npe. IdOVM
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New Hempehiro Department of Heatlh and Human Servicat
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CERTIFICATION REOARDINQ ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Pail C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also kr>own at the Pro^hDdren Act of 1994
(Act), requ^es that smoking nol be permtned in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased oi
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regulsiiy for the provision of health, day care, education,
or nbrary services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
drectly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant contract, toon, or loan guaramee.' The
law docs not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
MedlcarQ or Medicald funds, arrd portions of facilities used for Inpatiert drug or alcohol Ueatment. Failure
to comply e4th the provltlorts of the low may result In the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and'or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Seetjon 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative es identified In Section 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

t. By signing and submitting this cdntract. the Contractor agrees to make reasonatde efforts to comply
with an applicable provisions of Public Law 103-327. Pad C. known as the Pro-Chikfrtn Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Coordinated Transportation Solutions. Inc

Date Name: David L. VsrhHo
TrOe: President

ErtiiM H • C«nttCMiOA RtgifOVig Cor<r»Oor InW^
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUTY ACT

BUStNESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Heatth Insurance Portability and Accoun(8t>IIrty Act. Public Law 104-191 end
with the Standards for Privacy end Security of Indh/iduatly Identlfiabie Health Information, 45
CPR Perts 160 and 164 appUcabie to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate' shell mean (he Contractor end subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health inforrnation under this Agreement and Xovered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Departrr^ent of Health and Human Services. '•

(1) PeflnMona.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Pederal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of THie 45. Code
' of Pederal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entttv* has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 ot Title 45,
Code of Federal Reguiatioru.

d. 'Desioneted Record Set* shall have the same meaning as the term *desigr\ated record set*
jn45CFR Section164.501.

e. 'Data Aooreoation* shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Heatlh Care Qoefalions' shall have the sarniemeehihg as the term 'health cere operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501. ,

9- 'HITECH Act* means the Health Information Technology for Economic and CGnical Health
Act. TitieXlll, Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. 'HlPAA* means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 19M, Public Law
104-191 end the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

>. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term 'indiyidual* in 45 CFR Section 160.103
end Shan Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section1S4.501(9).

j. 'Prfvacv Rule' shell mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heatth
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 end 164, promulgated under HlPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Infofmatlon' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information* In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the infonnaiion created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entify. ^

vreu Comr^aor wa«h ̂ ̂  ̂
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Exhibit I

I. 'Reautrod bv Law' shall have the seme meaning as the term 'required by law' in 4$ CFR
Section 184.103.

m. 'Secreterv* shall mean the Seaetery of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rute' shall mean the Security Standards for, (he Protection of Electronic Protected
Heelth Information at 45 CFR Pert 164, Subpert C, and. amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected heatth Inforrnation that is not
secured by a technology staryjanl that rertders protected health Information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals end is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definftions • AO terms not otherv^se defined herein shell have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 end 164, as emended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Bualnaea Aaaoclata Use and DIflcloauro of Prolecled HefltUi InfOfmatlQn.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Heatth
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to el)
Its directors. ofTicers, employees end agents, shall not use, disctose, maintain or transrnt
PHI in any n^anner that would constiCule a violation of the'Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Assodate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
il. As required by taw. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disdose PHI h) e
third party, Business Associate must obtein, prior to. making any such disdosure, (i)
reasonable assufance8..fr^ the third party that such PHI w3) be held cpnUdentialiy er^
used Of further dlsclMed^b^ty as required by law or for the -purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; end (ii) an agreement from-such thind party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach NotHicatjon
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of auch breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disdosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to e
request for disdosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure end
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure. the Business

30014 EilVWI Comraaw Initial)
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New Himpshire Department of Health and Human Services

Eihlhlt 1

Assodale shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted a!)
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by eddltional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to Ihe Privacy and Security Rule, the Busings Assodate
shaQ be bound by such additional restrictions and shaQ not disclose PHI in viotatlon of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any addrtional security safeguards.

(3) _Pbllnfltlons and Activities of Buainese Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Ofllcer immediate^
after the Busirwss Assodate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the ̂ reement induding breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Assodate shall immedietely perform a rish assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above silualions. The risk assessment shall indude. but not be
limited to:

0  The nature am) extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of ideniifiers and the (ikellhood of re-identificalion;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health infarmation or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the prot^ed health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mftigeted.

The Business Assodate shall complete the risk assessment within 46 hours of the
breach end immediately report (he findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Assodate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Aasociate shall make available all of its irrtemal polides and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to (he Secretary for
purposes of determinir>g Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Assodate shall require all of Its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under (he Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, induding
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third parly beneficiary of the Contractor's business assodate
agreemerttt with Contractor's intend^ business sssociates, who will be recerving PHI

WOM tiTi'MI Coftgidolni8e» 1^^
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pursuant to this Agreemeni. with rights of enforcement ar^ indemrilfication from such
business associates-who shall be governed by standard Paragraph 013 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
- Susiness Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use ar>d disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine^
Business Associate's com;^iance with the terms of the Agreement

g. Withiii ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a wrinen request from Covered Entity for an
amendnnient of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Oesignated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment arid incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its

- obligabons under 45 CFR Section 164.526.-

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

|. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requesta access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonvarded requests. However, if forwarding the

'  Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA ond the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Wrthin ten (10) business days of tcrmir«tion of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or.
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business^ .
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Associate mainlains such PHI. If Covered'Entity, in its sole discretion, requires thel the
Busirwss Associate destroy arry or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity ̂ 1 the PHI has t>een destroyed.

(4) ObHpatlono of Covgred Entfw

a. Covered Entity shall rwtify Business Assodale of any changes or limiialion(s) in Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance witti 45 CFR Section
1B4.520, to the extant that such change or llmitetion may effect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shan.promptly notify Business Associate of any ctianges in, or revocation
of permission provid^ to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFP Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 1G4.S22,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cnuae

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and condtlibns (P'37} of this
Agreement the Covered Entity rrey Immediately termnate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's kno^edge of a breach by Busiriess Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhteij I. The Covered Entity may either Imnnedietely
(ermjnote the Agreement or provide on opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timefreme specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
detennines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) MiaceflanftQiig

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv Referer>ces. All terms lised. but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as arnertded to Include ̂ 1$ Exhibit I, to
a Section In the Prtvacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as' ^
emended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is r>ecessary for Covered
Entity to cornpiy wKh the changes In the requ'irements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state taw.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Intereretfliion. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shell be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy end Security Rule. p.
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Seofeqalion. M any term or condilion of tht$ Exhibit 1 or the application thereof to any
person(fi) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity fihall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding (he use end disclosure of PMI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e end Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms end conditions (P-37). shall survive the tenmination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Departmsnt of Health and Human Services Coortfnated Transportatloo SoiutJons. Inc.

The St8le/0;C?T ^ Name of the Contractof

ure of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Deborah H. Foumler. Esq. David L. While

Name of Authorized Representative

Medlccld Director

Title of Representative

^  " * Dale

Name of Authorized Representative

President

Title of Authorized Representative
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PBBIJP|CATIPN R^pAROIKO THg FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTAeiUTY AND TRANSPAOFNCV
^  ACT IFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding AecouniaWUty and Tranaparency Act (FFATA) requires pnme awardeea of hdfvidual
Federal grants equal to or greater than I3S.OOO and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and auodated first-tier sub-grsnU of S2S,000 or more. If the
Ntia) award Is below S25.000 but subsequent grant modlfieatlons resut In a total award equal to cr over
M5.0W. the award is sut^ect to the FFATA repoiting requlremenls. as of the date of the award.
In acMrdance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sobaward ar>d Executive Compensation Intormation) the
Department of Health arel Human Servtces (OHMS) must report the (oOowIng Informstlon for sny
subeward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requlremenis;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. ' Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award tiUe descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. PrtrKlpfa plaea of pc^ormance
9. Unique tdeniifier of the entity (OUNS0)
10. ToUl compensation and names of the top five executives if;

10.1. Mora than 60* of cnnual groaa reverues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than I2&M ennualiy and

10.2. Compensation irrformeijon Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant redpianta must submit FFATA requtad data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the awanf or award amendment b made.
The Contractor identif>ed In Section 1.3 of the General ProvUtons agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountabflify and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporilhg Subaward and Execudve Compensation information), and further'agrees
to have the Ccntractofa represemailve. as identified In Sections l. M and i. 12 of the General Provisions
execute the foHowing Certificati^:
The betow n^ed Cortractor agrees to provide rteeded Informatiorf as outlined above to the NH
Oepartmeni of Heallh and Human Services and to comply with aO applicable provision* of the Federal
Firxandal Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Coordinated Transportation Soluttons. Inc.

Ill' h
Date Name: David L.WNta

Thie: President
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Ai the Conbaclor identified In Section 1.3 of the Genera) Proviiiona.-1 certify thai (he miponsea toiha
below Hated queationa ere true ond occurate.

t. The DUNS number for your entity ia: o8-/6<, 5"^?^

2. In your buslneia or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your bualnesa or organization
receive ()) 60 percer^ or more of your annual gross revenue In U.S. federal contracts, subcorttracts.
loans, grants. sut>-grenis. and/or cooperative egreementsLand (2) S2S,000.000 or more In annual
gross i^(m,ue8..frqm U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranta. eftiJot
' coop^tive agreeinenla?

NO YES

If the ansvwr to 02 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 tbo^ is YES. piet iwer the following;

3. Does the public have access to Infonmation about the compensation of the executives In your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(e) or t S{d) of tt^e Securities
Exchange Act of 1634 (15 U.S.C.76m(a). 76^0)) or section 6)04 of the (ntemai Revenue Code of
16667

NO b<j
If die arvswer to 03 atwve Is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the fcllov^g:

4. The names and compensation of the f(ve moat highly compensated officers in your business or
organiza^on are as follows:

Name: l>AV'b L. UN< rg"

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount: 16*^ 0^

Amount

Amount:

Amount:

Amount
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